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PART |

Item 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttlger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comyeor “Avnet”), is a global value-
added distributor of electronic components, entsgpcomputer and storage products, IT solutions serdices and embedded subsyst
Avnet creates a vital link in the technology supplyain that connects the worddleading electronic component and computer pre
manufacturers and software developers with a globslomer base of original equipment manufactuf®@&Ms”), electronic manufacturir
services (“EMS”) providers, original design manutaers (“*ODMs”),systems integrators ("SlIs"), independent softwamrders ("ISVs") an
value-added resellers (“VARs"Avnet distributes electronic components, computedpcts and software, as received from its supplis
through a customized solution, and offers asserabty other value&dded services. In addition, Avnet provides engingedesign, materis
management and logistics services, system integratid configuration and supply chain servicesarnited to meet specific requirement
customers and suppliers.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electreriarketing (‘EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TSBoth operating groups ha
operations in each of the three major economicoregiof the world: the Americas; Europe, the Midelast and Africa ("EMEA");anc
Asia/Pacific, consisting of Asia, Australia and N&ealand (“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”)Each operating group has its own management tedoy
a group president and includes regional presidemtssenior executives within the operating group wianage various functions within
businesses. Each operating group also has didifracicial reporting that is evaluated at the cogp@revel on which operating decisions
strategic planning for the Company as a whole amdenDivisions ("business units") exist within eagerating group that serve primarily
sales and marketing units to further streamlinestiles and marketing efforts within each operagirap and enhance each operating greur
ability to work with its customers and supplierenpgrally along more specific product lines or gepyies. However, each business unit r
heavily on the support services provided by theajpeg group as well as centralized support actirporate level.

Avnet's operating groups and their sales by regi@nas follows:

Fiscal 2014 Percentage of
Region Sales Sales
(Billions)
EM Americas $ 4.¢ 17.€%
EM EMEA 5.1 18.t
EM Asia 6.€ 24.C
Total EM 16.t 60.1
TS Americas 6.1 22.1
TS EMEA 3.2 11k
TS Asia 1.7 6.3
Total TS 11.C 39.¢
Total Avnet $ 27.5 100.(%

A description of each operating group is preseb&ldw. Further financial information by operatinggp and region is provided in N
16 to the consolidated financial statements appgani ltem 15 of this Report.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors, interconnmssive and electromechanical devices (“IP&Bfid embedded products for
world’s leading electronic component manufacturers. \Witflobal reach that extends to more than 70 cas)tEM's products and servi
cater to a diverse customer base serving manynmerHets including automotive, communications, corapthardware and peripher:
industrial and manufacturing, medical equipment] aiefense and aerospace. EM also offers an arrayalobadded services that h
customers evaluate, designand procure electronic components throughoutitbeycle of their technology products and systeBys working
with EM, customers and suppliers can acceleraie tihge to market and realize cost efficienciedath the design and manufacturing process
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EM Design Chain Services

EM offers design chain services that provide ergjisavith a host of technical design solutions Bwt/e as an extension of their s
force making it economically viable to reach a oustr segment that seeks complex products and tlechies. With access to a suite of de:
tools and engineering services from any point ia design cycle, customers can get product spetiica along with evaluation kits a
reference designs that enable a broad range oicapphs from concept through detailed design iditlg new product introduction. EM a
offers engineering and technical resources deplaledally to support product design, bill of ma#dsi development, design services
technical education and training. By utilizing E9vlesign chain services, customers can optimizedbmponent selection and accelerate
time to market. The extensive technology line dakdl offers provides access to a diverse range dfajloustomers.

EM Supply Chain Services

EM supply chain services provide endeiod solutions focused on OEMs, EMS providers amdtelnic component manufactur
enabling them to optimize supply chains on a lomgjonal or global basis. By combining internaingetencies in global warehousing
logistics, finance, information technology and assanagement with its global footprint and exteagpartner relationships, EBIsupply chai
services develop a deeper level of engagementitgittustomers. These customers can continuoushageatheir supply chains to meet
demands of a competitive environment globally witha commensurate investment in physical asseitersg and personnel. With proprie
planning tools and a variety of inventory managemssiutions, EM can provide unique solutions thatea customer’s just-itime
requirements and minimize risk in a variety of sérs including lean manufacturing, demand flow antsourcing.

Embedded Solutions

In the Americas, Avnet Embedded provides embeddedpating solutions including technical design, grtgion and assembly
developers of application-specific computing sao$f in the noPC market. Customers include OEMs targeting the icag
telecommunications, industrial and digital editmgrkets.

In EMEA, MSC Technologies provides solutions foteltigent embedded and innovative display solutiprimarily targeting industri
applications. The business unit sells touch andipaslisplays and offers customer-specific disglalutions based on ineuse technologies.
addition, the business unit develops and manufeststandard board and industrial subsystems aritatpgmn-specific devices that enable i
produce specialized systems tailored to specifstauer requirements.

EM Sales and Marketing Divisions

Each of EM5 regions has sales and marketing business uaitgé¢merally focus on a specific customer segnpanmticular product line
or a specific geography. The business units offeess to one of the industry’s broadest line cardsconvenient onstop shopping with ¢
emphasis on responsiveness, engineering suppetitnerdelivery and quality. Certain specialty seeg@re made available to the indivic
business units through common support service .uBiistomers are further supported by a sophistioa@ommerce platform, Avnet Expre
which includes a host of powerful functions suctpasametric search capabilities for component gelection, bill of material optimization a
component cross-referencing. The site enables@gdé online service from part and inventory searchese checking and ordering to onl
payment. EM Americas addresses the needs of itoroess and suppliers through focused channels naceesmall- to mediunsizec
customers, global customers, defense and aerospat@mers and contract manufacturers. In EMEA,nass units, which are organized
semiconductors, IP&E and embedded products andyseppin services, address customers on both é&Epaopean and regional basis.
Asia goes to market with sales and marketing bgsimmits within China, South Asia, Australia, Neealand and Taiwan. EM Japan has ¢
and marketing business units to serve Japanese QNepan, Southeast Asia and China. All regionthiwiEM provide the design chi
services and supply chain services described above.

Technology Solutions

As a leading global IT solutions distributor, TScdges on the valuadded distribution of enterprise computing senad system
software, storage, services and complex solutioos fthe worlds foremost technology manufacturers. TS partneth 8 customers al
suppliers to create and deliver effective dataeresud IT lifecycle solutions that solve the buseehallenges of enaser customers around
world. TS serves a number of customer segments WéRs, Sls and ISVs to worldwide OEMs. It alsov@&s nonPC OEMSs requirin
embedded systems and solutions including engingeproduct prototyping, integration and other vahggled services. In addition,
provides the latest hard disk drives, microprocessmtherboard and DRAM module technologies to nfacturers of generglurpos:
computers and system builders. The operating ghaspdedicated sales and marketing teams serviag thisstomer segments.
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Customers rely on TS' supplier relationships angegenced sales, marketing, technical and finaretgkrts to help them identify €
capitalize on business opportunities in hggowth technologies, vertical markets and geogesphio close deals quickly and profita
Suppliers rely on TS' technology expertise and @ldzale and scope to broaden their customer badgm@w sales in markets around
world. TS' ecosystem of highlyained and knowledgeable VARSs serve as extensibsappliers' sales forces to deliver complex ITugons
Through its dedicated practices, Avnet's Solutiatis® provides partners with the education, tools, resesiand skills needed around core
center technologies: big data and analytics, cloodyerged infrastructure, mobility, storage ancusiéy and networking. Additionally, Avn
provides select partners with the specializatiajuired to successfully sell these solutions intghkjrowth vertical markets including ener
finance, government, healthcare and retail.

Avnet Service:

Avnet Services is a global business unit within TS.industry experts provide a robust portfoliobefsinesses, IT lifecycle, educati
cloud and managed solutions. These experts seltlaliver complex IT solutions to a variety of chahpartners, including VARSs, ISVs, ¢
and OEMs. These solutions may include any comlmnaif services, software, and hardware. The Aveeti€es team specializes in, but is
limited to, infrastructure and application managetéusiness commerce and analytics, cloud enablgnég data, aftermarket and
lifecycle services, and multilingual vendor accteditraining. To continue to meet customer expigtatin an evolving IT ecosystem,
Avnet Services team is focused on delivering sohgithat expand customers' product delivery caipiabijl extend their reach and resour
and enhance project success and return on investarateployments through the entire IT lifecycle.

TS continues to seek out investments in geograpbahnology and vertical markets with high growtbtgmtial via strategic, value-
creating acquisitions and organic local market tgpment. These investments ensure that TS hagittealkcscale and local market expertis
place when and where its customers and suppliens twalo business so that they can capture opptésiguickly and with less risk and cost.

Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Avreg significant operations in all three major econitoregions of the world: ti
Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pac. The percentage of &sm®nsolidated sales by region is presentederfaiowing table:

Percentage of Sales for Fiscal Year

Region 201« 201: 201z
Americas 40% 42% 45%
EMEA 30 29 29
Asia/Pac 30 29 26
10C% 100(% 10C%

Avnet’s foreign operations are subject to a varietyisks. These risks are discussed further uiisk Factorsin Item 1A and undt
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRiskin Item 7A of this Report. Additionally, the spdcitranslation impacts of foreir
currency fluctuations, most notably the Euro, oa tompany’s consolidated financial statements arthdr discussed iManagemeng
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition delsults of Operatiorin Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to further its strategic objectives angport key business initiatives. T
program was a significant factor in Avnet becomarg of the largest valuedded distributors of electronic components, enisFpcompute
and storage products, IT services and embeddedstebss. Avnet expects to continue to pursue sti@@gpuisitions to expand its mar
presence, increase its scale and scope, and irdtegsoduct or service offerings.

During fiscal 2014 , the Company completed threguésitions with aggregate annualized sales of apprately $492.0 million. Set
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiah@tion and Results of Operatioirs Part Il of this Form 10« for additiona
information on acquisitions completed during fise@lL4 , 2013 and 2012 .
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Major Products

One of Avnet's competitive strengths is the breatt quality of the suppliers whose products itriistes. IBMproducts accounted 1
approximately 13% , 12% and 11% of the Companyissotidated sales during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 20&3pectively, and was the o
supplier from which sales of its products exceet@¥% of consolidated sales. Listed in the tablewedce the major product categories anc
Company'’s approximate sales of each during thethest fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Millions)
Semiconductors $ 13,160.¢ $ 13,720.t $ 13,461.(
Computer products 10,571.¢ 9,346.( 9,984..
Connectors 794.7 687.¢ 667.5
Passives, electromechanical and other 2,972t 1,704. 1,594.(
$ 27,499." $ 25,458.¢ $ 25,707.!

Competition & Markets

The electronic components and computer productssinigés continue to be extremely competitive aredsabject to rapid technologi
advances. The Compasymajor competitors include Arrow Electronics, |reuture Electronics and World Peace Group, and,lésser exter
Ingram Micro, Inc. and Tech Data Corp. There amo alertain smaller, specialized competitors whoegaly focus on narrower regiol
markets, products or particular sectors. In addjtibe Company may compete with its own supplibeg taintain a direct salesforce. 2
result of these factors, Avnet must remain comipetin its pricing of goods and services.

A key competitive factor in the electronic componand computer product distribution industry is tieed to carry a sufficient amoun
inventory to meet customergpid delivery requirements. To minimize its expestelated to valuation of inventory on hand, thegarity of
the Company’s products are purchased pursuantrt@xdusive distributor agreements, which typicaligyide certain protections for prod
obsolescence and price erosion. These agreemengei@erally cancelable upon 30 to 180 dagsice and, in most cases, provide for inver
return privileges upon cancellation. In additiome tCompany enhances its competitive position bgrioff) a variety of valuadded service
which entail the performance of services and/ocesses tailored to individual customer specificetiand business needs such as point ¢
replenishment, testing, assembly, supply chain g@mant and materials management. For the year ehdweel28, 2014 service sale
constituted less than 10% of the Company's totaksa

A competitive advantage is the size of the Commanypplier base. Because of the number of Asm&ippliers, many customers
simplify their procurement process and make athefr required purchases from Avnet, rather tharclpasing from several different vendors.

Seasonality

Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted byosabty, with the exception of a relatively minanpact ol
consolidated results from the growth in sales at®B business during the December quarter primdrilyen by the calendar year end sel
and buying patterns of key suppliers and custormespectively.

Number of Employees
At June 28, 2014 , Avnet had approximately 19,00(leyees.
Available Information

The Company files its annual report on Form 10-#arterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports om=8K, proxy statements a
other documents with the U.S. Securities and Exgha@ommission (“SEC”under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A copymy
document the Company files with the SEC is avadldbl review at the SEG’public reference room, 100 F Street, N.E., Wagbm D.C
20549. The public may obtain information on the lmuteference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SE30. The Compang’SEC filings ar
also available to the public on the SEC’s webditettm://www.sec.goand through the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE0,Broad Stree
New York, New York 10005, on which the Comp’s common stock is listed.
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A copy of any of the Companyfilings with the SEC, or any of the agreementether documents that constitute exhibits to tHiisgs,
can be obtained by request directed to the Compathe following address and telephone number:

Avnet, Inc.
2211 South 47 Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(480) 643-2000
Attention: Corporate Secretary

The Company also makes these filings available, dfecharge, through its website (see “Avnet Webditlow).
Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet containa this Report, extensive information about thenfpany can be found
www.avnet.conm including information about its management teproducts and services and corporate governancéqasc

The corporate governance information on the welisiledes the Company’Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Code of Gxirah(
the charters for each of the committees of AwBbard of Directors. In addition, amendments ®@vde of Conduct, committee charters
waivers granted to directors and executive officarder the Code of Conduct, if any, will be postethis area of the website. These docurr
can be accessed at www.avnet.cander the “Investor Relations — Corporate Goverpargaption. Printed versions of the Corpo
Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and chaofetise Board committees can be obtained, freehafge, by writing to the Company
the address listed above in “Available Information.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormKlL0Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repans Form 8K anc
amendments to those reports, if any, filed or shad pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of Seesrikxchange Act of 1934, as well
Section 16 filings made by any of the Compangkecutive officers or directors with respect tendt common stock, are available on
Company’s website ( www.avnet.caimder the “Investor Relations — SEC Filingsiption) as soon as reasonably practicable aféergpor
is electronically filed with, or furnished to, tis&curities and Exchange Commission.

These details about Avnet’s website and its corgembnly for information. The contents of the Camys website are not, nor shall ti
be deemed to be, incorporated by reference irRért.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This Report contains forwardoking statements with respect to the financiaddition, results of operations and business of Avihbes:
statements are generally identified by words likelieves,” “plans,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “shio’ “will,” “may,” “estimates” or simila
expressions. Forwardoking statements are subject to numerous assangptrisks and uncertainties. Except as requirethlvy Avnet doe
not undertake any obligation to update any forwlaoking statements, whether as a result of newrin&tion, future events or otherwi
Factors that may cause actual results to diffeerraly from those contained in the forward-lookistatements include those discussed below

The factors discussed below make the Companperating results for future periods difficultpgoedict and, therefore, prior results
not necessarily indicative of results to be expétefuture periods. Any of the below factors, oy ather factors discussed elsewhere in
Report, may have an adverse effect on the Compdimgacial results, operations, prospects and diqui The Company operating resul
have fluctuated in the past and likely will continto do so. If the Compars/operating results fall below its forecasts arelakpectations
public market analysts and investors, the tradingef the Company’s common stock will likely dease.

Economic weakness and uncertainty could adversdfget the Compan’s results and prospects.

The Company's financial results, operations ansggeots depend significantly on worldwide econonuaditions, the demand for
products and services, and the financial conditibits customers and suppliers. Economic weaknedsuacertainty have in the past resu
and may result in the future, in decreased revermaasgins, earnings and asset impairments, inajudmodwill and other intangible ass
Economic weakness and uncertainty may also leadCtrepany to take restructuring actions and redssecated expenses in respons
decreased revenues or margins. The Company mdyenable to adequately adjust its cost structuie timely fashion, which may advers
impact its profitability. Economic weakness and emainty also make it more difficult for the Compat® manage inventory levels anc
collect customer receivables, which may resuleiiuced access to liquidity and higher financingscos
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The electronic components and computer industriag dighly competitive and if the Company fails t@mpete effectively, its revenu
gross profit margins and prospects may decli

The market for the Company's products and senigesry competitive and subject to rapid technatagiadvances, new mar
entrants, norraditional competitors, changes in industry stadslaand changes in customer needs. Not only dee€dmpany compete w
other global distributors, it also competes fortooeers with regional distributors and some of tlenpany's own suppliers that maintain di
sales efforts. The Company's failure to maintaid amhance its competitive position could adversafect its business and prospe
Furthermore, the Company's efforts to compete @ nharketplace could cause deterioration of grosditpmargins and, thus, over
profitability.

The size of the Company's competitors vary acrossken sectors, as do the resources the Companglloaated to the sectors ¢
geographic areas in which it does business. Therefome competitors may have greater resourcasmre extensive customer base tha
Company has in one or more of its market sectodsgaographic areas, which may result in the Compannyeing able to effectively comp
in certain markets which could impact the Compapyditability and prospects.

An industry dowi-cycle in semiconductors could significantly affette Company's operating results as a large portiohrevenues an
gross profit come from sales of semiconductors, @rhis a highly cyclical industry

The semiconductor industry historically has experésl periodic fluctuations in product supply andndad, often associated w
changes in technology and manufacturing capaaitst,is generally considered to be highly cyclicaliridg each of the last three fiscal ye
sales of semiconductors represented approximagdy &6f the Company's consolidated revenues, andCtimpany's revenues, particul
those of EM, closely follow the strength or wealsesthe semiconductor industry. While the Compattgmpts to identify changes in mau
conditions as soon as possible, the dynamics ointfiestry make prediction of and timely reactiorsteeh changes difficult. Future downtt
in the technology industry, particularly in the seommductor sector, could adversely affect the Camg[saoperating results and negati\
impact the Company's ability to maintain its cutnerofitability levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sufiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Company's competitive strengths is thadth and quality of the suppliers whose prodtir@sCompany distributes. Howey
sales of products and services from one of the Gaorylp suppliers, IBM, accounted for approximatedyalof the Company's consolida
revenues in fiscal 2014. Management expects IBMlyets and services to continue to account for riyughsimilar percentage of t
Company's consolidated sales in fiscal 2015. Thm@amy's contracts with its suppliers, includingstaavith IBM, vary in duration and ¢
generally terminable by either party at will upoatine. To the extent IBM or other primary supplisignificantly reduce their volume
business with the Company in the future, becausa pfoduct shortage, an unwillingness to do businegh Avnet, or otherwise, t
Company's business and relationships with its custs could be negatively affected because its m&t® depend on the Compal
distribution of electronic components and compuytmducts from the industry's leading suppliersatidition, suppliersstrategy shifts ¢
performance issues may negatively affect the Copipdinancial results. Further, to the extent that aithe Company's key suppliers mot
the terms of their contracts including, withoutiation, the terms regarding price protection, t&gbf return, rebates or other terms that pr
or enhance the Company's gross margins, it colgdtnely affect the Company's results of operatidingncial condition or liquidity.

The Company's norld.S. locations represent a significant portion ofsirevenue and, consequently, the Company is exgose risks
associated with operating internationally.

During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 approximatel966563% and 61%respectively, of the Company's sales came freroperation
outside the United States. As a result of the Cawiganternational operations, in particular thosemerging and developing economies
Company's operations are subject to a varietystiGrthat are specific to international operatiomsduding, but not limited to, the following:

» potential restrictions on the Company's abilityepatriate funds from its foreign subsidiar

» foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations gredimpact on the Company's reported results efaipns

* import and export duties and valadded taxe

» compliance with foreign and domestic import and ekpegulations, data privacy regulations, busingssnsing requiremen

environmental regulations and antifruption laws, the failure of which could resirit severe penalties including monetary fil
criminal proceedings and suspension of import @oexprivileges;




« complex and changing tax laws and regulati
* regulatory requirements and prohibitions that difetween jurisdiction
e economic and political instability, terrorism anok@ntial military conflicts or civilian unre:

» fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shipp and receiving capacity, and other disruptiamghie transportation and shipp
infrastructure;

* natural disasters and health conce
» differing environmental regulations and employmeaictices and labor issues;
» the risk of nonrcompliance with local law

In addition to the cost of compliance, the potdrtiaminal penalties for violations of export regtibns and anttorruption laws by tF
Company or its thirgrarty agents create heightened risks for the Cogipamternational operations. In the event thabaegning regulator
body determined that the Company had violated eaple import or export regulations or aotirruption laws, the Company could be fi
significant sums, incur sizable legal defense cast¥or its import or export capabilities could restricted, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business. Addltigrellegations that the Company has violated segomental regulation may negativ
impact the Company's reputation, which may resulcustomers or suppliers being unwilling to do hass with the Company. While
Company has adopted measures designed to ensupgiame with these laws, the Company cannot beredsithat such measures will
adequate or that its business will not be matgreild adversely impacted in the event of an allegeldtion.

The Company's acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affaet€ompany's results of operations.

Avnet has made, and expects to continue to makaegic acquisitions or investments in companiesirad the world to further |
strategic objectives and support key businessativgs. Acquisitions and investments involve riaksl uncertainties, some of which may d
from those associated with Avnet's historical opers. The risks relating to such acquisitions anestments include, but are not limited
risks relating to expanding into emerging marketd husiness areas, adding additional product Emesservices, incurring costs or liabili
associated with the companies acquired and digerianagement's attention from existing businessatipas. As a result, the Compal
profitability may be negatively impacted. In additj the Company may not be successful in integyatite acquired businesses or
integration may be more difficult, costly or tinsensuming than anticipated. Further, any litigatielating to a potential acquisition will res
in an increase in the expenses associated withdteisition or cause a delay in completing the aitipn, thereby impacting the Compar
profitability. The Company may experience disruptiahat could, depending on the size of the adiprisihave an adverse effect on
business, especially where an acquisition target n@ae pre-existing non-compliance or geasting deficiencies or material weaknesse
internal controls as those terms are defined unelevant SEC rules and regulations. Furthermore,Gbmpany may not realize all of
anticipated benefits from its acquisitions, whicul adversely affect the Company's financial penfance.

Major disruptions to the Compar's logistics capability could have a material adeerimpact on the Company’s operations.

The Company's global logistics services are opeértiieough specialized, centralized or outsourcedriiution centers around 1
globe. The Company also depends almost entirehiod-party transportation service providers for thedsly of products to its customers
major interruption or disruption in service at ooemore of its distribution centers for any reageach as natural disasters, pandemic
significant disruptions of services from the Comyarthird-party transportation providers) could cause caatieis or delays in a significe
number of shipments to customers and, as a resuill have a severe impact on the Company's bsiopsrations and financial performar

If the Company's internal information systems fail to function pperly or experience a security breach, or if the i@pany is unsuccessful
the implementation, integration or upgrade of inforation systems, its business operations could suffe

The Company's expanding operations put increasiegspre on the Company's information systems tiitéae the day-today
operations of the business and to produce timelyrate and reliable information on financial apemtional results. Currently, the Compa
global operations are tracked with multiple infotina systems, some of which are subject to ongdingrojects designed to streamline
optimize the Company's global information systefifgere is no guarantee that the Company will be essgfal at all times in these efforts
that there will not be implementation or integratifficulties that will adversely affect the Commeés ability to complete business transact
timely or the accurate and timely recording andrépg of financial




data. A failure of any of these information systems way described above or material difficultiesupgrading these information syste
could have an adverse effect on the Company's &ssiand its compliance with reporting obligationder federal securities laws.

In addition, the Company's information technologgynibe subject to cybersecurity breaches, compuekihg or other general syst
failures. Maintaining and operating these systeeggiires continuous investments. A security breahidcresult in sensitive data being |
manipulated or exposed to unauthorized persons et public. Such a breach may harm the Compamgutation and business prospects
subject the Company to legal claims if there is |asclosure or misappropriation of or acces®igo@ompanys business partners' informati
As threats related to cybersecurity breaches dpwatd grow, the Company may also find it necessargake further investments to protec
data and infrastructure, which may impact the Camjsaprofitability.

Declines in the value of the Company's inventory wnexpected order cancellations by the Company'stomers could adversely affect
business, results of operations, financial conditi@and liquidity.

The electronic components and computer productssinieés are subject to rapid technological changey and enhanced produ
changes in customer needs and changes in industnglasds, which can contribute to a decline in @atm obsolescence of inventc
Regardless of the general economic environmeist pbssible that prices will decline due to a dasesin demand or an oversupply of prod
and, as a result of the price declines, there neagrbater risk of declines in inventory value. Alilgh it is the policy of many of the Compa
suppliers to offer distributors like Avnet certginotections from the loss in value of inventorydswas price protection and limited rights
return), the Company cannot be assured that suatigzowill fully compensate for the loss in valua, that the vendors will choose to, ol
able to, honor such agreements, some of which erelocumented and, therefore, subject to the disoref the vendor. In addition, t
majority of the Company's sales are made purswaingividual purchase orders, rather than throwgigterm sales contracts. Where there
contract, such contract is generally terminableiitupon notice. The Company cannot be assuretuthBreseen new product developme
declines in the value of the Company's inventorymioreseen order cancellations by its customelisnet adversely affect the Compar
business, results of operations, financial conditio liquidity.

Substantial defaults by the Company's customersitmaccounts receivable or the loss of significaristomers could have a significe
negative impact on the Company's business, resofteperations, financial condition or liquidity.

A significant portion of the Company's working dapiconsists of accounts receivable from customéistomers responsible fo
significant amount of accounts receivable wered@se doing business, direct their business elsewbecome insolvent or otherwise unab
pay the amount they owe the Company, or were torbecunwilling or unable to make such payments timeely manner, the Compan
business, results of operations, financial condito liquidity could be adversely affected. An egonic or industry downturn could advers
affect the collectability of these accounts reckigawhich could result in longer payment cyclessréased collection costs and defaul
excess of management's expectations. A signifidetgrioration in the Company's ability to collentaccounts receivable could also impac
cost or availability of financing under its accosimeceivable securitization program ($8eancing Transactiongppearing in Item 7 of tt
Report).

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedtiugdity or capital resources.

The Company's ability to satisfy its cash needsianpdement its capital allocation strategy depewldts ability to generate cash fr
operations and to access the financial market$, diotvhich are subject to general economic, finalh@ompetitive, legislative, regulatory ¢
other factors that are beyond the Company's control

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needsighr@xternal financing. However, external financimgy not be available .
acceptable terms or at all. As of June 28, 2024net had total debt outstanding of approximat®y1 billion under various notes, sect
borrowings and committed and uncommitted linesreflit with financial institutions. The Company neexhsh to make interest payments
and to repay, this indebtedness and for generalocate purposes, such as funding its ongoing wgrkapital and capital expenditure ne
Under the terms of any external financing, the Canypmay incur higher than expected financing expgrmsd become subject to additic
restrictions and covenants. Any material increagdé Company's financing costs could have a natedverse effect on its profitability.

Under certain of its credit facilities, the Compagsyrequired to maintain certain specified finahc&tios and meet certain tests. If
Company fails to meet these financial ratios ant#sts, it may be unable to continue to utilizesthéacilities. If the Company is unable
utilize these facilities, it may not have sufficierash available to make interest payments on epayrindebtedness and for general corp
needs. General economic or business conditionsgsiienand foreign, may be less favorable than mamagt expects and could adver
impact the Company's sales or its ability to callexceivables from its customers, which may impsmtess to the Company's securitize
program.
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The agreements governing some of the Company's riiciags contain various covenantand restrictions that limit the discretion
management in operating its business and could gneivengaging in some activities that may be beriafitco the Company's business.

The agreements governing the Company's financingluding its credit facility and the indentures gaving the Company
outstanding notes, contain various covenants astdatons that, in certain circumstances, limi thiompany's ability, and the ability of cen
subsidiaries, to:

e grantliens on asse

» make restricted payments (including, under certiicumstances, paying dividends on common stockedeeming or repurchasi
common stock);

* make certain investmen

* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substéytal of the Companys asset:
* incur additional debt;

* engage in certain transactions with affilia

As a result of these covenants and restrictiorsCibmpany may be limited in the future in how ihdocts its business and may be un
to raise additional debt, repurchase common stmka dividend, compete effectively or make furtineestments.

The Company may become involved in intellectual peoty disputes that could cause it to incur subsdiah costs, divert the efforts
management or require it to pay substantial damagedicensing fees.

From time to time, the Company receives notificagi@lleging infringements of intellectual properights allegedly held by othe
relating to the Company's business or the prodoictservices it sells. Litigation with respect tagyds or other intellectual property mat
could result in substantial costs and diversiomahagement and other resources and could havevarsadeffect on the Company's operati
Further, the Company may be obligated to indemaifg defend its customers if the products or sesvibe Company sells are alleget
infringe any third party's intellectual propertghts. While the Company may be able to seek indiéation from its suppliers for itself and
customers against such claims, there is no assithatit will be successful in obtaining such imafication or that the Company will be fu
protected against such claims. In addition, the gamy is exposed to potential liability for techrgyothat it develops for which it has
indemnification protections. If an infringement iakais successful, the Company may be required jodaanages or seek royalty or lice
arrangements, which may not be available on comaibraeasonable terms. The Company may have tp s#alling certain products
services, which could affect its ability to competéectively.

Failure to comply with the requirements of envirorantal regulations could adversely affect the Companbusiness.

The Company is subject to various federal, statealland foreign laws and regulations addressindr@mmental and other impa
from product disposal, use of hazardous materiaigroducts, recycling of products at the end ofrtbseful life and other related matts
While the Company strives to ensure it is in fuhpliance with all applicable regulations, certafrthese regulations impose liability with:
fault. Additionally, the Company may be held resgibfe for the prior activities of an entity it adtpd. Failure to comply with these regulati
could result in substantial costs, fines and arilcriminal sanctions, as well as thipdsty claims for property damage or personal in
Further, environmental laws may become more strihgeer time, imposing greater compliance costs @mdeasing risks and penali
associated with violations.

Tax legislation initiatives or challenges to the @mpany's tax positions could impact the Company'sults of operations and financi
condition.

As a multinational corporation, the Company is eabjto the tax laws and regulations of the UnitédteS and many forei
jurisdictions. From time to time, regulations maydnacted that could adversely affect the Compaay'positions. There can be no assur
that the Company’ effective tax rate and the resulting cash flol mat be adversely affected by these potentiahgles in regulations. The
laws and regulations of the various countries wileeeCompany has operations are extremely compidxsabject to varying interpretatio
Although the Company believes that its historieal positions are sound and consistent with apgkcialvs, regulations and existing precec
there can be no assurance that these tax posititinsot be challenged by relevant tax authoritigsthat the Company would be successf
any such challenge.
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If the Company fails to maintain effective internalontrols, it may not be able to report its finamtiresults accurately or timely, or preve
or detect fraud, which could have an adverse effentthe Company’s business or the market pricettd Company's securities.

Effective internal controls over financial repogiare necessary for the Company to provide reasomesurance with respect ta
financial reports and to effectively prevent oretdtfraud. If the Company cannot provide reasonabkirance with respect to its finan
reports and effectively prevent or detect frauslpitand and operating results could be harmedniateontrols over financial reporting may
prevent or detect misstatements because of its@nhémitations, including the possibility of humarror, the circumvention or overriding
controls, or fraud. Therefore, even effective ingdrcontrols cannot provide absolute assurance wsipect to the preparation and
presentation of financial statements. In additiprgjections of any evaluation of effectivenessmi&inal controls over financial reporting
future periods are subject to the risk that therimal controls may become inadequate because afjebdn conditions, or that the degre
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritetate. If the Company fails to maintain the adeyuof its internal controls, including &
failure to implement required new or improved ingdr controls, or if the Company experiences ditfies in their implementation, t
Company's business and operating results couldiredud, the Company may be subject to sanctionsvestigations by regulatory authoriti
and the Company could fail to meet its reportingjgathions, which could have an adverse effect snbiiisiness or the market price of
Company's securities.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

The Company owns and leases approximately 1.7omidind 7.1 million square feet of space, respdgtivé which approximatel\87%
is located in the United States. The following éablimmarizes certain of the Company’s key facdlitie

Leased

Sq. or
Location Footage  Owned Primary Use
Groveport, Ohio 580,000 Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added opersti
Chandler, Arizona 400,00 Owned EM warehousing and value-added operations
Tongeren, Belgium 390,000 Owned EM and TS warehousing and value-added operations
Poing, Germany 370,000 Leased EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Poing, Germany 300,000 Owned EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Chandler, Arizona 230,000 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmmati
Nettetal, Germany 200,000 Owned EM and TS warehousing and value-added operations
Hong Kong, China 180,00( Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations
Duluth, Georgia 180,00( Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added opersiti
Phoenix, Arizona 180,00( Leased Corporate and EM headquarters
Tempe, Arizona 130,00( Leased TS headquarters

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgrioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutability under various feder.
state and local environmental laws and regulatiomtduding those governing pollution and exposureand the handling, storage and disg
of, hazardous substances. For example, under tmep@bensive Environmental Response, CompensatidnLability Act of 1980, a
amended (“CERCLA™and similar state laws, Avnet is and may be lidbtethe costs of cleaning up environmental contatiém on or fror
certain of its current or former properties, anaftsite locations where the Company disposed of wastéise past. Such laws may imp
joint and several liability. Typically, however gftosts for cleanup at such sites are allocatechgmotentially responsible parties based 1
each party’s relative contribution to the contartiovg and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but nottimaito Item 103 of Regulation§-the Company regularly assesses the status ¢
developments in pending environmental legal proecemsdto determine whether any such proceedingsl@hiriidentified specifically in th
discussion of legal proceedings, and has concltltsco particular pending environmental legal
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proceeding requires public disclosure. Based onirtffemation known to date, management believes$ thea Company has appropriai
accrued in its consolidated financial statementétéosshare of the estimated costs of environmentdters.

The Company is also party to various other lawsgigms, investigations and other legal proceesliagsing from time to time in t
normal course of business. While litigation is sebjto inherent uncertainties, management curréxligves that the ultimate outcome of tt
proceedings, individually and in the aggregatel mot have a material adverse effect on the Comgafityancial position, liquidity or results
operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market price per share

The Companys common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exaie under the symbol AVT. Quarterly high and laeck closing
prices (as reported for the New York Stock Exchargaposite transactions) and dividends declaredgmo fiscal 2013) for the last two fis
years were

2014 2013
Dividends
Fiscal Quarters High Low Declared High Low
1st $ 417 $ 33.97 $ 0.1t % 3351 $ 28.91
2nd 43.4: 38.71 0.1¢ 31.62 27.01
3rd 46.17 39.3¢ 0.1f 36.8¢ 30.61
4th 47.5( 41.6¢ 0.1¢ 35.3¢ 31.5¢

In August 2013, the Company's Board of Directoiated a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15 per shafroutstanding common sto
The declaration and payment of future dividends el at the discretion of the Board of Directorsl avill be dependent upon the Compa
financial condition, results of operations, capit@djuirements, and such other factors as the BofalRirectors deems relevant. In additi
certain of the Company's debt facilities may restiiie declaration and payment of dividends, dejmgndpon the Company's then curi
compliance with certain covenants.

Record Holders
As of July 25, 2014 , there were 2,918 register@ddrs of record of Avnet’'s common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 282014

(©)
Number of Securities
€) Remaining Available
Number of for
Securities (b) Future Issuance
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants  Reflected in Column
Plan Category and Rights and Rights (@)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsid 4,599,38. @ $30.84 6,371,76! @

(1) Includes 1,809,176 shares subject to optiaristanding, 2,001,887 restricted incentive shanes7%88,321performance shares awar:
but not yet vested or vested but not yet delivered.

(2) Does notinclude 375,741 shares availabléuimre issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Which is a norwompensatory pla
Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeal tetarn of holders of Avnet, Ina’common stock with the cumulative total returr
the S&P 500 index and certain of Avreepeer companies (“peer group") in the electroaesinformation technology distribution industnhé
graph tracks the performance of a hypothetical $h08stment in Avhes common stock, in the peer group, and the S&PiB@&x (with the
reinvestment of all dividends) from June 27, 2009une 28, 2014The companies comprising the peer group that Akiae historically use
are: Agilysys, Inc., Anixter International, Inc.rrédw Electronics, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., InsigBnterprises, Inc., Scansource, Inc., Syl
Corp. and Tech Data Corp.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®
Armong Avnet Inc, the S&F 800 Index, and a PeerGroup
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#5100 invested on 62703 in stock or 630003 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

Copyright® 2014 SEP, a division of The MoGraw-Hill Companies Inc. &I rights reserved.

6/27/2009 7/3/2010 7/2/2011 6/30/2012 6/29/2013 6/28/2014
Avnet, Inc. $100.00 $111.43 $151.25 $143.40 $156.13 $206.06
S&P 500 100.00 114.43 149.55 157.70 190.18 236.98
Peer Group 100.00 101.92 152.62 136.23 158.70 234.03

The stock price performance included in this griphot necessarily indicative of future stock prsformance. The Company does
make or endorse any predictions as to future gpeciormance. The performance graph is furnisheelystd accompany this Report and is
being filed for purposes of the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934, as amended, and is not to be incatedrby reference into any filing of -
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In August 2011, the Company's Board of Directote (tBoard") approved the repurchase of up to $506illlon of the Company
common stock through a share repurchase programndéugust 2012, the Board approved an additigg280.0 millionfor the shar
repurchase program. With this increase, the Compaeny repurchase up to a total of $750.0 milladrthe Company's common stock under
share repurchase program. The following table ey if any, the Company's monthly purchases ofefsrcommon stock during the fou
quarter ended June 28, 20ldnder the share repurchase program, which isgbatpublicly announced plan, and purchases madb@ope
market to obtain shares for the Company's Empl&teek Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which is not pad ptiblicly announced plan:
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Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Shares Purchased Value of Shares That
Total Number as Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
. of Shares Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Purchased® Paid per Share or Programs or Programs
April 3,80( $47.1€ — $223,223,000
May 180,77- $41.82 176,07- $215,860,000
June — — — $215,860,000

(1) Consists of purchases of Avnet's common stock &gsacwith the Company's ESPP as follows: 3,80@eshia April an
4,700 shares in May.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30, July 2, July 3,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $ 27,499 $ 25,458. $ 25,707. $ 26,534. $ 19,160.
Gross profit 3,225 2,979.¢ 3,050.¢ 3,107.¢ 2,280.:
Operating incomé& 789.¢ 626.( 884.: 930.( 635.¢
Income tax expens@ 155.k 99.2 223.¢ 201.¢ 174.1
Net incomé&® 545.¢ 450.1 567.( 669.1 410.¢
Financial Position:
Working capital® 3,975. 3,535.¢ 3,455.° 3,749.! 3,190.¢
Total assets 11,255.! 10,474. 10,167.¢ 9,905.¢ 7,782.
Long-term debt 1,213.¢ 1,207.( 1,272.( 1,273. 1,243
Shareholders’ equity 4,890.: 4,289.: 3,905.° 4,056.: 3,009.:
Per Share:
Basic earnings 3.9t 3.2¢ 3.8t 4.3¢ 2.71
Diluted earnings 3.8¢ 3.21 3.7¢ 4.3¢ 2.6¢
Cash dividends paid 0.6( — — — —
Book value per diluted share 34.9( 30.6¢4 26.12 26.2¢ 19.6¢
Ratios:
Operating income as a
percentage of sales 2.% 2.5% 3.4% 3.5% 3.2%
Net income as a percentage o
sales 2.C% 1.8% 2.2% 2.5% 2.1%
Return on capital 11.2% 10.6% 12.9% 15.2% 14.(%
Quick ratio 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.4:1
Working capital® 1.8:1 1.7:1 1.7:1 1.8:1 1.9:1
Total debt to capital 29.8% 32.2% 35.4% 27.2% 29.8%

(&) All fiscal years presented include restructuringegration and other expenses, which totaled $8dllbon before tax, $70.8 million aft
tax and $0.50 per share on a diluted basis inlfed4, $149.5 million before tax, $116.4 milliofiea tax and $0.83 per share on a dili
basis in fiscal 2013, $73.6 million before tax, $billion after tax and $0.35 per share on a ddubasis in fiscal 2012, $77.2 mill
before tax, $56.2 million after tax and $0.36 geare on a diluted basis in fiscal 2011 and $25 Mamibefore tax, $18.8 million after t
and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis in fisca020

(b) Certain fiscal years presented included the impadbx benefits primarily due to the release ofuadion allowances net of additio
reserves including $43.8 million and $0.31 per shar a diluted basis in fiscal 2014, $50.4 millaord $0.36
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(©)

(d)

per share on a diluted basis in fiscal 2013, $8l6om and $0.06 per share on a diluted basissodl 2012, and $32.9 million and $C
per share on a diluted basis in fiscal 2011.

All fiscal years presented were impacted by otlxpease or income amounts that impact the compéyabédtween years including a g
on legal settlement of $22.1 million before tax3®Lmillion after tax and $0.09 per share on atédubasis in fiscal 2014, a gain
bargain purchase and other of $31.0 million befurd after tax and $0.22 per share on a dilutecshadiscal 2013, a gain on barg
purchase and other of $2.9 million before tax, $8ilion after tax and $0.02 per share on a dildtadis in fiscal 2012, a gain on barg
purchase and other of $22.7 million before tax,.$2billion after tax and $0.17 per share on a diubasis in fiscal 2011, and a gair
sale of assets of $8.8 million before tax, $5.4iamlafter tax and $0.03 per share on a dilutedstiadiscal 2010.

This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit

Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts)

2014®

Sales $ 6,345.! % 7,421.¢ % 6,683.t $ 7,048 $ 27,499’
Gross profit 735.2 848.¢ 804.¢ 837.( 3,225,
Net income 120.¢ 124.¢ 113.¢ 186.: 545.¢
Diluted earnings per share 0.8¢ 0.8¢ 0.81 1.3 3.8¢
2013©

Sales $ 5,870.. $ 6,699.! $ 6,298." $ 6,590." $ 25,459.(
Gross profit 684.< 768.t 756.( 770.¢ 2,979.¢
Net income 100.: 137.t 86.2 126.1 450.1
Diluted earnings per share 0.7 0.9¢ 0.62 0.91 3.21

(@)
(b)

()

Quarters may not total to the year due to roun

First quarter of fiscal 2014 sults were impacted by restructuring, integratiod other expenses of $12.1 million before tax@ $&illion
after tax and $0.06 per share on a diluted baslsaagain on legal settlement of $19.1 million beftax, $11.7 million after tax and $0
per share on a diluted basis related to an awamh@at received. Second quarter results were imgdmnterestructuring, integration &
other expenses of $28.4 million before tax, $21ilian after tax and $0.15 per share on a dilutadi® and an income tax expense of
million primarily related to certain items impadiithe effective income tax rate. Third quarter lsswere impacted by restructuri
integration and other expenses of $26.1million betax, $19.3 million after tax and $0.14 per shamea diluted basis. Fourth qua
results were impacted by restructuring, integrafiod other expenses of $28.0 million before taX).$2nillion after tax and $0.15
share on a diluted basis and an income tax beoe$68.2 million and $0.41 per share on a dilutedi® as a result of the releas
valuation allowances against certain deferred sset.

First quarter of fiscal 2013 results were icied by restructuring, integration and other expsreg $37.4 million before ta$27.1 millior
after tax and $0.19 per share on a diluted bagisimon bargain purchase of $31.3 million befard after tax and $0.22er share on
diluted basis related to the acquisition of Interrinc., and an income tax benefit of $12.2 millipnmarily related to a favorakt
settlement of an income tax audit. Second quaesulis were impacted by restructuring, integratiad other expenses $24.9 millior
before tax, $19.9 million after tax and $0.14 peare on a diluted basis and an income tax benefit 8.4 millionrelated to a favorak
audit settlement of a U.S. income tax audit fomaquired company. Third quarter results were ingzhbly restructuring, integration ¢
other expenses of $27.3 million before tax, $25ilfian after tax and $0.1®er share on a diluted basis and an income taxnerpe
$13.4 millionprimarily related to the increase to a valuatidovaénce against existing deferred tax assets acréases to tax reserv
Fourth quarter results were impacted by restruaynintegration and other expenses of $59.8 milbefore tax, $43.6 milliomfter ta;
and $0.31 per share on a diluted basis and a rdidmaefit of $34.2 milliorfor the release of valuation allowances and theass c
existing reserves due to audit settlement and tetatxpiration, partially offset by the establishimeftax reserves against deferred
assets that were determined to be unrealizable.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

For an understanding of Avnet and the significactdrs that influenced the Compasiperformance during the past three fiscal yehe
following discussion should be read in conjunctwaith the description of the business appearingeémll1 of this Report and the consolid:
financial statements, including the related noted schedule, and other information appearing im 11& of this Report. The Company oper
on a “52/53 week” fiscal year. Fiscal 2014 , 20h8 2012 all contained 52 weeks.

There are references to the impact of foreign caydranslation in the discussion of the Compang'sults of operations. When the |
Dollar strengthens and the stronger exchange aitéise current year are used to translate the teesiiloperations of Avnet’ subsidiarie
denominated in foreign currencies, the resultingdnt is a decrease in U.S. Dollars of reportedlt®sGonversely, when the U.S. Do
weakens and the weaker exchange rates of the tyeanare used to translate the results of operainf Avnets subsidiaries denominatec
foreign currencies, the resulting impact is anéase in U.S. Dollars of reported results. In trecwassion that follows, results excluding
impact, primarily for EMEA, are referred to as “&xding the translation impact of changes in fore@gmrency exchange rates” ordhstar
currency.”

In addition to disclosing financial results thae atetermined in accordance with generally acceptadunting principles in the U
(“GAAP”), the Company also discloses certain nonABAfinancial information, including:

» Sales, income or expense items excluding the &tioslimpact of changes in foreign currency exclearages, as discussed ab

e Sales adjusted for certain items that impactybar-overyear analysis, which includes the impact of actjoiss by adjustin
Avnet'’s prior periods to include the sales of acquiresinmsses as if the acquisitions had occurred dbeganing of the earlie
period presented. In addition, the prior year sakesadjusted for (i) divestitures by adjusting Avs prior periods to exclude t
sales of divested businesses as if the divestihadsoccurred at the beginning of the earliestopepresented, and (ii) the tran:
of a portion of Avnet reverse logistics operations and a regional cdmgpgomponents operation at the beginning of fig€d £
from the Electronics Marketing (“EM”) operating gno to the Technology Solutions (“TS8perating group. Sales taking i
account the combination of these adjustments deereel to as “organic sales.”

e Operating income excluding (i) restructuringeigration and other expenses (Basstructuring, Integration and Other Expenses
this MD&A) and (ii) amortization of acquired intaide assets and other. Operating income excluditeg smounts is referred
as adjusted operating income.

The reconciliation of operating income to adjustedrating income is presented in the followingéabl

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)

GAAP operating income $ 789,94( $ 625,98, $ 884,16!
Restructuring, integration and other expenses 94,62 149,50: 73,58t
Amortization of intangible assets and other 46,78 32,37( 27,78¢

Adjusted operating income $ 931,34t $ 807,85. $ 985,53!

Management believes that providing this additiomdbrmation is useful to the reader to better assasd understand operat
performance, especially when comparing results piitbr periods or forecasting performance for fatperiods, primarily because manager
typically monitors the business both including amctluding these adjustments to GAAP results. Mamesge also uses these nGAAP
measures to establish operational goals and, ire s@ses, for measuring performance for compensptigyoses. However, analysis of res
on a non-GAAP basis should be used as a complemesmtd in conjunction with, results presenteddooadance with GAAP.

Results of Operations
Executive Summary

Sales for fiscal 2014 were $27.50 billion , an @age of 8.0% from fiscal 2013 sales of $25.46dwilli Organic sales increased 5.2é&
over year. EM sales of $16.54 billion increased®@dyer fiscal 2013 and organic sales in constameauay increased 8.2%ear over year. Th
increase in organic sales was primarily relatedrawth in the EMEA and Asia regions. TS sales d3.96 billion increased 5.7%ver fisca
2013 and organic sales in constant currency rerddiaeyear over year.
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Gross profit margin of 11.7% increased&sis points over the prior year. EM gross profgrgin remained flat year over year v
increases in the western regions being offset lajirdes in the Asia region primarily due to a higla@enount of highvolume fulfillment typ:
sales compared to fiscal 2013. TS gross profit maatpo remained flat year over year. The overaltéase in Avnet gross profit margin
due primarily to increases in sales and gross tpmbfEM EMEA driven in part by a recent acquisition

Consolidated operating income margin was 2.9% agpaoed with 2.5%n fiscal 2013. Both periods included restructuringegratiol
and other expenses and the amortization of intéegisets. Excluding these amounts from both pgriadjusted operating income margin
3.4% of sales in fiscal 2014 as compared to 3.2%al#s in fiscal 2013. EM operating income margoréased 3basis points year over yea
4.5% . The increase in EM operating income margin wamauily due to increases at EM Americas and EM Adiee primarily to
combination of reduced operating expenses as dt reSvecent restructuring and cost reduction atities as well as improved opera
leverage. TS operating income margin remainedyigtr over year at 2.9%with improvements at TS Asia being offset by ded in thi
western regions.

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group at Geography

Years Ended Percent Change
June 28, % of June 29, % of June 30, % of 2014 to 2013 to
2014 Total 2013 Total 2012 Total 2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)
Sales by Operating Group:

EM Americas $ 4,844.¢ 17.6% $ 5,263.¢ 20.7% $ 5,678. 22.1% (8.0% (7.9%
EM EMEA 5,094.¢ 18.5 4,096.( 16.1 4,203.: 16.4 24.4 (2.6)
EM Asia 6,604.( 24.0 5,734.¢ 225 5,051.: 19.6 15.2 13k

Total EM 16,544.. 60.1 15,094.. 59.3 14,933.: 58.1 9.€ 11
TS Americas 6,084.¢ 22.1 5,452.¢ 214 5,820.¢ 22.6 11.¢ (6.9
TS EMEA 3,151.; 11.5 3,181.¢ 12.5 3,205.¢ 12.5 (1.0 (0.7
TS Asia 1,719.t 6.3 1,729.¢ 6.8 1,748.. 6.8 (0.6) (1.9

Total TS 10,955.. 39.9 10,364.! 40.7 10,774 . 41.9 5.7 (3.9
Total Avnet, Inc. $ 27,499 $ 25,458. $ 25,707 8.C% (1.0%
Sales by Geographic Area:
Americas $ 10,929 39.7% $ 10,716.( 42.1% $ 11,499. 44 .8% 2.C% (6.9%
EMEA 8,246.: 30.0 7,277.¢ 28.6 7,408.¢ 28.8 13.2 (2.8
Asia/Pacific 8,324.: 30.3 7,464.. 29.3 6,799. 26.4 11.5 9.8

$ 27,499 $ 25,458 $ 25,707
Sales

Items Impacting Year-over-Year Sales Comparisons

During the past three fiscal years, the Companyiaed several businesses impacting both operatiogps, as presented in the follow
table. To facilitate more meaningful year-oyear comparisons, the discussions that follow ielarganic sales as well as sales on a rey
basis.
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Approximate

Annualized
Acquired Business Group & Region SalesV Acquisition Date
(Millions)
Fiscal 2014
MSC Investoren GmbH EM EMEA $ 461 October 2013
Nisko Semiconductors, Ltd. EM EMEA 18 August 2013
Seamless Technologies, Inc. TS Americas 13 July 2013
Total fiscal 2014 $ 492
Fiscal 2013
RTI Holdings EM Asia $ 78 April 2013
TSSLink, Inc. TS Americas 10 December 2012
Universal Semiconductor, Inc. EM Americas 75 December 2012
Genilogix TS Americas 23 November 2012
Brightstar Partners, Inc. TS Americas 14 November 2012
Magirus AG TS EMEA 633 October 2012
Tekdata Interconnections, Limited EM EMEA 10 October 2012
Internix, Inc. EM Asia 264 August 2012
C.R.G. Electronics, Ltd. EM EMEA 24 August 2012
Pepperweed Consulting TS Americas 12 August 2012
Mattelli Limited TS EMEA 1 July 2012
Altron GmbH & Co KG EM EMEA 34 July 2012
Total fiscal 2013 $ 1,17¢
Fiscal 2012
Ascendant Technology TS Americas & TS  $ 86 April 2012
EMEA
Nexicore Services TS Americas 85 April 2012
Controlling interest in a non-wholly owned entity EM Americas 62 January 2012
Pinnacle Data Systems TS Americas 27 January 2012
Canvas Systems TS Americas & TS 11¢€ January 2012
EMEA
Unidux Electronics Limited (Singapore) EM Asia 14t January 2012
Round2 Technologies TS Americas 54 January 2012
DE2 SAS EM EMEA 11 November 2011
JC Tally Trading Co. & Shanghai FR Internationahding EM Asia 99 August 2011
Prospect Technology EM Asia 14z August 2011
Amosdec SAS TS EMEA 83 July 2011
Total fiscal 2012 $ 912

(1) Represents the approximate annual sales éoac¢hjuired businessasost recent fiscal year prior to acquisition by Avand based up
average foreign currency exchange rates for sschlfyear.
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Fiscal 2014 Comparison to Fiscal 2013

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitarhl 2014 and 2018ales for the Company and its operating groupsgarac sale
(as defined earlier in this MD&A) to allow readexs better assess and understand the Comgasales performance by operating gr
Organic sales includes the effects of a divestitafra small business in TS Asia in December 201@ the exit of a small business in |
Americas in April 2013 that generated combined ahsales of approximately $20.0 million.

Transfer of

Operations 2014 to 2013
Sales as  Acquisition/Divested from EM to Organic  Organic Sales
Reported Sales TS® Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 16,544 $ 119.¢ $ — $ 16,664. 9.1%
TS 10,955.. — — 10,955.: 0.9
Fiscal 2014 $ 27,499 $ 119.¢ $ — $ 27,619. 5.2
EM $ 15,094 $ 627.1 $ (4439 $ 15,278.
TS 10,364.! 166.Z 443.2 10,973.¢
Fiscal 2013 $ 25458.¢ $ 7930 % — $ 26,252..

(1) To adjust reported sales for the impact of certpiarations transferred from EM to TS at the begigraf fiscal 201¢

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2014 were $27.500bill an increase of 8.0% , or $2.04 billipfrom fiscal 2013 consolidated sale
$25.46 billion . Organic sales (as defined eailiethis MD&A) increased 5.2% year over year andéased 4.8%n constant currency. T
organic sales increase was primarily due to orggrowth at EM as discussed further below.

EM sales of $16.54 billion for fiscal 2014 incred$e6% from fiscal 2013 sales of $15.09 billioEM organic sales in constant curre
increased 8.2%ear over year. On a regional basis, the Americgaric sales remained flat year over year. In EMib&re was strong grow
with organic sales increasing 8.8% in constantenay. Asia organic sales increased 13.8ar over year, which was primarily due
increased higlolume fulfillment type sales in fiscal 2014. Thigler growth rate in Asia resulted in a regionaftsh the mix of sales towa
Asia, which represented approximately 40% of t&tisl sales in fiscal 2014 compared to approximat@%y3n fiscal 2013. Such regional r
shift had a corresponding impact on fiscal 2014 @ibks profit margin and operating expense margin.

TS sales of $10.96 billion for fiscal 2014 incre&i$e7% from fiscal 2013 sales of $10.36 billio®rganic sales remained flat year ¢
year in constant dollars. In the Americas regioga-over-year organic sales increased 2.7% , offsebirgganic sales declines of 8.8
constant currency at TS EMEA. On a product levedwgh in hardware, software and services were a@rtoffset by declines in servers ¢
computing components.

Fiscal 2013 Comparison to Fiscal 2012

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitarhl 2013 and 2012ales for the Company and its operating groupsgarac sale
to allow readers to better assess and understarfddimpany’s sales performance by operating group.

2013 to 2012

Sales as Acquisition Organic Sales
Reported Sales Organic Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 15,094 $ 148.2 % 15,242. (2.5%
TS 10,364.! 153.¢ 10,518.: 9.0
Fiscal 2013 $ 25,458.¢ % 3022 % 25,761.. (5.9
EM $ 14,933.. $ 707.¢ $ 15,640.
TS 10,774.. 789.2 11,563.
Fiscal 2012 $ 25,707.! $ 1,496.¢ $ 27,204.:
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Consolidated sales for fiscal 2013 were $25.460bil| a decrease of 1.0% , or $248.6 milliolom fiscal 2012 consolidated sale:
$25.71 billion . Organic sales decreased 5.3% gear year and declined 4.2 constant currency. The organic sales decline pvesarily
due to the organic sales decline at TS.

EM sales of $15.09 billion for fiscal 2013 incredske1% from fiscal 2012 sales of $14.93 billioBEM organic sales in constant curre
decreased 1.2%ear over year primarily related to the Americagioa, which (i) experienced weaker demand andefijed the lower marg
commercial components business. On a regional ,dhsidAmericas organic sales decreased 13.€& over year primarily due to the decis
to exit the lower margin commercial components iess. For EMEA, despite the ongoing recessionands in the region, organic sales v
relatively flat year over year in constant curren&gia organic sales increased 6.$&ar over year, which was primarily due to a higheume
of fulfillment sales in fiscal 2013. The higher gt rate in Asia resulted in a regional shift i thmix of sales between the Asia region ant
western regions, which negatively impacted EM'salgross profit and operating income margins.

TS sales of $10.36 billion for fiscal 2013 decreb863% from fiscal 2012 sales of $10.77 billionrgénic sales declined 8.39&ar ove
year in constant dollars primarily due to weakdesan the western regions. In the Americas regj@a-overyear organic sales decrea
8.5% , and organic sales in EMEA decreased 1ltv®onstant currency. On a product level, decliimeservers and hardware were parti
offset by growth in storage, services, and software

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2014 was $3#Bon , an increase of $245.9 million , or 8.3%rom fiscal 2013 and an increast
2.4% on an organic basis in constant currency. &posfit margin of 11.7% remained essentially flatreasing by dasis points over the pr
year. EM gross profit margin remained flat yearropear primarily related to increases in the westegions being offset by declines in A
The decline in Asia gross margin was primarily tuehe effects of a higher volume of fulfillmentesiin fiscal 2014. With respect to regic
mix, the Asia region contributed 39.9% of EM salediscal 2014 from 38.0%n fiscal 2013, attributable to higher growth raiasAsie
including the impact of an increase in fulfilmesdles. TS gross profit margin remained flat year grear, with improvements in the EM
region being offset by a decline in the Americas.

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2013 was $28on , a decrease of $70.8 million , or 2.3%om fiscal 2012. Gross profit margin
11.7% decreased 17 basis points over fiscal 2002giess profit margin declined 3#asis points year over year primarily related tolides ir
gross margins in the EMEA region and a higher niigades from the Asia region. The decline in EMBE&AS$ margin was primarily due to
effects of market pressures associated with retishort product lead times. With respect to regiamix, the Asia region contribute38.0%
of EM sales in fiscal 2013 from 33.8ftfiscal 2012, attributable to higher growth raie#\sia, the effects of the acquisition of Integninc. ir
Japan, and lower growth rates in the western regi®8 gross profit margin improved Bdsis points year over year, primarily driven bg
Americas and EMEA regions offset by a decreasesiia A

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SC&fenses”) were $2.34 billion in fiscal 2014 ,increase of $136.8 million or
6.2%, from fiscal 2013. This increase consisted pritgaof an increase of approximately $138.0 milliaiated to expenses from busine
acquired, and to a lesser extent from an approeim&18.0 million increase related to the translatimpact of changes in foreign curre
exchange rates. These increases were partiallgtdfis a decrease related to recent restructurinigcast reduction actions net of SG
expense increases related to inflation. In fis€Hl®, SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales webeahd as a percentage of gross p
were 72.6% as compared with 8.7% and 74.0% , r&sphg in fiscal 2013 SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profiVatiecrease
241basis points year over year due primarily to theeffies of recent restructuring and cost savingmastand from an increase in gross pr
partially offset by increases associated with rdgeatquired businesses that were not fully integgtdor the entire fiscal 2014 and the effec
inflation and other factors. SG&A expenses as aqrenge of gross profit at TS decreaseddsis points from fiscal 2013 due primarily to
benefits of recent restructuring and costs savangens and the increase in gross profit, partiaffget by the increases associated with rec
acquired businesses and the effects of inflati@hather factors.

SG&A expenses were $2.20 billion in fiscal 2013 jrecrease of $111.5 million , or 5.3%rom fiscal 2012. This increase consisted ¢
increase of approximately $184.4 million relatedet@enses from businesses acquired and the efiédtdlation and other factors, whi
increased the Company's SG&A expenses by an estin$§1.0 million. These increases were partialfgaifby a decrease of approxima
$100.0 million related to recent restructuring @odt reduction actions and a decrease of approgiyn$83.9 million related to the translat
impact of changes in foreign currency exchangesrdtefiscal 2013 , SG&A expenses as a percenthgales were 8.7%nd as a percentage
gross profit were 74.0% as compared with 8.1% &h@% , respectively, in fiscal 2015G&A expenses as a percentage of gross prdfih
increased 52basis points year over year, primarily due to tfiects of recent acquisitions as the related casings had not yet been fu
attained and due to declines in
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total gross profit dollars relative to operatingoerses. SG&A expenses as a percentage of grossgirdfS increased 34Basis points ye
over year due primarily to the effects of the daseein sales as previously described and, to arlessent, the effects of recent acquisitior
certain cost synergies had not yet been attained.

Restructuring, Integration and Other Expenses

During fiscal 2014, the Company took certain actionan effort to reduce future operating costéuiiog activities necessary to achi
planned synergies from recently acquired businedseaddition, the Company incurred integration atlder costs primarily associated v
acquired or divested businesses and for the caladmin of facilities. As a result, during fiscal 2Dthe Company recorded restructur
integration and other expenses of $94.6 milliorstRucturing expenses of $65.7 million consistefi5H.3 million for severanc&11.6 millior
for facility exit costs and asset impairments, &3P millionfor other restructuring expenses. Integration atherocosts including acquisiti
costs were $20.5 million and $8.8 million , respety. The Company also recorded a net benefitG8 $nillion for changes in estimates
restructuring liabilities established in prior ygaflhe after tax impact of restructuring, integmafiand other expenses was $70.8 milkon
$0.50 per share on a diluted basis.

Severance expense recorded in fiscal 2014 relatdgbtreduction, or planned reduction, of over @ @@ployees, primarily in operatiol
sales and business support functions, in conneetiincost reduction actions taken in both operatinoups, including reductions in rece!
acquired or integrated businesses. Facility exstprimarily consisted of liabilities for remaigifease obligations and the impairment of lonc
lived assets for facilities and information tectogyl systems the Company ceased using. Other raging costs related primarily to otl
miscellaneous restructuring and exit costs. Of#6®.7 million in restructuring expenses recordedndufiscal 2014 , $41.3 millionelated ti
EM, $23.1 million related to TS and $1.3 milliodated to corporate business support functions.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compancurred restructuring expenses related to itedations intended to achie
planned synergies from recent acquisitions aneédoce future operating costs. The Company alsatieduntegration and other costs prime
related to costs associated with recently acquitesinesses and restructuring related actions. resudt, the Company recorded restructu
integration and other expenses of $28.0 millionirduthe quarter, including restructuring costs @®$ million, integration costs of $¢
million, other costs of $1.9 million and a benédit changes in estimates for costs associatedpwithious restructuring actions of $1.6 milli
The taxeffected impact of restructuring, integration arideo expenses for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2@&6 $20.9 million and $0.15 §
share on a diluted basis. When all such restrugjlactions are substantially complete, which iseetgd to occur by the second quarter of f
2015, the Company expects to realize approxim&aB.0 million to $35.0 million in annualized opeénat cost benefits. When realized,
annualized cost savings are expected to benefitEttleoperating group by approximately $10.0 milliand the TS operating group
approximately $20.0 million to $25.0 million.

Integration costs are primarily related to the gmétion of acquired businesses, integration ofaregi business units and incremental ¢
incurred as part of the consolidation, relocationl &losure of warehouse and office facilities. ¢gmétion costs include consulting costs
information technology system and business oparatitegration assistance, facility moving costgalefees, travel, meeting, marketing
communication costs that are incrementally incuasd result of such integration activities. Alsoliuded in integration costs are increme
salary costs specific to integration, consolidataomd closure activities. Other costs consists milynaf professional fees incurred -
acquisitions, additional costs incurred for bussessdivested or exited in current or prior periogisy ongoing facilities operating cc
associated with the consolidation, relocation dedure of facilities once such facilities have beacated or substantially vacated, and ¢
miscellaneous costs that relate to restructuringggration and other expenses. Integration andr atbsts in fiscal 2014vere comprised 1
many different costs, none of which were individyahaterial.

During fiscal 2013 the Company took certain restructuring actionsettuce costs in both operating groups in resptmskeen curret
market conditions and incurred acquisition and graéon costs primarily associated with recentlyuaeed businesses. As a result,
Company recorded restructuring, integration anéroéxpenses of $149.5 million . Restructuring espsrof $120.0 million consisted $73.:
million for severance, $34.4 million for facilityxi costs and asset impairments, and $12.3 mifiawrother restructuring expenses. Integre
costs were $35.7 million and other costs were @aréfit of $3.2 million . The Company also recat@ebenefit of $3.1 milliofior changes i
estimates for restructuring liabilities establishegrior years. The after tax impact of restruictgy integration, and other expenses $2%6.+
million and $0.83 per share on a diluted basis.

During fiscal 2012 the Company took certain restructuring actionsetfuce costs in both operating groups in resptmskeen curret
market conditions and incurred acquisition and graéon costs primarily associated with recentlyuaeed businesses. As a result,
Company recorded restructuring, integration aneo#xpenses of $73.6 million . Restructuring expsraf $50.3 million consisted &83.-
million for severance, $12.0 million for facilityi costs and asset impairments, and $5.1 millan f
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other restructuring expenses. Integration costs @hdr costs primarily associated with acquisitiovevre $9.4 million and $17.2 million
respectively. The Company also recorded a benefi8@ millionfor changes in estimates for restructuring lialeifitestablished in prior yee
The after tax impact of restructuring, integratéomd other expenses was $53.0 million and $0.35kpeme on a diluted basis.

See Note 17, "Restructuring, integration and othgrenses” to the Company's consolidated finantaé¢mments included in this Anni
Report on Form 10-K for additional information rteld to restructuring, integration and other expsnse

Operating Income

During fiscal 2014 , the Company had operating inemf $789.9 million , representing a 26.M6rease as compared with fiscal 2
operating income of $626.0 million . Consolidatgueating income margin was 2.9% as compared wBlodn fiscal 2013. Both yea
included restructuring, integration and other exggsnand the amortization of intangible assets. ugkey these amounts from both ye
adjusted operating income was $931.3 million , .de@of sales, in fiscal 2014 representing a 15.88elase as compared with $807.9 milljon
or 3.2% of sales, in fiscal 2013. EM operating imeoof $747.9 million increased 17.AMar over year, led by EM EMEA with higher s:
and operating income compared to fiscal 2013, aitkd &l EM regions delivering increased operatingame in comparison to fiscal 20
EM's operating income margin increased 31 basistpgiear over year to 4.5%The increase in EM operating income margin wasuily
due to increases at EM Americas and EM Asia dumanily to a combination of reduced operating experes a result of recent restructu
and cost reduction initiatives as well as improegearating leverage, partially offset by increasesperating expenses at EM EMEA froi
recent acquisition, from which all synergies hae¢ yet been realized. TS operating income of $317ilBon increased 6.2%ear over ye:
and operating income margin remained essentialyafl 2.9% with improvements at TS Asia being offset by de3 in the western regio
Corporate net operating expenses were $134.4 milidiscal 2014 as compared with $126.9 milliorfigtal 2013 .

During fiscal 2013 , the Company generated opegatinome of $626.0 million , down 29.2% , as conagawith $884.2 milliorin fiscal
2012. Consolidated operating income margin was a8%ompared with 3.4% fiscal 2012. Both years included restructurimgegration an
other expenses and the amortization of intangibkets. Excluding these amounts from both yearsisted] operating income w&807.¢
million , or 3.2% of sales, in fiscal 2013 as comgghwith $985.5 million , or 3.8% of sales, in 8@012. EM operating income 8635.¢
million was down 16.3% year over year and operaiimupme margin decreased 88 basis points yearymaarto 4.2% The decline in El
operating income margin was primarily due to logesss profit margin as previously mentioned, whiesulted in lower operating income
the western regions, offset partially by the bdsedif restructuring and cost reduction actions niakeS operating income @299.1 millior
decreased 11.7% year over year and operating incoangin decreased 26 basis points to 2d% primarily to the effects of the decline
sales, as previously described and, to a lessengxhe effects of recent acquisitions. Corporgterating expenses were $126.9 millian
fiscal 2013 as compared with $112.9 million in 52012 .

Interest Expense

Interest expense for fiscal 2014 was $104.8 milliendecrease of $2.8 million , or 2.6% , compawitti fiscal 2013. The decrease
interest expense was primarily due to the repayraentaturity of $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes hétend of the third quarter of fiscal 2(
and a corresponding lower average borrowing ratés @lecrease was partially offset by higher averagstanding debt during fisc2D1<
compared to fiscal 2013 .

Interest expense for fiscal 2013 was $107.7 milliam increase of $16.8 million , or 18.5%ompared with fiscal 2012. The increas
interest expense was primarily due to a higheragedebt in fiscal 2013, which was impacted by&880.0 million of 4.875% Notes isst
during the second quarter of fiscal 2013.

SeeFinancing Transactionfor further discussion of the Company's outstandielgt.
Other Income (Expense), net

During fiscal 2014 , the Company recognized $6.lioni of other expense as compared with $0.1 millio fiscal 2013. The increase
other expense in fiscal 2014 is primarily is atitdble to fiscal 2013 benefiting from a realizethgan the sale of marketable securities anc
lesser extent higher interest income comparedst@fi2013. Fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 had sinaitaounts of net foreign currency excha
losses and both years were impacted by the deiaiuaitthe Venezuelan currency.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company recognized $0.lioni of other expense as compared with other ezpeari $5.4 millionn fiscal 2012
The decrease in other expense was primarily atafiidel to lower foreign currency exchange lossdsaal 2013
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compared to fiscal 2012. Included in other expéiesdiscal 2013 is a realized gain on the sale afrketable securities partially offset
foreign currency losses due to the devaluatiomefMenezuelan currency during fiscal 2013.
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Gain on Legal Settlement, Bargain Purchase and Othe

During fiscal 2014, the Company received award payand recognized a gain on legal settlemen22fi$million before tax, $13
million after tax and $0.09 per share on a dilliedis.

During fiscal 2013, the Company recognized a gairbargain purchase and other of $31.0 millb@fore tax, which consisted of (i
gain on bargain purchase related to the acquisitfdnternix of $32.7 million before and after tard $0.23er share on a diluted basis, wt
was partially offset by (ii) a loss of $1.7 millidrefore and after tax and $0.pé&r share on a diluted basis as a result of thestiture of a sme
business in the TS Asia region.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a garbargain purchase related to the acquisition afibnof $4.3 millionbefore an
after tax and $0.03 per share on a diluted basiaddlition, the Company recognized other expenk$s.4 million before tax, $0.9 millioaftel
tax and $0.01 per share on a diluted basis retatéte impairment of an investment in a small tetbgy company and the writeff of certair
deferred financing costs associated with the darlyination of a credit facility.

Income Tax Provision

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incorages was 22.2% in fiscal 2014 as compared witleféactive tax rate of 18.1%
fiscal 2013 . Included in the fiscal 2014 effecttas rate is a net tax benefit of $43.8 milliowhich is comprised primarily of (i) a tax benedf
$33.4 millionfor the release of valuation allowances againstriefl tax assets that were determined to be relizarimarily related to a lec
entity in EMEA (discussed further below), and @inet tax benefit of $7.0 millioresulting from losses related to an investment faraigr
subsidiary. The fiscal 2014 effective tax rateighler than the fiscal 201&ffective tax rate primarily due to a lower amoahtax benefits fror
audit settlements in fiscal 2014 as compared wafig013, partially offset by a greater tax benfefim the valuation allowances release
fiscal 2014 as compared with the amount releaséiddal 2013.

As of the end of fiscal 2014, the Company had gigdaraluation allowance against significant neergiing loss carryerward deferre
tax assets related to a legal entity in EMEA dyeatoong several other factors, a history of lossebat entity. In recent fiscal years, s
entity has been experiencing improved earningschvinequired the partial release of the valuatidovance to the extent the entity
projected future taxable income. In fiscal 2014 éiscal 2013, the Company determined a portiothefvaluation allowance for such le
entity was no longer required due to the expectadicuation of improved earnings in the foreseedbiere and, as a result, the Compa
effective tax rate was reduced upon the partisdast of the valuation allowance, net of the U.$.etgpense. In fiscal 2014 and 2013,
valuation allowance released associated with tiNKEEE legal entity was $33.6 million and $27.1 mitig respectively, net of the U.S.
expense associated with the release. Excludindpéhefit in both fiscal years related to the releafsthe tax valuation allowance associ
with such EMEA legal entity, the effective tax rébe fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 would have bee®®2vand 23.0% , respectively.

The Company will continue to evaluate the needafgaluation allowance against these deferred tsatagnd will adjust the valuat
allowance as deemed appropriate which, if reduceuald result in a significant decrease to the é¢ffedax rate in the period of the adjustme

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incaiaees was 18.1% in fiscal 2013 compared with aectiffe tax rate of 28.3% fiscal
2012 . The fiscal 2013 effective tax rate is lowlesn the fiscal 2012ffective tax rate primarily due to the fiscal 20éffective tax rat
including a net tax benefit of $50.4 million, whighcomprised of (i) a tax benefit of $41.6 millidor the reversal of previously establis
valuation allowances against deferred tax assatsatre now determined to be realizable, a poriowhich related to a legal entity in EMI
(discussed further above), (ii) net favorable asdttlements resulting in a benefit of $33.2 millipartially offset by (iii) a tax expense of $2
million primarily related to the establishment of@uation allowance against deferred tax assatsvibre determined to be unrealizable du
fiscal 2013.

Avnet's effective tax rate is primarily a functiohthe tax rates in the numerous jurisdictions Imclu it does business applied to the
of income before taxes. The effective tax rate miagy year over year as a result of changes in émuirements in these jurisdictio
management's evaluation of its ability to genesatfficient taxable income to offset net operatiagsl carryforwards and the establishmen
liabilities for unfavorable outcomes of tax positsotaken on certain matters that are common tomatitbnal enterprises and the actual outc
of those matters.

Net Income

As a result of the factors described in the premgdections of this MD&A, the Company’s net incomédiscal 2014 was $545.6 million
or $3.89 per share on a diluted basis, compareld mat income of $450.1 million , or $3.21 per shanea diluted basis, in fiscal 20H8i
$567.0 million , or $3.79 per share on a dilutesis®an fiscal 2012 .

26




Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Company generated $237.4 million of cash frisvoperating activities in fiscal 2014 as compaieé cash generation $696.:
million in fiscal 2013 . These operating cash floave comprised of: (i) cash flows generated fromimeome, adjusted for the impact of non
cash and other items, which includes depreciatimh @mortization expenses, deferred income taxesk-iased compensation expense
other noneash items (primarily, provisions for doubtful aoats and periodic pension costs) and (ii) cash dlaxsed for, or generated frc
working capital and other, excluding cash and eaghivalents. Cash used for working capital androtfes $564.3 million during fiscal 2014
including increases in receivables of $306.9 millicinventories of $226.1 million , and a decreasaccrued expenses and other$8D.(
million , partially offset by an increase in acctaipayable of $48.7 million Receivables and inventories days on hand hashmentge
significantly from the end of fiscal 2013.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company generated $696IRom of cash from operating activities as comphreith $528.7 millionin fiscal
2012 . Cash generated by working capital and otfeex $47.5 million during fiscal 2013 , resultingrr a decrease in inventories $#25.°
million , partially offset by a decrease in accaupayable and accrued expenses and other of $7li@rand $5.2 million, respectively, ar
an increase in receivables of $94.2 millioRuring fiscal 2013, net days outstanding andivatees days on hand did not change significi
from the end of fiscal 2012.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2014, the Company repaid upon maturity the $300.0 arnillof 5.875% Notes due in March 2014. The Compauagive!
proceeds of $38.8 million and $255.0 millimm net borrowings of bank and other debt, andateounts receivable securitization progi
respectively. In addition, during fiscal 2014 , tBempany used $82.8 million and $8.6 millioh cash to pay quarterly cash dividend:
common stock and to repurchase common stock uhdecoempany's share repurchase program.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company repaid $490.9 ionllunder the accounts receivable securitization pragaad its revolving crec
facility. The Company also received net proceed$3#9.3 million from the issuance of $350 millioh40875% Notes due December 1, 2(
In addition, during fiscal 2013, the Company us07%2 millionof cash to repurchase common stock under the Coytgpahare repurche
program.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company received proceefl$595.8 million, primarily from borrowings under the accounts reable
securitization program and bank credit facilitiesaddition, the Company used $318.3 millieihcash to repurchase common stock unde
Company's share repurchase program.

Other financing activities, net, during fiscal 2012013 and 201%ere primarily a result of cash received for thereise of stock optiol
and the associated excess tax benefit.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During fiscal 2014 , the Company used $116.9 niillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired] $123.2 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to information systéevelopment costs and computer hardware and a@ftpurchases.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company used $262.3 nrillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired] $97.4 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to information systéevelopment costs and computer hardware and a@ftpurchases.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company used $313.2 nrillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquirew #128.7 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to information systéevelopment costs and computer hardware and aaftexpenditures.

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangespéuath short-term and lortgrm, to fund its operations in addition to cashagate!
from operations. The Company also uses diversiedrces of funding so that it does not become pwigpendent on one source an
achieve lower cost of funding through these différ@ternatives. These financing arrangements dechublic bonds, short-term and lotegr
bank loans and an accounts receivable securitizgiogram. For a detailed description of the Compamxternal financing arrangeme
outstanding at June 28, 2014 , refer to Note Aeacbnsolidated financial statements appearinggin IL5 of this Report.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s césitaicture as of the end of fiscal 20ddth a comparison with the end of fis
2013:

June 28, % of Total June 29, % of Total
2014 Capitalization 2013 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)

Short-term debt $ 865,08t 12.2% $ 838,19 13.2%
Long-term debt 1,213,81. 17.4 1,206,99: 19.1
Total debt 2,078,90: 29.¢ 2,045,18: 32.5
Shareholders’ equity 4,890,19 70.2 4,289,12! 67.7
Total capitalization $  6,969,09 100.( $ 6,334,30 100.(

Financing Transactions

During fiscal 2014, the Company had a five-yeaf@hillion senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credit Facility") with
syndicate of banks, which expires in November 201fder the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company majest from various interest r:
options, currencies and maturities. There were@fdllion in borrowings outstanding under the 201£&dit Facility as of June 28, 205hc
$6.7 million as of June 29, 2013 .

In August 2013, the Company amended and extendedcitounts receivable securitization program (fBegram”)with a group ¢
financial institutions to allow the Company to salh a revolving basis, an undivided interest ofta$800.0 million in eligible receivabl
while retaining a subordinated interest in a portad the receivables. The Program does not quédifysale accounting treatment and, :
result, any borrowings under the Program are rexxbesds debt on the consolidated balance sheetPrbiggam has a one-yei@rm that expire
at the end of August 2014 , at which time it is exted to be renewed for another one to two yearsoamparable terms. There we$615.(
million in borrowings outstanding under the Prograsnof June 28, 2014 and $360.0 as of June 29, 2Bi&rest on borrowings is calcula
using a base rate or a commerical paper rate mpsead of 0.35%. The facility fee is 0.35% .

Notes outstanding at June 28, 2014 consisted of:
*  $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, :
*  $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 156
»  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due June 15, -
*  $350.0 million of 4.875% Notes due December 1, :

The Company also has several small lines of craait other forms of bank debt in various foreignataans to fund the shotérmr
working capital, foreign exchange, overdraft anteleof credit needs of its wholly owned subsidiarin EMEA, Asia, Latin America a
Canada. Avnet generally guarantees its subsidianta@gyations under these facilities. Outstandingrém@imgs under such forms of debt a:
the end of fiscal 2014 was $253.7 million .

Covenants and Conditions

The Program requires the Company to maintain eertahimum interest coverage and leverage ratiogrder to continue utilizing tt
Program. The Program also contains certain covenaatating to the quality of the receivables sdfdthese conditions are not met,
Company may not be able to borrow any additionatifuand the financial institutions may consides #n amortization event, as defined ir
Program agreements, which would permit the findniriatitutions to liquidate the accounts receivabkold to cover any outstand
borrowings. Circumstances that could affect the gamy’s ability to meet the required covenants and canditof the Program include 1
Companys ongoing profitability and various other economitarket and industry factors. Management does ali¢Je that the covenal
under the Program limit the Compasyability to pursue its intended business strateigits future financing needs. The Company we
compliance with all covenants of the Program a3uofe 28, 2014 .

The 2012 Credit Facility contains certain covenavith various limitations on debt incurrence, shampurchases, dividends, investm:
and capital expenditures and also includes findrmaenants requiring the Company to maintain mimminterest coverage and lever
ratios. Management does not believe that the caxsrniathe 2012 Credit Facility limit the Company’s

28




ability to pursue its intended business strategitofuture financing needs. The Company was in g@ance with all covenants of the 2(
Credit Facility as of June 28, 2014 .

Seeliquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s aafaility under these various facilities.
Liquidity

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $&a8i6n as of June 28, 2014 , of which $815.4 millwas held outside the U.S.
of June 29, 2013 , the Company had cash and casbaénts of $1.01 billion , of which $918.4 milliavas held outside of the U.S.

As of June 28, 2014 , the Company had a combintd borrowing capacity of $1.80 billionnder the 2012 Credit Facility and
Program. There were $12.0 million in borrowingsstamding and $2.0 milliom letters of credit issued under the 2012 Creditility anc
$615.0 million outstanding under the Program. Dgiiscal 2014, the Company had an average daily balance ouisnohder the 201
Credit Facility of approximately $7.0 million and34.0 million under the Program. During fiscal 2Q1tBe Company had an average ¢
balance outstanding under the 2012 Credit Faafigpproximately $5.0 million and $570.0 millionder the Program.

Liquidity is subject to many factors, such as ndrinssiness operations as well as general econdmancial, competitive, legislativ
and regulatory factors that are beyond the Companghtrol. Cash balances generated and held ingfotecations are used for ongo
working capital, capital expenditure needs anduppsrt acquisitions. These balances are curremiheated to be permanently reinve:
outside the United States. If these funds were egéat general corporate use in the United StatesCompany would incur significant inco
taxes to repatriate cash held in foreign locatidmg,only to the extent the repatriated cash iexicess of any outstanding intercompany |
due to Avnet, Inc. from foreign subsidiaries. Irdaidn, local government regulations may restriet Companys ability to move funds amo
various locations under certain circumstances. lgameent does not believe such restrictions wouldt lihe Companys ability to pursue i
intended business strategy.

During fiscal 2014 , the Company utilized $116.9lion of cash, net of cash acquired, for acquisitiortee Tompany has made, i
expects to continue to make, strategic investm#mtsugh acquisition activity to the extent the istraents strengthen Avnstcompetitiv
position and/or meet management’s return on caipitakholds.

In addition to continuing to make investments igusitions, as of June 28, 2014he Company may repurchase up to an aggreg
$215.9 million of the Compang’common stock through a $750.0 million share repase program approved by the Board of Directogsior
years. The Company plans to repurchase stock fimm o time at the discretion of management, suli@strategic considerations, mal
conditions and other factors. The Company may teatei or limit the share repurchase program at iamg without prior notice. The timing a
actual number of shares purchased will depend\@ariaty of factors such as share price, corporateragulatory requirements, and prevai
market conditions. Since the beginning of the repase program through the end of fiscal 2014 Gbmpany has repurchas&8.1 millior
shares at an average market price of $29.51 pee $ba total cost of $534.1 million Shares repurchased were retired. Additionallg
Company currently expects to pay quarterly casiddinds on shares of its common stock, subject poosal of the Board of Directors. Duri
fiscal 2014 , the Company paid cash dividends @& &8&nillion on its common stock or $0.15 per shamea quarterly basis.

In July 2014, subsequent to the end of fiscal 2@d,Company terminated the 2012 Credit Facilitg entered into a fivgear $1.2
billion senior unsecured revolving credit facilifhe "2014 Credit Facility") with a syndicate ofrtks, consisting of revolving credit faciliti
and the issuance of up to $150.0 million of letrsredit. Subject to certain conditions, the 2@rédit Facility may be increased up to $:
billion. Under the 2014 Credit Facility, the Compamay select from various interest rate optionsremcies and maturities. The 2014 Cr
Facility contains certain covenants, which are wriglly similar to those covenants containedhia 2012 Credit Facility. The 2014 Cre
Facility is scheduled to mature in July 2019.

During periods of weakening demand in the electratmponent and enterprise computer solutions tnguthe Company typical
generates cash from operating activities. Conwgrset Company is more likely to use operating déshs for working capital requiremet
during periods of higher growth.

Management believes that Avnet's available borrgwiapacity, its current cash on hand and the Coyipaxpected ability to gener
operating cash flows in the future will be suffitido meet its future liquidity needs. The Compaigo may issue debt or equity securitie
the future and management believes the Companyhaik adequate access to the capital marketspdfee

The following table highlights the Company'’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two fiscal wear
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, Percentage
2014 2013 Change
(Dollars in millions)

Current Assets $ 8,954.. $ 8,356.¢ 7.1%
Quick Assets 6,149.t 5,878.: 4.€
Current Liabilities 4,978.¢ 4,821. 3.3
Working Capital? 3,975. 3,5635. 12.£
Total Debt 2,078.¢ 2,045.; 1.€
Total Capital (total debt plus total shareholdeguity) 6,969.: 6,334.: 10.C
Quick Ratio 1.2:1 1.2:1
Working Capital Ratio 1.8:1 1.7:1
Debt to Total Capital 29.8% 32.2%

(1) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit

The Company'’s quick assets (consisting of cashcast equivalents and receivables) increased 4.@% June 29, 2013 tdune 28, 201
primarily due to an increase in receivables assalt®f the corresponding year-owgrar increase in sales, partially offset by a desedn cas
and cash equivalents. These factors, when combittbdan increase in inventories and prepaid anerotiurrent assets, led to an increas
current assets of 7.1% . Current liabilities insexh 3.3% primarily due to an increase in accouaigliple, shorterm debt, and accru
expenses and other. As a result of the factordradteve, total working capital increased by 12.4%mdy fiscal 2014 Total debt increased
1.6% , primarily due to the increase in borrowingsler bank credit facilities, total capital incredsl0.0%and the debt to total capital re
decreased to 29.8% .

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligagioutstanding as of June 28, 2014 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one yeaf $ 2,080.¢ $ 865.1] $ 565.6 $ — % 650.(
Interest expense on long-term nofés $ 304t % 797 $ 9.5 $ 69.2 $ 58.¢
Operating leases $ 377 $ 91 $ 125.C $ 69.2 $ 92.C

(1) Excludes discount on lorigkm notes

(2) Represents interest expense due on terg-notes with fixed interest rates and varialdbtdassuming the same interest rate as of th
of fiscal 2014.

At June 28, 2014 , the Company had an estimatédityafor income tax contingencies of $128.2 nahi, which is not included in ti
above table. Cash payments associated with thiersetit of these liabilities that are expected tgph&l within the next 12 months $¥.¢
million . The settlement period for the remaining amounthe unrecognized tax benefits, including relatedrued interest and penalt
cannot be determined and therefore was not incliniélde table. The Company does not currently rerwe material longerm commitmen
for purchases of inventories from suppliers ordapital expenditures.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been mépa accordance with GAAP. The preparation oséheonsolidate
financial statements requires the Company to makienates and assumptions that affect the reportealiats of assets, liabilities, sales
expenses. These estimates and assumptions are Umethe Compang’continuous evaluation of available informationlinling historice
results and anticipated future events. Actual tesuhy differ materially from these estimates.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defineisalréiccounting policies as those that are, in rgangents view, most important
the portrayal of the Comparg/financial condition and results of operations #rat require significant judgments and estimatésnagemer
believes the Company’s most critical accountinggies relate to:

Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfuloaots for estimated losses primarily resulting froostomer defaults. Bad d
expense and the related allowance for doubtful@isos determined based upon historic customeruttegxperience as well as the Company
regular assessment of the financial condition ©titstomers. Therefore, if actual collection exgrase or the financial condition of custorn
were to change, management would evaluate whedljiestenents to the allowance for doubtful accoundsreecessary.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(fins— first out) or estimated market value. Then@any’s inventories include high-
technology components, embedded systems and cargpetthnologies sold into rapidly changing, cydliead competitive markets wher
such inventories may be subject to declines in starlllue or technological obsolescence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories folreegcobsolescence or other factors that may remaemtories less marketable. Write-
downs are recorded so that inventories reflectapproximate net realizable value and take into aetcthe Company contractual provisiol
with its suppliers, which may provide certain pattens to the Company for product obsolescencepaitg erosion in the form of rights
return and price protections. Because of the largaber of products and suppliers and the complefithanaging the process around f
protections and stock rotations, estimates are megarding reductions to the value of inventorigdditionally, assumptions about futi
demand, market conditions and decisions to diseoaticertain product lines impact the evaluatiorwbéther to writedown inventories.
assumptions about future demand change or actufitinzonditions are less favorable than those asdurg management, management w
evaluate whether additional writkswns of inventories are required. In any caseyadatet realizable values could be different frdmst
currently estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management's judgment is required in determinirgpine tax expense, measuring deferred tax assetadildies and the valuatic
allowances recorded against net deferred tax aSdwtsrecoverability of the Company's net operalosg carryforwards is dependent upon
ability to generate sufficient future taxable in@nm certain jurisdictions. In addition, the Compatonsiders historic levels of incor
expectations and risk associated with estimatéstofe taxable income and ongoing prudent and iié&asax planning strategies in assessin
need for valuation allowances. Should the Compagterdhine that it is not able to realize all or paifrits deferred tax assets in the fut
additional valuation allowances may be recordednagidhe deferred tax assets with a correspondiogease to income tax expense in
period such determination is made. Similarly, sdahle Company determine that it is able to readitter part of its deferred tax assets
have an associated valuation allowance establithed;ompany may release a valuation allowance avitbrresponding benefit to income
expense in the period such determination is made.

The Company establishes contingent liabilities fotentially unfavorable outcomes of positions takencertain tax matters. The
liabilities are based on management's assessmemheather a tax benefit is more likely than not ® dustained upon examination by
authorities. There may be differences between ftitieipated and actual outcomes of these mattetsntlag result in changes in estimate
such liabilities. To the extent such changes imeges are necessary, the Company's effectiveatexmay potentially fluctuate as a resul
accordance with the Company's accounting policgrue interest and penalties related to unrecogntag benefits are recorded a
component of income tax expense.

In determining the Company's effective tax ratepaggement considers current tax regulations in timemous jurisdictions in which
operates, and exercises judgment for interpretadioth application. Changes to such tax regulationdigsagreements with the Compa
interpretation or application by tax authoritiesainy of the Company's major jurisdictions may havsignificant impact on the Compar
income tax expense.
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Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Expenses

The Company has been subject to the financial impintegrating acquired businesses and experdated to business restructurir
including those related to businesses acquiredrangsponse to market conditions. In connectiomwiich events, management is requirt
make estimates about the financial impact of sesfructuring and integration activities that areeirently uncertain. Accrued liabilities .
established based on estimates to cover the casvefrance, facility consolidation and closureséetermination fees, inventory adjustm:
based upon acquisition-related termination of sepmgreements and/or the egaluation of the acquired working capital assetar(arily
inventories and receivables), and the impairmefrg-lived assets. Actual amounts incurred coddlifferent from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing goodwill for impairmettte Company is required to make significant assionp about the future cash flo
and overall performance of its reporting units. Twmpany is also required to make judgments reggrifie evaluation of changes in even
circumstances that would more likely than not redtie fair value of any of its reporting units beltheir carrying value, the results of wh
would determine whether an interim goodwill impagmh test must be performed. Should these assumsptiojudgments change in the fui
based upon market conditions or should the straobiithe Companyg reporting units change based upon changes imdsssistrategy, t
Company may be required to perform an interim impant test which may result in a goodwill impairrheharge.

During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012he Company performed its annual goodwill impanintest and determined there was no goo
impairment at any of its reporting units. The Compdoes not believe there were any reporting uhaswere at risk of failing the fiscal 2C
goodwill impairment test. However, in fiscal 20fldere were two reporting units for which the estiedafair value was not substantially
excess of the current carrying value of the repgrtinit. The percentage by which the estimated alue exceeded carrying value 1
approximately 10%or TS Asia,which has less than 4% of the Compatoya goodwill and approximately 15% for TS EMBAbich has les
than 15% of the Company's total goodwill.

In order to estimate the fair value of its repagtimits, the Company uses a combination of an igcapproach, specifically a discour
cash flow methodology, and a market approach. Tibeodnted cash flow methodology includes marketigipant assumptions for, amc
other factors, forecasted sales, gross profit margiperating profit margins, cash flows, perpegwaivth rates and longerm discount rates,
of which require significant judgments and estimaby management which are inherently uncertain.s&h@ssumptions, judgments
estimates may change in the future based upon takelitions or other events and could result goadwill impairment charge.

Contingencies and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become a partptt otherwise be involved in, various lawsuitgiros, investigations and ott
legal proceedings in the ordinary course of condgdts business. While litigation is subject tté@ment uncertainties, management doe
anticipate that any current matters will have aariat adverse impact on the Company'’s financialdéton, liquidity or results of operations.

Revenue Recognition and Related Policies

The Company does not consider revenue recognitidieta critical accounting policy due to the natifrés business because rever
are generally recognized when persuasive evidehe@ arrangement exists, delivery has occurredeorices have been rendered, the
price is fixed or determinable and collectabilisyreasonably assured. Generally, these criterimnateupon the actual shipment or deliver
products or services to the customer depending tperunderlying sales terms. Accordingly, althouganagement makes certain estim
related to possible returns of products from cust@ndiscounts and rebates, such amounts do nateegignificant judgments or assumptions.

Provisions for sales returns are estimated basdustorical sales returns experience, credit merpeence and other known factt
Provisions are made for discounts and rebates,hadnie primarily timing or volumspecific, and are generally based on historicaldsean
anticipated customer buying patterns. Finally, rexes from maintenance contracts, which are defemeldrecognized as sales over the il
the maintenance agreement, are not material todthgolidated results of operations of the Company.

The Company evaluates the criteria outlined in ABdpic 605-45,Principal Agent Considerations in determining whether it
appropriate to record the gross amount of revermungs related costs or the net amount (gross feasrédated cost of sales or servic
depending upon whether the Company is the prinapahgent for certain sales arrangements. Gegetaiinsactions that qualify for 1
accounting treatment consist of the sale of supphkevice contracts for which the Company has ndicaing involvement or the performat
of logistics services to deliver product for whitte Company is not the primary obligor.
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The Company must also make estimates related teetiognition of consideration received from supgli®r price protection, product reba
marketing/promotional activities, or any other pags. Consideration received or due from these l&rpprograms are recognized wl
earned under the terms and conditions of the seipptograms as adjustments to product costs, lingedjeneral and administrative exper
depending upon the nature and contractual requitesmelated to the consideration received. Sonthesfe supplier programs may extend
one or more reporting periods.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 in th&lotes to Consolidated Financial Statemecdsitained in Item 15 of this Report for the disemssof recently issue
accounting pronouncements.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cashvii@tility associated with changes in interest saaed foreign currency exchai
rates by entering into financial arrangements, ftone to time, which are intended to provide annecoic hedge against all or a portion of
risks associated with such volatility. The Compaomptinues to have exposure to such risks to thenéxthey are not hedged.

The following table sets forth the scheduled méesgiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Jun@84 (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate deb® $ 159.7 $ 2526 % 3012 % — % — % 650.C $ 1,363.t
Floating rate debt $ 7052 % 12.C $ — $ — 3 — $ — 3 717.¢

(1) Excludes discounts on lorigrm notes

The following table sets forth the carrying valuel dair value of the Company’s debt and the avenaiggest rate at June 28, 2014 and
June 29, 2013 (dollars in millions):

Carrying Value at Fair Value at Carrying Value Fair Value at
June 28, 2014 June 28, 2014 atJune 29, 2013 June 29, 2013

Liabilities:

Fixed rate deb® $ 1,363t $ 1,474 $ 1562¢ $ 1,645.:
Average interest rate 5.4% 5.8%

Floating rate debt $ 717.¢ % 717.¢ % 4852 % 485.2
Average interest rate 1.1% 1.1%

(1) Excludes discounts on long-term notes. Fawevavas estimated primarily based upon quoted mamkees for the Company's longerr
notes.

Many of the Companyg' subsidiaries purchase and sell products in ccigerother than their functional currencies. Thibjscts th
Company to the risks associated with fluctuatiaomgareign currency exchange rates. The Companycexithis risk by utilizing natui
hedging (i.e., offsetting receivables and payakdasjvell as by creating offsetting positions thitotige use of derivative financial instrume
primarily forward foreign exchange contracts tyflicavith maturities of less than sixty days ("ecomo hedges"). The Company continue
have exposure to foreign currency risks to thergxteey are not hedged. The Company adjusts anyoeaic hedges to fair value through
consolidated statements of operations primarilywitother income (expense), net." Therefore, thenges in valuation of the underlying ite
being economically hedged are offset by the chamgéar value of the forward foreign exchange e¢ants. The amounts representing the
value of foreign exchange contracts, based upasl Reriteria under the fair value hierarchy, dessified in the captions “other current assets
or “accrued expenses and othexs’applicable, in the accompanying consolidatedrical sheets and were not material as of June 28, &
June 29, 2013. The Company did not have materiasgar losses related to the forward foreign exgleaocontracts during fiscal 2014
2013. A hypothetical 10% change in currency exckamages under the contracts outstanding at Jun2048,
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would result in an increase or decrease of appratdiy $50.0 milliorto the fair value of the forward foreign exchangatcacts, which wou
generally be offset by an opposite effect on theeulying exposure being economically hedged.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary dathistéed under Item 15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated tHeaiveness of tt
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (els ®rm is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@) under the Securities Exchange A
1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of theortipg period covered by this report on FormKL.OBased on such evaluation, the C
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer hawencluded that, as of the end of the period covdwedhis report on Form 1K; the
Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effecivg that material information required to be dised by the Company in 1
reports that it files or submits under the ExchaAgeis recorded, processed, summarized and rafposti¢hin the time periods specified by
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and oamd is accumulated and communicated to managemnehiding the Company’
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, as appropriate to allow timely decisigrgarding required disclosure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 , thereravao changes to the Compasiyniternal control over financial reporting (asidedl ir
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that have niallgraffected, or are reasonably likely to matlyiaffect, the Companyg internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offieerd Chief Financial Officer, is responsible fotagdishing an
maintaining adequate internal control over finahc@porting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 18(6{f) under the Exchange Act. 1
Companys internal control over financial reporting is dgmd to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliadility of financial reportin
and the preparation of financial statements foemel purposes in accordance with generally acdegateounting principles in the United St:
of America. Because of inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, cont
may become inadequate because of changes in aorglitr the degree of compliance with policiesrocpdures may deteriorate. Manager
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofGbenpany’s internal control over financial repogtias of June 28, 2014In making thi
assessment, management used the 1992 framewotMigstd inInternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisaioth concluded that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financ
reporting as of June 28, 2014 .

The Company’s independent registered public acaogrrfirm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenedstltee Companys interna
controls over financial reporting as of June 28,£20as stated in its audit report which is inciitierein.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.

35




PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compardefinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated ¢chield on November 6, 2014 .

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compardeéfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated ¢chield on November 6, 2014 .

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiinagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpa@mtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatedeckeld on November 6, 2014 .

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abatector Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders anticipatededéld on November 6, 2014 .

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpa@mtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatedeckeld on November 6, 2014 .
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

1.

3.

a. The following documents are filed as part of fReport:

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Fiier8tatements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 28, 2014 awed2®y 2013

_Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yemded June 28, 2014, June 29, 2013 and June BB, 20

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incominéoyears ended June 28, 2014, June 29, 2013 and
June 30, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityferyears ended June 28, 2014, June 29, 2013, and
June 30, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaied June 28, 2014, June 29, 2013 and June B®, 20
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule Il (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) fbe years ended June 28, 2014, June 29, 2013 and
June 30, 2012

Schedules other than that above have been omitteslibe they are not applicable or the requirednrdton is shown in the

financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&fd)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: August 8, 2014

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personosé signature appears below hereby authorizes yaras each «
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and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, arfteotdocuments in connection therewith, with theuides and Exchange Commission, hel
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact, or their substitute, may do or cause to dreecby virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bélpthe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitiescattid on August 8, 2014 .

Signature Title
/sI RICHARD HAMADA Chief Executive Officer and Director
Richard Hamada (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ WILLIAM H. SCHUMANN, Il
William H. Schumann, Il

Chairman of the Board and Director

/sl WILLIAM J. AMELIO

Director
William J. Amelio
/s/ J. VERONICA BIGGINS Director
J. Veronica Biggins
/sl MICHAEL A. BRADLEY Director
Michael A. Bradley
/s/ R. KERRY CLARK Director
R. Kerry Clark
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/sl FRANK R. NOONAN Director
Frank R. Noonan
/sl RAY M. ROBINSON Director
Ray M. Robinson
s/ KEVIN MORIARTY Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Kevin Moriarty
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgheets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Gmypas of June 28, 2014 adhghe 2¢
2013, and the related consolidated statements of dpasatcomprehensive income, shareholders' equity cash flows for each of the year
the three-year period ended June 28, 200l connection with our audits of the consolidafedncial statements, we have also auditet
financial statement schedule for each of the yaathe three-year period ended June 28, 2044 listed in the accompanying index. We

have audited the Company's internal control ovearfcial reporting as of June 28, 2014 , based ertiteria established imternal Control -
Integrated Frameworl(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgdinns of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Gom
management is responsible for these consolidateadial statements, for maintaining effective ingrcontrol over financial reporting, and

its assessment of the effectiveness of internalrabaver financial reporting, included in the aogmanyingManagement's Report on Inter
Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion oesth consolidated financial statements, an opiniorhe
financial statement schedule and an opinion orCibrapany's internal control over financial reportbased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal contreér financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of
consolidated financial statements included examginion a test basis, evidence supporting the amaoamds disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,esatliating the overall financ
statement presentation. Our audit of internal adndwver financial reporting included obtaining anderstanding of internal control o
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a neteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegdiésign and operating effectivenes
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwagsve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteaeferred to above present fairly, in all mategspects, the financial position of Avnet, |
and subsidiaries as of June 28, 2014 and Jundd28, ,2and the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of the years in the thre
year period endeJune 28, 2014 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted acamm principles. Also in our opinion, the relatddancia
statement schedule for each of the years in treetpear period ended June 28, 201dhen considered in relation to the basic conatdi
financial statements taken as a whole, presently,.fai all material respects, the information $stth therein. Furthermore, in our opini
Avnet, Inc. maintained, in all material respecteaive internal control over financial reportirag of June 28, 2014based on the critel
established ininternal Control - Integrated Frameworkl992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Owmgiuns of the Treadw
Commission.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 8, 2014

39




AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 28, June 29,
2014 2013
(Thousands, except share amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 928,97. $ 1,009,34.
Receivables, less allowances of $96,382 and $95r65pectively 5,220,52 4,868,97
Inventories 2,613,36. 2,264,34
Prepaid and other current assets 191,33 214,22:
Total current assets 8,954,19! 8,356,87:
Property, plant and equipment, net 534,99¢ 492,60t
Goodwill 1,348,46! 1,261,28
Intangible assets, net 184,30t 172,21.
Other assets 233,54: 191,69¢
Total assets $ 11,25551 $ 10,474,68

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt $ 865,08t $ 838,19
Accounts payable 3,402,36! 3,278,15;
Accrued expenses and other 711,36¢ 705,10:

Total current liabilities 4,978,82 4,821,44.
Long-term debt 1,213,81. 1,206,99.
Other liabilities 172,68« 157,11¢

Total liabilities 6,365,32. 6,185,55!

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000esh@sued 138,285,825 shares and

137,126,784 shares, respectively 138,28t 137,12
Additional paid-in capital 1,355,66. 1,320,90
Retained earnings 3,257,40 2,802,96!
Accumulated other comprehensive income 139,51. 28,89:
Treasury stock at cost, 36,836 shares and 38,288slrespectively (675) (769

Total shareholders’ equity 4,890,19: 4,289,12!
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1125551 $§  10,474,68

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands, except share amounts)

Sales $ 2749965 $ 2545892 $  25,707,52
Cost of sales 24,273,92 22,479,12 22,656,96
Gross profit 3,225,73. 2,979,80. 3,050,55
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,341,16: 2,204,31! 2,092,80
Restructuring, integration and other expenses 94,62: 149,50: 73,58¢
Operating income 789,94( 625,98: 884,16!
Other (expense) income, net (6,092) (74) (5,447
Interest expense (104,82) (107,65 (90,859
Gain on legal settlement, bargain purchase and {fwtes 2 and 13) 22,10: 31,01 2,91¢
Income before income taxes 701,12 549,26! 790,78:
Income tax expense 155,52 99,19: 223,76
Net income $ 545,60« 450,07 $ 567,01
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 3.9t 3.2¢ § 3.8t

Diluted $ 3.8¢ 321 § 3.7¢
Shares used to compute earnings per share:

Basic 137,99: 137,95: 147,27¢

Diluted 140,11¢ 140,00: 149,55!
Cash dividends paid per common share $ 0.6C — —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended
June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Net income $ 545,60: $ 450,07 % 567,01¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other 108,75« 44,59 (370,41)
Pension adjustments, net 1,86: 30,13( (52,629
$ 656,22. $ 524,80( $ 143,97t

Total comprehensive income

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended June 28, 2014 , June 29, 2013 and Ji8te 2012

Accumulated

Balance, July 2, 2011

Net income

Translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $32,38

Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)

Stock-based compensation, including related taefitsrof
$4,442

Balance, June 30, 2012

Net income

Translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $12,06

Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)

Stock-based compensation, including related taefitsrof
$4,110

Acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 2)
Balance, June 29, 2013

Net income

Translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustments, net of tax of $5,013
Cash dividends

Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)

Stock-based compensation, including related taefitsrof
$8,432

Balance, June 28, 2014

Additional Other Total

Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’

Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity

(Thousands)

$ 152,83t $ 1,233,200 $ 2,29351 $ 377,21 $ (695 $ 4,056,07!
— — 567,01¢ — — 567,01¢
— — — (370,41} — (370,41Y)
— — — (52,62¢) — (52,62%)
(11,270 = (314,67) = = (325,94))
1,021 30,60¢ — — 2 31,627
142,58¢ 1,263,81 2,545,85: (45,837) (697) 3,905,73.
— — 450,07: — — 450,07:

_ — = 44,59, — 44,59;

— — — 30,13( — 30,13(
(6,620 = (192,96%) = = (199,58Y)
1,161 33,29: — — (67) 34,38t
— 23,79¢ — — — 23,79:
137,12 1,320,90 2,802,96! 28,89: (764) 4,289,12:
— — 545,60: — — 545,60«

— — — 108,75« — 108,75«

— — — 1,862 — 1,86
— — (82,759 — — (82,759
(208) (8,409 (8,616
1,367 34,76: — — 89 36,21¢
$ 138,28 $ 1,355,660 $ 3,257,40 $ 139,51 $ 675 $ 4,890,19:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Non-cash and other reconciling items:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2)
Other, net
Changes in (net of effects from businesses acquired
Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other, net
Net cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of notes in a public offering, net of &ste costs
Repayment of notes

Borrowings (repayments) under accounts receivadardization
program, net

Borrowings (repayments) under bank facilities atitbodebt, net
Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)
Dividends paid on common stock
Other, net
Net cash flows (used for) provided by financing\atés
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Cash proceeds from divestitures, net of cash didest
Other, net
Net cash flows used for investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatmnts
Cash and cash equivalents:
— (decrease) increase
— at beginning of year

— at end of year

Additional cash flow information (Note 15)

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
$ 545,60: $ 450,07 % 567,01¢
92,46« 88,33: 73,55
44,72« 32,34 27,78
(15,649 (120,019 11,78:
45,91¢ 43,67 35,731
— (31,01) (2,919
88,68 75,32’ 66,26
(306,872) (94,207 72,26
(226,14) 225,66 133,17¢
48,65 (78,839 (319,099
(79,970 (5,156 (136,85)
237,41¢ 696,19 528,71¢
— 349,25¢ —
(300,001 — —
255,00( (310,001 510,00(
38,76¢ (180,94) 85,81¢
(8,616 (207,19) (318,33)
(82,75%) — —
9,10¢ 4,792 5,59(
(88,497 (344,08) 283,07:
(123,24 (97,379 (128,65
(116,88 (262,30¢) (313,219
— 3,61z —
2,66¢ 3,01¢ 1,04¢
(237,459 (353,059 (440,829
8,16t 3,41¢ (39,43)
(80,372) 2,47¢ 331,53(
1,009,34. 1,006,86. 675,33:
$ 928,97 $ 1,009,34. $ 1,006,86

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation— The accompanying consolidated financial statememntside the accounts of Avnet, Inc. and all o
majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries (the ffany" or "Avnet"). All intercompany accounts ananisactions have been eliminated.

Reclassifications— Certain prior period amounts have been reclaskifd conform to the current-period presentation.

Fiscal year— The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscat,y@hich ends on the Saturday closest to June B@ghal 2014 , 2013
and 2012 all contained 52 weeks. Unless othernaged, all references to “fiscal 2014 ” or any othgear” shall mean the Comparsyfisca
year.

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith generally accepted accounting principlesthe
United States ("GAAP") requires management to nestemates and assumptions that affect certain tegp@mounts of assets and liabilit
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the redaxmounts of sales and expenses durin
reporting period. Actual results could differ mad#ly from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith an original maturity of three months or lége
cash equivalents.

Inventories— Inventories, comprised principally of finishedaogts, are stated at cost (first-in, fim#t) or market, whichever is lower. 1
Company regularly reviews the cost of inventoryiasfaits estimated market value, considering aghits of return or price protection provic
by the Company’s suppliers, and records a lowewost or market writelown if any inventories have a cost in excess eif thstimated mark
value.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities ("veas") in which the Company has an ownership istavégreater than 50
and exercises control over the ventures are cafedeli in the accompanying consolidated financetestents. Nomontrolling interests in tt
years presented are not material and, as a resealincluded in the captic*accrued expenses and othén”the accompanying consolida
balance sheets. Investments in ventures in whietfCbmpany exercises significant influence but mott| are accounted for using the eq
method. Investments in ventures in which the Comisaownership interest is less than 2@¥d over which the Company does not exe
significant influence are accounted for using tbstenethod. The Company monitors ventures for sventircumstances that indicate tha
fair value of a venture is less than its carryiadue, in which case the Company would further nevige venture to determine if it is other-than
temporarily impaired. During fiscal 2014, 2013 &t 2 the Company did not have any material investsnia ventures.

Depreciation , amortization and useful livesThe Company reports property, plant and equipmeabst, less accumulated deprecia
Cost includes the price paid to acquire or constihe assets, required installation costs, interapitalized during the construction period,
any expenditure that substantially adds to theevaluor substantially extends the useful life ofexisting asset. Additionally, the Compi
capitalizes qualified costs related to softwareawttd or developed for internal use. Software ole@ifor internal use has generally k
enterprise-level business and finance softwareishaistomized to meet the Compangpecific operational requirements. The Compargynis
depreciation and amortization ("depreciation") fwoperty, plant and equipment when an asset is ipothe location and condition for
intended use.

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipmentdaagally provided for by the straiglite method over the estimated useful lives o
long-lived assets. The estimated useful lives fapprty, plant, and equipment are typically asoieB: buildings — 30years; machiner
fixtures and equipment — 2 - 10 years; informatiechnology hardware and software — 2 - 10 yeard;l@asehold improvements ever the
applicable remaining lease term or useful lifehibger .

The Company amortizes intangible assets acquirddisiness combinations using the straigig-method over the estimated econc
lives of the intangible assets from the date ofu@stion, which is generally between 2 - 10 years.

Long-lived assets impairment Longdived assets, including property, plant and equipimend intangible assets, are reviewec
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnetaindicate that the carrying amount of an assmipgmay not be recoverable.
impairment is recognized when the estimated undisisal cash flows expected to result from the uséhefasset group and its even
disposition is less than its carrying amount. Ap&inment is measured as the amount by which
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

an asset group's net book value exceeds its estinfiait value. For purposes of recognition and mesament of an impairment loss, lotiged
assets are grouped with other assets and liabikiti¢he lowest level for which identifiable cakiwfs are largely

independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdities. The Company considers a ldhgd asset to be abandoned when it has ceas:
of such abandoned asset and if the Company hastewt ito use or repurpose the asset in the fulive.Company continually evaluates
carrying value and the remaining economic usefeldrf all longlived assets and will adjust the carrying value dredrelated depreciation &
amortization period if and when appropriate.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase mricacquired businesses over the estimated fhilevassigned to tl
individual assets acquired and liabilities assuniggt Company does not amortize goodwill, but indteests goodwill for impairment at le
annually in the fourth quarter and, if necessaegprds any impairment resulting from such impairntesting. Impairment testing is perforn
at the reporting unit level, and the Company hastified six reporting units, defined as each &f three regions (Americas, EMEA, and /
Pacific) within the Compang'two reportable segments. The Company will perfan impairment test between scheduled annualifefsists
and circumstances indicate that it is more likert not that the fair value of a reporting unittthas goodwill is less than its carrying value.

In performing goodwill impairment testing, the Coamy may first make a qualitative assessment of lngrat is more-likely-thamot
that a reporting unit’s fair value is less thandisrying value to determine whether it is necgssaperform the twestep goodwill impairme
test. If the qualitative assessment indicates rihdse-likely-than-not that a reporting usitfair value is not greater than its carrying valihe
Company must perform a twaiep impairment test. The Company defines threvidie of a reporting unit as the price that woloidreceive
to sell the reporting unit as a whole in an ordérnsaction between market participants at thesareanent date. To determine fair value
reporting unit, the Company primarily uses the meoapproach methodology of valuation, which inclutiee discounted cash flow mett
and the market approach methodology of valuatiohickv considers values of comparable businessestimae the fair values of t
Company’s reporting units.

Significant management judgment is required whetimasing the fair value of the Compasyreporting units from a marl
participant perspective including the forecastifiguture operating results, the discount rates explected future growth rates used in
discounted cash flow method of valuation, and & dklection of comparable businesses that areindbeé market approach. If the estimz
fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the cagyvalue assigned to that reporting unit, goodisilhot impaired and no further analysi
required.

If the carrying value assigned to a reporting witeeds its estimated fair value in the first sttpn the Company is requirec
perform the second step of the impairment testhigistep, the Company assigns the fair value eféiporting unit calculated in the first ste
all of the assets and liabilities of that reportingt, as if a market participant just acquired taporting unit in a business combination.
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit defaed in the first step of the impairment testrothe total amount assigned to the asset:
liabilities in the second step of the impairmergt teepresents the implied fair value of goodwilltHe carrying value of a reporting ursit’
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwihe Company would record an impairment loss etju#the difference. If there is no st
excess then all goodwill for a reporting unit isiswlered impaired.

Foreign currency translatior— The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiors anslated into U.S. Dollars at the exchangesra
effect at the balance sheet date, with the relatadslation adjustments reported as a separate amenp of shareholdergquity ani
comprehensive income. Results of operations areslated using the average exchange rates prevdiliogighout the period. Transacti
denominated in currencies other than the functianatency of the Avnet subsidiaries that are paotythe transactions (primarily tre
receivables and payables) are translated at exehatgs in effect at the balance sheet date or sptifement of the transaction. Gains
losses from such translation are recorded in tisaalated statements of operations as a compafiéather income (expense), netr fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012, gains or losses on foraigrecy translation were not material.

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability metlwddaccounting for income taxes. Deferred income daagets ar
liabilities are recognized for the estimated futtew® impact of differences between the financiatesnent carrying amounts of assets
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defitireome tax assets and liabilities are measurad) uhacted tax rates in effect for the ye:
which those temporary differences are expecteatebovered or settled. The effect on deferrednmectax assets and liabilities of a chang
tax rates is recognized in earnings in the penpdhich the new rate is enacted. Based upon histioaind estimated levels of future taxi
income and analysis of other key factors, the Caompaay increase or decrease a valuation allowagamst its deferred tax assets, as det
necessary, to state such assets at their estimetedalizable value.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company establishes contingent liabilities gotentially unfavorable outcomes of positions takencertain tax matters. The
liabilities are based on managementissessment of whether a tax benefit is moreylitedn not to be sustained upon examination b
authorities. There may be differences between stiemated and actual outcomes of these mattersithgtresult in future changes in estim
to such contingent liabilities. To the extent sgblanges in estimates are required, the Compaefféctive tax rate may potentially fluctuat
a result. In accordance with the Company's accogmiblicies, accrued interest and penalties relaiadhrecognized tax benefits are reco
as a component of income tax expense.

Self-insurance— In the United States, the Company is primarillf-sesured for workers’‘compensation, medical, and general, prc
and automobile liability costs; however, the Compaiso has stop-loss insurance policies in placdéimi the Companys exposure |
individual and aggregate claims made. Liabilities these programs are estimated based upon olutsgjacidims and claims estimated tc
incurred but not yet reported based upon histotasd experience. These estimatessaitgect to variability due to changes in trendsoste
for outstanding claims and incurred but not recdrdaims, including external factors such as futaftation rates, benefit level changes
claim settlement patterns.

Revenue recognitioar-Revenue from the sale of products or servicesdegmized when persuasive evidence of an arrangeexésts
delivery has occurred or services have been redd#re sales price is fixed or determinable antectdbility is reasonably assured. Gener
these criteria are met upon either shipment owvesfito customers, depending upon the sales téviost of the Companyg’ product sales cor
from products Avnet purchases from a supplier asldshin inventory. A portion of the Compasysales are products shipped directly fror
suppliers to its customers ("drop-ship™). In sucbpaship arrangements, Avnet negotiates the price thigthcustomer, pays the supplier dire
for the products shipped and bears credit riskatiecting payment from its customers. Furthermanesuch dropshipment arrangements,
Company bears responsibility for accepting retafnsroducts from the customer even if the Compamyyrn, has a right to return the prodt
to the original supplier if the products are defext Under these sales terms, the Company servéiseagrincipal with the customer a
therefore, recognizes the gross sale and costebg#he product upon shipment by the supplier.

In addition, the Company has certain contractuldtimships with a limited number of its customarsd suppliers whereby Avr
assumes an agency relationship in the transadti®uch arrangements, the Company recognizes te@associated with serving as an a
in sales with no associated cost of sales.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recogrataily over the life of the contracts, generadlgging from one to three years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatessdimdated returns. Provisions are made for dissoaind rebates, which are prima
timing or volume specific, and are estimated basetistorical trends and anticipated customer byypiatterns. Provisions for returns and c
sales adjustments are estimated based on histsales returns experience, credit memo experiemt®#er known factors.

Vendor allowances and consideration— Consideration received from suppliers for price t@cton, product rebate
marketing/promotional activities, or any other piags are recorded when earned under the termsaamtitions of such supplier programs
adjustments to product costs or selling, generdladministrative expenses depending upon the nanatecontractual requirements relate
the consideration received. Some of these suppt@grams may extend over one or more reportingpgsrand may require managemer
make estimates.

Comprehensive income- Comprehensive income represents net income &ydar adjusted for certain changes in shareholdgrsty
Accumulated comprehensive income items impactingygehensive income typically include currency ttatien and the impact of t
Company’s pension liability adjustments, net of sge Note 4).

Stock-based compensatienThe Company measures stdeksed payments at fair value and generally recegrifze associated opera
expense in the consolidated statement of operativesthe requisite service period (see Note 123tokkbased payment is considered ve
for accounting expense attribution purposes wherethployee's retention of the award is no longaticgent on providing continued servi
Accordingly, the Company recognizes all stdi@sed compensation expense for an award on thé dms for awards granted to retiren
eligible employees or over the period from the gidate to the date retirement eligibility is acld@dy if less than the stated requisite se
period. The expense attribution approach for netéet eligible employees does not affect the ovemallount of compensation expe
recognized, but instead accelerates the recogrifiexpense.

Restructuring and Exit Activities— The Company accounts for employee terminationefienthat represent a otieae benefit il
accordance with ASC 420, Exit or Disposal Cost @dtions. If applicable, the Company records suahtscimto operating
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expense over the terminated emplogdeture service period beyond any minimum retengieriod. Other costs associated with restructusi
exit activities may include contract terminatiorstincluding operating leases and impairmentsrag-lived
assets, which are expensed in accordance with 28@#dd ASC 360, respectively.

Business Combinations- The Company accounts for business acquisitiongubie acquisition method of accounting and recarg,
identifiable definitelived intangible assets separate from goodwillatigible assets are recorded at their fair valuedas estimates as of
date of acquisition. Goodwill is recorded as th&deal amount of the purchase price consideragien the fair value assigned to the indivi
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assliim® of the date of acquisition. Contingent corsitien, which represents an obligation of
acquirer to transfer additional assets or equitgrasts to the former owner as part of the exch#rgpecified future events occur or conditi
are met, is accounted for at the acquisition daitevhlue either as a liability or as equity depagdn the terms of the acquisition agreement.

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a concentration of credit risk prindig
consist of cash and cash equivalents and tradeuatsceeceivable. The Company invests its exceds mamarily in overnight Eurodollar tin
deposits and institutional money market funds ligh highest rated financial institutions. To redaoedit risk, management performs ongt
credit evaluations of its customef@iancial condition and, in some instances, hagiobtl credit insurance coverage to reduce such Tist
Company maintains reserves for potential credisdssfrom customers, but has not historically expeed any material losses relate
individual customers or groups of customers in pasticular end market or geographic area.

Fair value— The Company measures financial assets and liaiilét fair value based upon an exit price, reptegethe amount th
would be received on the sale of an asset or paitansfer a liability, in an orderly transactioetveen market participants. Account
standards require inputs used in valuation tectesidar measuring fair value on a recurring or necurring basis be assigned to a hierarc
level as follows: Level 1 are observable inputd tieflect quoted prices for identical assets diliies in active markets. Level 2 are observ
marketbased inputs or unobservable inputs that are coratédd by market data and Level 3 are unobservapigs that are not corrobora
by market data. During fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2@i&re were no transfers of assets measured atfaie between the three levels of fair vi
hierarchy. The carrying amounts of the Comparfiiancial instruments, including cash and cashveadents, receivables and accounts pay
approximate their fair values at June 28, 2014tdubke short-term nature of these assets anditiabilAt June 28, 2014 and June 29, 20i&
Company had $19.7 million and $2.1 milliprespectively, of cash equivalents that were nreagisat fair value based upon Level 1 criteria.
Note 7 for further discussion of the fair valuetiod Compan’s longterm debt and Note 10 for a discussion of thevialue of the Company
pension plan assets.

Derivative financial instruments— Many of the Companyg' subsidiaries purchase and sell products in ccigenother than the
functional currencies. This subjects the Companthtorisks associated with fluctuations in foremnrency exchange rates. The Comy
reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging.(i@fsetting receivables and payables) as wellyasreating offsetting positions through the
of derivative financial instruments, primarily fomnd foreign exchange contracts typically with miies of less than 60 days ("econo
hedges"). The Company continues to have exposuferégyn currency risks to the extent they are exxnomically hedged. The Compi
adjusts any economic hedges to fair value throbghcbnsolidated statements of operations primavitiiin "other income (expense), ne
Therefore, the changes in valuation of the undeglytems being economically hedged are offset leydanges in fair value of the forw
foreign exchange contracts. The amounts represggtitnfair value of forward foreign exchange coctisabased upon Level 2 criteria undel
fair value hierarchy, are classified in the captidather current assets” or “accrued expenses #mer,bas applicable, in the accompany
consolidated balance sheets and were not mataried dune 28, 2014 and June 29, 2013. The Compadnyod have material gains or los
related to the forward foreign exchange contraaténg fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 .

The Company does not hedge its investments irorEdgn operations. The Company does not enterdativative financial instrumer
for trading or speculative purposes and monitoedfithancial stability and credit standing of ituioterparties.

Accounts receivable securitizatier The Company has an accounts receivable securitizatogram whereby the Company sells ce
receivables and retains a subordinated interestsandcing rights to those receivables. The sedeatibn program does not qualify for s¢
accounting and is accounted for as a secured fimgas discussed further in Note 3.

Recently issued accounting pronouncemests$n July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaffo("FASB") issued Accountil
Standards Update No. 2013; Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Wédlet Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tass, or
Tax Credit Carryforward Exists ("ASU 2013-11"). AS1013411 requires the netting of unrecognized tax ben¢fliTBs") against a deferr
tax asset for a loss or other carryforward thatldaypply in settlement of the uncertain tax
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positions. UTBs are required to be netted agaifisavailable samgurisdiction loss or other tax carryforwards, rathiban only again
carryforwards that are created by the UTBs. ASU3201 is effective for years, including interim persodithin those years, beginning a
December 15, 2013. The adoption of ASU 2Q13in the first quarter of fiscal 2015 is not exigecto have a material impact on the Compi
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standatdizdate No. 2014-08Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosuré
Disposals of Components of an Eni("ASU 201408"), which changes the criteria for determiningichhdisposals should be presente
discontinued operations and the related disclosegiairements. ASU 20148 is effective for the Company on a prospectiveida the firs
quarter of fiscal 2016 with early adoption permdttier disposals (or classifications as held foeyahat have not been reported in finar
statements previously issued. The adoption of ABIADS in the first quarter of fiscal 2016 is not exjgecto have a material impact on
Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargddte No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with Custom@isSU 201409"), tc
supersede nearly all existing revenue recognitisidance under GAAP. The core principles of ASU 2084are to recognize revenues w
promised goods or services are transferred to metwin an amount that reflects the consideratia iis expected to be received for tt
goods or services. Application of the requiremeft&SU 201409 may require more judgment and estimates withénrevenue recogniti
process compared to existing GAAP. ASU 2@P4is effective for the Company in the first quaéfiscal 2018 using either of two accept:
adoption methods: (i) retrospective adoption tohepidor reporting period presented with the opttonelect certain practical expedient:
defined within ASU 2014-09; or (ii) adoption withe cumulative effect of initially applying ASU 20:D9 recognized at the date of ini
application and providing certain additional distloes as defined within ASU 20D9. The Company is currently evaluating the potd
impact of the future adoption of ASU 2014-09 oncimsolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions and divestitures
2014 Acquisitions

During fiscal 2014 , the Company acquired threarn®sses with historical annualized sales of appnaiely $492.0 million Cash pai
for acquisitions during fiscal 2014 was $116.9 iwill, net of cash acquired and contingent consideralibe Company has not disclosed
pro-forma impact of the fiscal 2014 acquisitionsash impact was not material.

The gross consideration for the acquisitions wa9$2million , which consisted of the following (ihousands):

Cash paid $ 181,64!
Contingent consideration 38,08:
Total consideration $ 219,72t

The contingent consideration arrangements stiptietethe Company pay up to a maximum of approetye850.0 millionof additiona
consideration to the former shareholders of theuiged businesses based upon the achievement dircduture operating results. 1
Company estimated the fair value of the contingmmtsideration using an income approach, which gedan significant inputs, primar
forecasted future operating results of the acquiesinesses, not observable in the market andémiesents a Level 3 measurement as de
in ASC 820. The Company adjusts the fair valueaftingent consideration within operating expensea gesult of the passage of time al
there are changes to the inputs used in the inegpmach.

The Company has not yet completed its evaluatiahd@termination of the fair value of certain assetd liabilities acquired, primarily
the final assessment of working capital acquired Babilities assumed, and (ii) the final valuatioh certain income tax accounts. -
Company expects these final valuations and assessmél be completed by the first quarter of fisg@15, which may result in adjustment
the preliminary values presented in the followialé:
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Acquisition
Method Values
(Thousands)
Cash $ 64,76
Receivables 36,21¢
Inventories 95,20:
Other current assets 6,597
Property, plant and equipment and other non-cuassgts 28,15¢
Intangible assets 53,50:
Total identifiable assets acquired 284,43!
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and otherentrliabilities (66,849
Short-term debt (45,949
Other long-term liabilities (24,539
Total identifiable liabilities assumed (127,32)
Net identifiable assets acquired 157,11(
Goodwill 62,61¢
Net assets acquired $ 219,72

Goodwill of $52.0 million was assigned to the Etenics Marketing ("EM") reportable segment and geitidof $10.6 million was
assigned to the Technology Solutions ("TS") refieaegment. The goodwill recognized is attribiggtnimarily to expected synergies of
acquired businesses. The amount of goodwill thagxgected to be deductible for income tax purpdsesot material. The Compa
periodically adjusts the value of goodwill to reflechanges that occur as a result of adjustmentisetgreliminary purchase price alloca
during the measurement periods following the dafexquisition.

The Company has recognized restructuring, integmatind other expenses associated with fiscal 2atl4ther recent acquisitions, wt
are described further in Note 17.

2013 Acquisitions

During fiscal 2013 , the Company acquired 12 bussee with aggregate annualized sales of approXdyn&fel8 billion for a tota
consideration of $309.0 million , which consistédh® following (in thousands):

Cash paid $ 297,48:
Contingent consideration 11,46°
Total consideration $ 308,95:

The contingent consideration arrangements stiputeeCompany pay up to a maximum of approximate2.% million of additiona
consideration to the former shareholders of thesiaed businesses upon the achievement of certamtpg results. The Company estimi
the fair value of the contingent consideration gsam income approach which is based on signifiognits not observable in the market
thus represents a Level 3 measurement as defind8@820. The Company adjusts the fair value otingent consideration within operat
expenses as a result of the passage of time dmeréd are changes to the inputs used in the inappmach.

Cash paid for acquisitions during fiscal 2013 w2623 million, net of cash acquired, contingent consideratioth puwrchase pric
holdback reserves.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduah¢he respective acquisition d:
(in thousands):

Cash $ 29,27¢
Receivables 226,74
Inventories 91,79:
Other current assets 33,68¢
Property, plant and equipment 25,31
Other assets 47,29:

Total identifiable assets acquired 454,10:.
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and otheremnirliabilities (157,989
Long-term debt (66,367)
Other long-term liabilities (45,640

Total identifiable liabilities assumed (269,99

Net identifiable assets acquired 184,10¢
Goodwill 157,52:
Bargain purchase recognized (32,679

Net assets acquired $ 308,95!

Goodwill of $62.0 million was assigned to the EMpoetable segment and goodwill of $95.5 milliaas assigned to the TS report:
segment. The goodwill recognized is attributablenprily to expected synergies and the assembledfame of the acquired businesses.
amount of goodwill that is expected to be deduetiiolr income tax purposes is not significant. Tlen@any periodically adjusts the value
goodwill to reflect changes that occur as a restiddjustments to the preliminary purchase pridecation during the measurement per
following the dates of acquisition.

Included in "Other assets" in the above table i5.%3nillion of identifiable intangible assets (see Note 6) triglly all related t
customer relationships.

Supplemental information on an unaudited pro fobasis, as if the fiscal 2013 acquisitions had E®rsummated as of July 3, 201!
presented as follows:

Pro Forma Results For Years

Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012
(Millions)
Sales $ 25,771 $ 26,87:
Net income $ 454 % 587

With respect to the businesses acquired duringlfidd13, the Company is unable to determine the amoustalas and earnings of e
business subsequent to their respective acquiglites as each business has been integrated en@othpany.

Internix, Inc., a company publicly traded on thekffo Stock Exchange, was acquired in the first quaof fiscal 2013 through a ten:
offer. After assessing the fair value of the idéaltle assets acquired and liabilities assumedctimsideration paid was below fair value ¢
though the price paid per share represented a preia the trading levels at that time. During fls2@13, the Company recognized a gail
bargain purchase related to Internix of $32.7 mnillbefore and after tax and $0.23 per share olugedibasis.

In addition to the acquisitions described aboveajndufiscal 2013, the Company acquired the remagimion<controlling interest in
consolidated subsidiary for a purchase price thas ¥ess than its carrying value. The Company hfiscted the difference between
purchase price and the carrying value of the nartrotling interest as additional paid-capital in the accompanying consolidated statérol
shareholders' equity for fiscal 2013.
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2012 Acquisitions

During fiscal 2012 , the Company acquired 11 bussae with aggregate annualized sales of approXm@@i2.0 million for total
consideration of $413.6 million , which consistddt following (in thousands):

Cash paid $ 390,41(
Contingent consideration 23,17t
Total consideration $ 413,58

The contingent consideration arrangements stiputseCompany pay up to a maximum of approximatdl24$million of additiona
consideration to the former shareholders of thesiaed businesses upon the achievement of certamtpg results. The Company estimi
the fair value of the contingent consideration gsam income approach which is based on signifiognits not observable in the market
thus represents a Level 3 measurement as defind8@820. The Company adjusts the fair value otingent consideration within operat
expenses as a result of the passage of time dmeréd are changes to the inputs used in the ineppmach.

Cash paid for acquisitions during fiscal 2012 w&432 million, net of cash acquired, contingent consideratioth puwrchase pric
holdback reserves.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduah¢he respective acquisition d:
(in thousands):

Cash $ 75,01¢
Receivables 132,19!
Inventories 59,46
Other current assets 23,93¢
Property, plant and equipment 9,72¢
Other assets 104,36¢

Total identifiable assets acquired 404,70°
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and otherentrliabilities (230,74)
Other long-term liabilities (2,489

Total liabilities assumed (233,23()

Net identifiable assets acquired 171,47
Goodwill 246,42!
Bargain purchase recognized (4,319

Net assets acquired $ 413,58!

Goodwill of $180.0 million was assigned to the E&portable segment and goodwill of $66.4 milliwas assigned to the TS report:
segment. The amount of goodwill that is expecteblet@eductible for income tax purposes is not §iganit. The Company periodically adju
the value of goodwill to reflect changes that ocasiia result of adjustments to the preliminary pase price allocation during the measurel
periods following the dates of acquisition.

Included in "Other assets" in the above table B.$nillion of identifiable intangible assets (¢ete 6).

Supplemental information on an unaudited pro fobasis, as if the acquisitions had been consumnzated July 3, 2011, is presentes
follows:
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Pro Forma Results For Year

Ended
June 30, 2012
(Millions)
Sales $ 26,05:
Net income $ 56¢

With respect to the businesses acquired duringlfidd12, the Company is unable to determine the amoustalas and earnings of e
business subsequent to their respective acquigltes as each business has been integrated en@othpany.

Unidux Electronic Limited, a Singapore publiclydesd company, was acquired in January 2012 throughder offer. After assessing
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired Badilities assumed, the consideration paid waswdhir value even though the price paid
share represented a premium to the trading levefmatime. Accordingly, the Company recognizeghin on bargain purchase $4.3 millior
before and after tax and $0.03 per share on eedilbésis.

Divestitures

During fiscal 2013, the Company divested a smadiimess in TS Asia for which it recognized a los$bf7 millionbefore and after t:
and $0.01 per share on a diluted basis, which Veasified within "Gain on legal settlement, bargainchase and other."

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a Idsglo4 million before tax, $0.9 million after taxnd $0.01per diluted share classifi
within "Gain on legal settlement, bargain purchase other" in the consolidated statements of ojpersitrelated to the impairment of
investment in a small technology company and thteveif of certain deferred financing costs associatét the early termination of a cre
facility.

3. Accounts receivable securitization

Pursuant to the Company's accounts receivable ifeation agreement (the “Programiyith a group of financial institutions,
amended, the Company may sell, on a revolving pasisindivided interest of up to $800.0 millioreligible U.S. receivables while retainin
subordinated interest in the receivables sold. dligéble receivables are sold through a wholly-od/bankruptcyremote special purpose en
("SPE") that is consolidated for financial repogtipurposes as the Company is the primary benefiofthe SPE. Such eligible receivables
not directly available to satisfy potential clairo§ the Companys creditors. As the Program does not qualify fdesaccounting, tt
receivables and related short-term debt obligatonains on the Company’s consolidated balance shEe¢ Program has a one-y&am tha
expires at the end of August 2014t which time it is expected to be renewed farthar one to two years on comparable terms. ThgrBm
contains certain covenants, all of which the Congpalas in compliance with as of June 28, 2014 . &@heere $615.0 milliorin borrowing:
outstanding under the Program as of June 28, 20d4360.0 million as of June 29, 201@iterest on borrowings is calculated using a bat
or a commercial paper rate plus a spread of 0.35P& facility fee is 0.35% .

4. Shareholders' equity
Accumulated comprehensive income (loss)

The following table includes the balances withiowoulated other comprehensive income (loss):

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments and other $ 244.14¢ $ 135,39 $ 90,79¢
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafame taxes (104,63) (106,500) (136,63()
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 139,510 § 28,89t § (45,83)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes foreign cuydranslation adjustments and pension liabilitjuatinents. Amounts reclassif
out of accumulated comprehensive income (loss)phttx, to operating expenses during fiscal 2@D4,3 and 2012 substantially all relate
net periodic pension costs as discussed furthipie 10.
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Share repurchase program

In August 2012, the Company's Board of Directoreaded the Company's existing share repurchasegmmoigr authorize the repurch
of up to $750.0 millionof common stock in the open market or through pelyanegotiated transactions. The timing and actuahber ¢
shares repurchased will depend on a variety obfactuch as price, corporate and regulatory reopgings, and prevailing market conditic
During fiscal 2014 , the Company repurchased OlRamishares under this program at an average rhariee of $41.46er share for a tol
cost of $8.6 million . Repurchased shares wereecttiSince the beginning of the repurchase progtaough the end of fiscal 2014the
Company has repurchased 18.1 million shares atggnegate cost of $534.1 million , and $215.9 milliemains available for futu
repurchases under the share repurchase program.

Common stock dividend

In May 2014, the Company's Board of Directors appdoa dividend of $0.1per common share to the shareholders of recordioa 3
2014. Dividend payments of $20.7 million were madéune 2014.

During fiscal 2014, the Company has paid divideofd$0.60 per common share and $82.8 million inltota
5. Property, plant and equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasastonsist of the following:

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Buildings $ 132,29. $ 141,88t
Machinery, fixtures and equipment 266,41t 213,31°
Information technology hardware and software 699,46¢ 628,02¢
Leasehold improvements 118,90° 102,30:
Depreciable property, plant and equipment, gross 1,217,08! 1,085,53I
Accumulated depreciation (783,484 (691,98()
Depreciable property, plant and equipment, net 433,59! 393,55(
Land 31,73( 24,83«
Construction in progress 69,67+ 74,22
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 534,99¢ $ 492,60t

Depreciation expense related to property, plantemdpment was $92.5 million , $88.3 million andB% million in fiscal 2014 201:
and 2012 , respectively.
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6. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the change in goodbdllances by reportable segment for fiscal yead20All of the accumulate

impairment was recognized in fiscal 2009.

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total

(Thousands)
Gross goodwill $ 1,646,94 $ 994,08: 2,641,02;
Accumulated impairment (1,045,11)) (334,629 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at June 29, 2013 601,83( 659,45¢ 1,261,28:
Additions 51,99« 10,62: 62,61¢
Adjustments 2,03¢ 552 2,591
Foreign currency translation 12,59: 9,37¢ 21,97
Carrying value at June 28, 2014 $ 668,45 $ 680,01: $ 1,348,46!
Gross goodwill $ 1,71356 $ 1,014,63" $ 2,728,20:
Accumulated impairment (1,045,11)) (334,629 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at June 28, 2014 $ 668,45 $ 680,01: $ 1,348,46!

The goodwill additions are a result of businessapumed during fiscal 2014see Note 2) and goodwill adjustments represenng
purchase accounting adjustments for acquisitionimgduhe related measurement periods.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase pfiacquired businesses over the estimated faiewassigned to the individual as:
acquired and liabilities assumed. The Companydsired to test goodwill for impairment at least aalfy as of the first day of its fiscal fou
quarter. The Company will perform an impairmerst teetween required annual tests if facts and eistances indicate that it is more lik
than not that the fair value of a reporting undtthas goodwill is less than its carrying valuec®goodwill has been assigned to a repao
unit, for accounting purposes, the goodwill is nader directly associated with the underlying asifjoins that the goodwill originated fro
but rather the reporting unit to which it has bessigned. During Fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 thepg@om elected to perform the firstep o
the two-step goodwill impairment test instead odtfperforming a qualitative goodwill impairmenste

The first step in a twatep impairment test is the comparison of the ¥ailue of a reporting unit with its carrying amoumcluding
goodwill. Based upon the Company’s annual impaitnests performed for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 20ttere was nampairment of goodwi
in the respective fiscal years.

The following table presents the Company’s idealtifé intangible assets, which have a weighted gedie of approximately 8ears fo
each fiscal year presented:

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

Gross Gross
Acquired Accumulated Net Book Acquired Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value
(Thousands)
Customer relationships $ 319,49¢ $ (155,609 $ 163,89: $ 276,100 $ (109,94) $ 166,16:
Trade name 5,99: (1,555 4,43¢ 3,32( (480 2,84(
Other 18,83: (2,85%) 15,97¢ 4,177 (96€) 3,211
$ 34432 $ (160,019 $ 184,30¢ $ 283,60 $ (111,39) $ 172,21.
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Intangible asset amortization expense was $44.Iomil $32.3 million and $27.8 million for fiscaD24 , 2013 and 2012spectively. Th
following table presents the estimated future ainatibn expense for the next five fiscal years tredeafter (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amortization Expense
2015 $ 41,45¢
2016 35,51:
2017 33,47¢
2018 24,90(
2019 20,75¢
Thereafter 28,20¢

Total $ 184,30t

7. External financing
Short-term debt consists of the following:

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities and other $ 250,08t $ 178,24(
Accounts receivable securitization program (Note 3) 615,00( 360,00
Current portion of long-term debt — 299,95(
Short-term debt $ 865,08 $ 838,19(

Bank credit facilities consist of various commited uncommitted lines of credit and other formbarik debt with financial institutio
utilized primarily to support the working capitaquirements of foreign operations. The weightedrane interest rate on the bank cr
facilities was 3.2% and 4.3% at the end of fis€&l2and 2013 respectively. The interest rate on the accowrtsivable securitization progr:
was 0.6% at the end of fiscal 2014 and 2013.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

(Thousands)

2012 Credit Facility $ 12,00¢ $ 6,70(
6.000% Notes due September 1, 2015 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 300,00( 300,00t
5.875% Notes due June 15, 2020 300,00( 300,00t
4.875% Notes due December 1, 2022 350,00 350,00(
Other long-term debt 3,86 2,87¢
Subtotal 1,215,86 1,209,57!
Unamortized discount on notes (2,059 (2,586¢)
Long-term debt $ 1,213,81. $ 1,206,99:

At the end of fiscal 2014, the Company had a fieary$1.00 billiorsenior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credit Facility"
with a syndicate of banks, which expires in Novenf@l6. Under the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company melgst from various interest ri
options, currencies and maturities. The 2012 Credlitlity contains certain covenants, all of whibe Company was in compliance with a
June 28, 2014 . At June 28, 2014 , there wererdettecredit aggregating to $2.0 millimutstanding which represents a utilization of tBé&Z
Credit Facility capacity but are not recorded ia ttonsolidated balance sheet as the letters oit @ednot debt. At June 29, 201&ere wer
letters of credit aggregating $2.3 million outstiagd
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In July 2014, subsequent to the end of fiscal 2@d,Company terminated the 2012 Credit Facilitg entered into a five-yed®1.2¢
billion senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credit Facility") with a syndicate of banks, simting of revolving credit facilitie
and the issuance of up to $150.00 million of Istifrcredit. Subject to certain conditions, th&2Credit Facility may be increased upgbth5(
billion . Under the 2014 Credit Facility, the Company realect from various interest rate options, curreneind maturities. The 2014 Cn
Facility contains certain covenants, which are grislly similar to those covenants containedhie 2012 Credit Facility. The 2014 Cre
Facility is scheduled to mature in July 2019.

Aggregate debt maturities for the next five fisgahrs and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2015 $ 865,08t
2016 264,54°
2017 301,28t
2018 34
2019 —
Thereafter 650,00(
Subtotal 2,080,95!
Discount on notes (2,057
Total debt $ 2,078,90:

At June 28, 2014 , the carrying value and fair gadfi the Company’s debt was $2.08 billion and $illéon , respectively. Fair valt
was estimated primarily based upon quoted marke¢pfor the Company's lortgrm notes. At June 29, 2013, the carrying valukfaim value
of the Company’s debt was $2.05 billion and $2.1i®h , respectively. Fair value was estimated primasdged upon quoted market prices
the Company's long-term notes.

8. Accrued expenses and other
Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Accrued salaries and benefits $ 339,88" $ 304,60t
Accrued operating costs 117,55t 92,30¢
Accrued interest and banking costs 32,87¢ 42,09¢
Accrued restructuring costs (Note 17) 40,91° 46,52
Accrued income taxes 40,82¢ 54,03¢
Accrued other 139,30« 165,53:
Total accrued expenses and other $ 711,36¢ $ 705,10:

9. Income taxes

The components of income tax expense (“tax promf$iare indicated in the table below. The tax providiondeferred income tax
results from temporary differences arising printlipfrom net operating losses, inventories valuaticeceivables valuation, certain acct
amounts and depreciation and amortization, nehpfchanges to valuation allowances.
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Years Ended
June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 71,71 $ 17,21: % 94,237
State and local 8,03¢ 7,03¢ 19,46¢
Foreign 91,41t 84,96" 98,27¢
Total current taxes 171,16 109,21: 211,98:
Deferred:
Federal 11,30¢ 2,61¢ 6,89¢
State and local 3,81( 2,39( 75¢
Foreign (30,759 (15,02 4,12¢
Total deferred taxes (15,644) (20,019 11,78:
Income tax expense $ 155,52 $ 99,19: % 223,76:

The tax provision is computed based upon incomerbehcome taxes from both U.S. and foreign openati U.S. income before inco
taxes was $235.4 million , $174.0 million and $3&fillion and foreign income before income taxesW4d65.7 million , $375.3 millioanc
$470.4 million in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 pedively.

Reconciliations of the federal statutory tax rat¢he effective tax rates are as follows:

Years Ended
June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

Federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefi 1.2 1.1 1.8
Foreign tax rates, net of valuation allowances (9.3 (7.2 (5.4
Release of valuation allowance, net of U.S. taxeasp (4.8 (6.9 (2.9
Change in contingency reserves (0.2 0.4 0.5
Tax audit settlements (0.6) (6.0 (2.0
Other, net 0.7 1.2 0.2
Effective tax rate 22.2% 18.1% 28.2%

Foreign tax rates represents the impact of thewiffce between foreign and federal statutory itesied to foreign income or loss ¢
also include the impact of valuation allowanceslgithed against the Company's otherwise realizimloéagn deferred tax assets, which
primarily loss carry-forwards.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incorages was 22.2% in fiscal 2014 as compared witleféattive tax rate of 18.1%n
fiscal 2013 . Included in the fiscal 2014 effecttag rate is a net tax benefit of $43.8 milliowhich is comprised primarily of (i) a tax benedi
$33.4 millionfor the release of valuation allowances againstrdedl tax assets that were determined to be rb&izprimarily related to a leg
entity in EMEA (discussed further below), and éinet tax benefit of $7.0 millioresulting from losses related to an investment faraigr
subsidiary. The fiscal 2014 effective tax rateighler than the fiscal 201&fective tax rate primarily due to a lower amoahtax benefits fror
audit settlements in fiscal 2014 as compared wafig013, partially offset by a greater tax benfefim the valuation allowances release
fiscal 2014 as compared with the amount releaséiddal 2013.

The Company applies the guidance in ASC 74Q¢twhequires management to use its judgment teagpropriate weighting of
available evidence when assessing the need fardtadlishment or the release of valuation allowandespart of this analysis, the Comp:
examines all available evidence on a jurisdictigrjusisdiction basis and weighs the positive andatie evidence when determining the r
for full or partial valuation allowances. The esitte considered for each jurisdiction includes, ragnother items: (i) the historic levels
income or losses over a range of time periods, kvhi@y extend beyond the most recent three fiscatsydepending upon the histor
volatility of income in an individual jurisdictior(ji) expectations and

58




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

risk associated with underlying estimates of futt@gable income, including considering the histari¢rend of dowreycles in th
semiconductor and related industries; and (iiident and feasible tax planning strategies.

As of the end of fiscal 2014, the Company had diglavaluation allowance against significant netegiing loss carryerwarc
deferred tax assets related to a legal entity irEBMlue to, among several other factors, a histbipsses in that entity. In recent fiscal ye
such entity has been experiencing improved earniwgih required the partial release of the vabratillowance to the extent the entity
projected future taxable income. In fiscal 2014l éiscal 2013, the Company determined a portiothefvaluation allowance for such le
entity was no longer required due to the expectadicuation of improved earnings in the foreseedibiare and, as a result, the Compa
effective tax rate was reduced upon the partidas of the valuation allowance, net of the U.%.etgpense. In fiscal 2014 and 2013,
valuation allowance released associated with thiKEE legal entity was $33.6 million and $27.1 mitii respectively, net of the U.S. -
expense associated with the release. Excludindpéhefit in both fiscal years related to the releafsthe tax valuation allowance associi
with such EMEA legal entity, the effective tax rébe fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 would have bee®®2vand 23.0% , respectively.

ASC 740 requires a preponderance of positive ecieldn order to reach a conclusion to release alh @ortion of a valuatic
allowance when negative evidence exists. The Casnpéll continue to evaluate the need for a valmatallowance against these deferrec
assets and will adjust the valuation allowanceessyed appropriate which, if reduced, could resudt significant decrease to the effective
rate in the period of the adjustment.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madeafiproximately $2.77 billiorof cumulative unremitted earnings of fore
subsidiaries at June 28, 20ldcause those earnings are expected to be perrdyarsémiested outside the U.S. A hypothetical cktian of the
deferred tax liability, assuming those earningsawemitted, is not practicable.

The significant components of deferred tax assedsliabilities, included primarily in “other assétsn the consolidated balance she
are as follows:

June 28, June 29,
2014 2013
(Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Federal, state and foreign tax loss carry-forwards $ 336,33 $ 333,94(
Inventories valuation $ 18,44: $ 19,50¢
Receivables valuation 26,02: 27,18t
Various accrued liabilities and other (1,679 33,03:
379,12! 413,66!
Less — valuation allowance (182,12) (230,82)
197,00: 182,84
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, pland aquipment (46,299 (50,469
Net deferred tax assets $ 150,70t $ 132,37¢

The change in valuation allowances from fiscal 2@ 8scal 2014 was primarily due to (i) a net retion of $52.7 millionprimarily due
to the above mentioned release of a valuation alfme in EMEA, $33.4 milliomf which impacted the effective tax rate while teenainde
was offset in deferred income taxes, and (ii) aexgense of $4.1 millioprimarily related to rate changes on valuationvedloces previous
established in various foreign jurisdictions.

As of June 28, 2014 , the Company had foreign petating loss carry-forwards of approximately $1b#8on , of which$6.2 millior
will expire during fiscal 2015 and 2016, substdhtiall of which have full valuation allowances, 2.4 million have expiration dates rang
from fiscal 2017 to 2034 and the remaining $961iion have no expiration date. The carrying vabfedhe Companys foreign net operatii
loss carry-forwards is dependent upon the Compzaalility to generate sufficient future taxabledn® in certain foreign tax jurisdictions.
addition, the Company considers historic levelmobme or losses, expectations and risk assocwitecestimates of future taxable income
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning stragemi@ssessing a tax valuation allowance.
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Estimated liabilities for unrecognized tax benefit®e included in “accrued expenses and other” asttiet liabilities” on the
consolidated balance sheets. These contingenlitiebrelate to various tax matters that resudtifruncertainties in the application of comj
income tax regulations in the numerous jurisdictiom which the Company operates. The change in $abfiities during fiscal 2014s
primarily due to favorable audit settlements, whaite included in the “reductions for tax positica&en in prior periodstaption in th
following table. As of June 28, 2014 , unrecognit&xl benefits were $128.2 million , of which apgroately $112.2 million, if recognizec
would favorably impact the effective tax rate ahd temaining balance would be substantially offsetaluation allowances. As dfine 2¢
2013 , unrecognized tax benefits were $123.9 millicof which approximately $117.7 millionif recognized, would favorably impact
effective tax rate, and the remaining balance waddubstantially offset by valuation allowancelse Estimated liability for unrecognized
benefits included accrued interest expense andtmnaf $25.3 million and $25.0 millionnet of applicable state tax benefit, as of the @l
fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Reconciliations of the beginning and ending lidpibalances for unrecognized tax benefits are kss:

June 28, 2014 June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 12393( $ 146,62t
Additions for tax positions taken in prior period@s;luding interest 15,96¢ 11,73:
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periadsluding interest (880) (33,77¢)
Additions for tax positions taken in current period 8,36¢ 7,44¢
Reductions related to settlements with taxing attike (24,250 (9,069
Reductions related to the lapse of applicable w&atof limitations (7,579 (2,817
Adjustments related to foreign currency translation 2,66: 3,77¢
Balance at end of year $ 128,22:  § 123,93(

The evaluation of income tax positions requires agg@ment to estimate the ability of the Companyugiain its position and estimate
final benefit to the Company. To the extent thatsthestimates do not reflect the actual outcome #tmuld be an impact on the consolid
financial statements in the period in which theifpms is settled, the applicable statutes of liniitas expire or new information becor
available as the impact of these events are rezedrin the period in which they occur. It is ditfitto estimate the period in which the amc
of a tax position will change as settlement mayude administrative and legal proceedings whoséngnthe Company cannot control.
effects of settling tax positions with tax authiestand statute expirations may significantly intghe estimate for unrecognized tax bene
Within the next twelve months, management estimitasapproximately $21.5 millioof these liabilities for unrecognized tax benefiif be
settled by the expiration of the statutes of litnitias or through through agreement with the takauities for tax positions related to valuas
matters and positions related to acquired entisash matters are common to multinational compariiee expected cash payment relate
the settlement of these contingencies is $7.8anilli

The Company conducts business globally and consdgu#ées income tax returns in numerous jurisidins including those listed in t
following table. It is also routinely subject todiuin these and other countries. The Company idomger subject to audit in its ma
jurisdictions for periods prior to fiscal year 200&he years remaining subject to audit, by majasgliction, are as follows

Jurisdiction Fiscal Year

United States (federal and state) 2012 -2014
Belgium 2010 -2014
Germany, Taiwan and United Kingdom 2009 2014
Netherlands, Singapore and Hong Kong 2008 2014

10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pengplan (the “Plan”)covers substantially all domestic employees. Engxsyar
eligible to participate in the Plan following thiest year of service during which they worked atste1,00thours. The Plan provides defir
benefits pursuant to a cash balance feature whexr@ayticipant accumulates a benefit based upon a
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percentage of current salary, which varies with, agel interest credits. The Company uses its figeat end as the measurement dat
determining pension expense and benefit obligationsach fiscal year. The disclosures below doimdude the pension plans of certain nor
U.S. subsidiaries and other defined benefit plasisch are not considered material.

The following table outlines changes in benefitigdiions, plan assets and the funded status dPldne as of the end of fiscal 20a#c
2013

June 28, June 29,
2014 2013
(Thousands)
Changes in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 391,88( $ 375,15t
Service cost 36,73 36,92(
Interest cost 17,15¢ 14,65:
Actuarial loss (gain) 34,72¢ (13,545
Benefits paid (23,329 (21,309
Benefit obligations at end of year $ 457,16 $ 391,88I
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 365,37 $ 301,44¢
Actual return on plan assets 67,91« 45,22¢
Benefits paid (23,327 (21,30¢)
Contributions 40,00( 40,00(
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 449,96( $ 365,37:
Funded status of the plan recognized as a nonsturability $ (7,200) % (26,507
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekienscome:
Unrecognized net actuarial losses $ 158,10: $ 173,06¢
Unamortized prior service credits (6,050 (7,629
$ 152,05 $ 165,441
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatiecognized in other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial gain $ (2,280 $ (30,870
Amortization of net actuarial losses (12,68¢) (14,899
Amortization of prior service credits 1,57: 1,57:
$ (13,399 $ (44,19H

The Plan was amended effective June 1, 2012 tooweppre-retirement death benefits so that ther@iieement death benefits will
payable without regard to marital status, and Wél based on 100%f the participant's vested cash account. The &se&rén liability wa
recognized as a prior service cost and amortizdtégan in fiscal year 2013.

Included in accumulated other comprehensive incamiine 28, 2014 is pre-tax expense of $158.1amilif net actuarial losses whi
have not yet been recognized in net periodic pensast, of which $13.0 milliois expected to be recognized as a component gieraidic
pension cost during fiscal 2015 . Also included igre-tax benefit of $6.1 millioaf prior service credits which have not yet beesogmized il
net periodic pension costs, of which $1.6 millisrekpected to be recognized as a component ofeniedi pension costs during fiscal 2015 .

Weighted average assumptions used to calculataradtpresent values of benefit obligations aréofews:

2014 2013
Discount rate 4.00% 4.50%
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The discount rate selected by the Company for the Reflects the current rate at which the undegyliability could be settled at t
measurement date as of June 28, 2014. The selgistulint rate is based primarily upon an averatedatermined by matching the expe
cash outflows of the Plan to a yield curve consggddrom a portfolio of highly rated (minimum AAtmag) fixedincome debt instruments w
maturities consistent with the expected cash owtlo

Weighted average assumptions used to determintgenefit costs are as follows:

2014 2013
Discount rate 4.50% 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50%

Components of net periodic pension cost durindabethree fiscal years are as follows:

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
Service costs $ 36,73: $ 36,92( $ 28,38(
Interest costs 17,15t 14,65 14,92¢
Expected return on plan assets (30,909) (27,905 (26,939
Recognized net actuarial losses 12,68¢ 14,89¢ 9,68(
Amortization of prior service credits (1,573 (1,579 (1,87%)
Net periodic pension cost $ 34,09 $ 36,99 § 24,17:

The Company made $40.0 million of contributionsfigtal 2014 and fiscal 2018nd expects to make approximately $40.0 millio
contributions in fiscal 2015.

Benefit payments are expected to be paid to Platicipants as follows for the next five fiscal yeand the aggregate for the five yi
thereafter (in thousands):

2015 $ 31,99:
2016 26,98:
2017 30,78t
2018 34,64¢
2019 39,08:
2020 through 2024 273,50!

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were ddcas follows as of the measurement date at tth@fifiscal 2014 and 2013 :

2014 2013
Equity securities 75% 75%
Fixed income debt securities 24% 24%
Cash and cash equivalents 1% 1%

The general investment objectives of the Plan arenéiximize returns through a diversified investmpaottfolio in order to eal
annualized returns that meet the long-term costiodling the Plars pension obligations while maintaining reasonatid prudent levels
risk. The target rate of return on Plan assetsiigeatly 8.5%, which represents the average rate of earningsoteg on the funds invested o
be invested to provide for the benefits includedha benefit obligation. This assumption has beeterthined by combining expectati
regarding future rates of return for the investnytfolio along with the historical and expectastiibution of investments by asset class
the historical rates of return for each of thosseaislasses. The mix of equity securities is typiativersified to obtain a blend of domestic
international investments covering multiple indigstr The Plan assets do not include any matenastiments in Avnet common stock. -
Plan’s investments in debt
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securities are also diversified across both pudntid private fixed income securities. The Comparmyirrent target allocation for the investn
portfolio is for equity securities, both domestitdanternational, to represent approximately 76df%he portfolio with a policy for minimu
investment in equity securities of approximately080 of the portfolio and a maximum of approximat@®0%. The majority of the remaini
portfolio of investments is to be invested in fixadome debt securities.

The following table sets forth the fair value oétBlan's investments as of June 28, 2014 :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,028 % — 3 — $ 3,02¢
Equities:

U.S. common stocks — 267,74 — 267,74:

International common stocks — 71,27: — 71,27:
Fixed Income:

U.S. government agencies — 10,43¢ — 10,43¢

U.S. corporate bonds — 97,48: — 97,48:
Total $ 3,02t % 446,93¢ % —  $ 449,96(

The following table sets forth the fair value oétRlan's investments as of June 29, 2013 :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,032 % — 3 — $ 3,03:
Equities:

U.S. common stocks — 219,22! — 219,22!

International common stocks — 56,45¢ — 56,45¢
Fixed Income:

U.S. government agencies — 10,00: — 10,00¢

U.S. corporate bonds — 76,65¢ — 76,65¢
Total $ 3,03: % 362,34, % — 3 365,37:

The fair value of Plas investments in equity and fixed income investmeme stated at unit value, or the equivalent ofasset valu
which is a practical expedient for estimating the& ¥alues of those investments. Each of thesesinvents may be redeemed daily witt
notice and there were no material unfunded comnmtshas of June 28, 2014 .

The fixed income investments provide a steady netvith medium volatility and assist with capitakpervation and income generat
The equity investments have higher expected vitlatihd return than the fixed income investments.

11. Operating leases

The Company leases many of its operating faciliiesl is also committed under lease agreementsrdosfortation and operati
equipment. Rent expense charged to operating egpehsing the last three fiscal years is as follows

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
Rent expense under operating leases $ 106,62( $ 94,087 $ 92,624

The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in fiscal 2015¢lugh 201%nd thereafter, are
follows (in thousands):
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2015 $ 91,24:
2016 69,82!
2017 55,20
2018 39,35¢
2019 29,84¢
Thereafter 92,01t

Total $ 377,48

The preceding table includes the remaining opegddase commitments that are included as a compafidine Companys restructurin
liabilities (see Note 17).

12. Stock-based compensation

The Company measures all stdwksed payments at fair value and recognizes relexpénse within operating expenses in
consolidated statements of operations over theisitgservice period (generally the vesting peridi)ring fiscal 2014 , 2013 , and 201the
Company recorded stock-based compensation expéi#tb® million , $43.7 million and $35.7 millionrespectively, for all forms of stock-
based compensation awards.

Stock plan

At June 28, 2014 , the Company had 11.3 milliorreshaf common stock reserved for stock-based awaittish consisted af.8 million
for stock options granted but not yet vested aratecebut not yet exercised, 6.4 milliamailable for future awards under plans approve
shareholders, 2.8 million for restricted stock midee and performance shares granted but not y&egeand 0.4 milliorshares available f
future award under the Company's Employee StockHise Plan ("ESPP").

Stock options

Stock option grants have a contractual life ofyears , vest in 25% increments on each anniveidattye grant date commencing wit
the first anniversary, and require an exerciseepat 100% of the fair market value at the date ming Stockbased compensation expe
associated with stock options during fiscal 202813 and 2012 was $4.7 million , $4.0 million ar&gd1$million , respectively.

The fair value of stock options is estimated aghef date of grant using the Bla8lkcholes model based on the assumptions i
following table. The assumption for the expectettés based on evaluations of historical and exqubfitture employee exercise behavior.
risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury extaxf the date of grant with maturity dates apprately equal to the expected term ai
grant date. The historical volatility of Avnettommon stock is used as the basis for the \ibfassumption. The Company estimates divic
yield based upon expectations of future divideralsfahe grant datt

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
Expected term (years) 6.C 6.C 6.C
Risk-free interest rate 1.7% 0.% 1.2%
Weighted average volatility 34.2% 35.(% 33.71%
Dividend yield 1.5% 0.C% 0.C%
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The following is a summary of the changes in ouiditag options for fiscal 2014 :

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Life
Outstanding at June 29, 2013 2,579,18! $ 26.6¢ 70 Months
Granted 417,69: 39.0¢ 109 Months
Exercised (1,185,009 24.6¢ 40 Months
Forfeited or expired (2,700 17.45 3 Months
Outstanding at June 28, 2014 1,809,17t $ 30.8¢ 81 Months
Exercisable at June 28, 2014 820,52( §$ 27.4( 61 Months

The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofkstgdions granted during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and2@&re $11.45 , $11.33 and $9.67
respectively.

At June 28, 2014 , the aggregate intrinsic valuallodutstanding stock option awards was $23.3iomland all exercisable stock optic
awards was $13.4 million .

The following is a summary of the changes in noste@ stock options for the fiscal year ended J&eQ14 :

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested stock options at June 29, 2013 944.29( $ 10.21
Granted 417,69. 11.4¢
Vested (373,321 9.87
Forfeited — —
Non-vested stock options at June 28, 2014 988,65( $ 10.8¢

As of June 28, 2014 , there was $2.6 millmmntotal unrecognized compensation cost relatestdck options, which is expected ta
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2a2sy€lhe total fair value of shares vested, ad@fvesting dates, during fiscal 201201
and 2012 were $3.7 million , $3.4 million and $blion , respectively.

Cash received from stock option exercises durisgafi 2014 , 2013 and 2012 totaled $4.7 million .1$%2illion , and $2.4 million
respectively. The impact of these cash receipitscisided in “Other, netas financing activity in the accompanying consdkdastatements
cash flows.

Restricted incentive shares

Delivery of restricted incentive shares, and theoamted compensation expense, is spread equalhtloe vesting period and is gener
subject to the employee’s continued service andi@mpent by the Company, except for employees wlear@tirement eligible. As qfune 2¢
2014 , 2.0 million shares previously awarded hasteyet vested. Stockased compensation expense associated with redtifatentive shar
was $34.4 million , $26.8 million and $21.0 milliéor fiscal years 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respelgtive
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The following is a summary of the changes in noste@ restricted incentive shares for the fiscal gealed June 28, 2014 :

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested restricted incentive shares at Jun@@B3 2,009,511 $ 29.6¢
Granted 1,060,15; 39.0¢
Vested (972,42 31.3¢
Forfeited (95,359 $ 33.5¢
Non-vested restricted incentive shares at Jun@®@B4} 2,001,88 $ 33.6(

As of June 28, 2014 , there was $51.7 million tdltanrecognized compensation expense relatedrtevested restricted incentive sha
which is expected to be recognized over a weightattage period of 2.3ears. The total fair value of restricted inceatshares vested dur
fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $30.5 million ,.82%illion and $19.5 million , respectively.

Performance shares

Eligible employees, including Avnet's executiveiods, may receive a portion of their long-termcktbased incentive compensal
through the performance share program, which allfawvghe vesting of shares based upon achievenfecertain performanceased criteri
(“Performance Share Program”). The Performance éSRangram provides for the vesting to each graote® number of shares of Avnet’
common stock at the end of a three-year periodhagen the Compang’ achievement of certain performance goals estadidy th
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directorsefach Performance Share Program tlyes- period. The performance goals consi
measures of economic profit and total shareholekeirm.

During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , the Comparantgd 0.2 million , 0.3 million and 0.3 milligmerformance shares, respectively
which approximately none have been forfeited. Té¢tea amount of performance shares vested at tti@Eeach thregear period is measur
based upon the level of achievement of the defperfbrmance goals and can range from 0% to 260%e initial award grant. During fisc
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , the Company recognized dtaskd compensation expense associated with tiieriRance Share Program $5.€
million , $11.9 million and $10.5 million , respecly.

Director stock-based compensation

Non-employee directors are awarded shares eqadiixed dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoairthe-election each year, as |
of their director compensation. Directors may electeceive this compensation in the form of comrstotk or they may elect to defer tt
compensation to be paid in common stock at a tete. During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2QX®dmpensation expense associated with the o
director stock-based compensation plan was $11@mil $1.0 million and $1.1 million , respectively

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI&PPE under the terms of which eligible employeethe Company are allow
to purchase shares of Avnet common stock at a poal to 95%of the fair market value on the last day of eactthly offering period. Th
ESPP is not compensatory based on its terms.

The Company has a policy of repurchasing sharetheropen market to satisfy shares purchased byogegd under the ESPP, .
expects future repurchases during fiscal 2015 teifb@ar to the number of shares repurchased ddisiegl 2014, based on current estimate
participation in the ESPP program. During eachisafdl 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , 0.06 millisimares of common stock were purchased und
ESPP program.

13. Commitments and contingencies
Bell

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized a cogetim liability for potential unpaid import dutiessmciated with the acquisition
Bell. Prior to the acquisition of Bell by Avnet, &tams and Border Protection (“CBHjitiated a review of the importing process at @f
Bell's subsidiaries and identified compliance deficieacSubsequent to the acquisition of Bell by Av@RP began a compliance audit. -
Company evaluated projected duties, interest andlpes that potentially may be
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imposed as a result of the audit and recognizezhtirgent liability of $10.0 milliorwhich was recorded to goodwill in fiscal 2011. Degiec
on the ultimate resolution of the matter with CBiRe Company estimates that the range of the pateskposure associated with the liab
may be up to $73.0 millionhowever, the Company believes the contingentliiplbecorded is a reasonable estimate of thellisthased upo
the facts currently available at this time.

LCD Class Action Settlement

The Company filed a proof of claim in the settletneiha class action proceeding that sought damiigescertain manufacturers of L(
flat panel displays. A settlement was reached énpgioceedings and in the first quarter of fiscal42€he federal district judge overseeing
proceeding issued an order approving the distoinutif settlement funds to the class claimants badCiompany received an award payme
$19.1 million. In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the fededadtrict judge overseeing the proceedings issuearder approving a fin
distribution of funds and the Company receivednalfaward payment of $3.0 million . The total awafdb22.1 millionis classified withil
"gain on legal settlement, bargain purchase anelrdth the consolidated statements of operations.

Other

From time to time, the Company may become a partytt be otherwise involved in various lawsuitsirtls, investigations and otl
legal proceedings arising in the ordinary coursearfducting its business. While litigation is swbj® inherent uncertainties, management
not anticipate that any ongoing matters will havenaterial adverse effect on the Companginancial condition, liquidity or results
operations.

14. Earnings per share

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net income $ 545,60: $ 450,07 $ 567,01¢
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares for basic earngrgshare 137,99: 137,95: 147,27¢
Net effect of dilutive stock options, restricted¢@mtive shares and performance
shares 2,12¢ 2,052 2,27¢
Weighted average common shares for diluted earmiagshare 140,11¢ 140,00: 149,55;
Basic earnings per share $ 39t §$ 3.2¢ $ 3.8t
Diluted earnings per share $ 38¢ § 321 % 3.7¢

None of the Company's outstanding stock optiongwe&cluded from the calculation of diluted earnipgs share in fiscal 20140ption:
to purchase 0.6 million and 0.2 million shares fiscal years 2013 and 2012espectively, were excluded from the calculatiofglilutec
earnings per shares because the exercise pritedee options was above the average market priteeo€ompanys stock during such fisc
years. Inclusion of these options in the respedtiltéed earnings per share calculations would Headan an-dilutive effect.
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15. Additional cash flow information

The "Other, net" component of n@ash and other reconciling items within operaticgvéties in the consolidated statements of |
flows consisted of the following:

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable $ 17,94: % 30,80: % 35,63:
Periodic pension cost (Note 10) 34,09: 36,99 24,17:
Other, net 36,65 7,532 6,45¢
Total $ 88,68 $ 75,327 % 66,26

Interest and income taxes paid during the lasetfiseal years were as follows:

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Thousands)
Interest $ 111,60¢ $ 106,73" $ 89,52¢
Income taxes $ 181,11 $ 141,19t $ 192,71

The Company includes book overdrafts as part obatis payable on its consolidated balance sheetsreftects changes in st
balances as part of cash flows from operating #ietivin its consolidated statements of cash flows.

16. Segment information
Electronics Marketing and Technology SolutionstaeeCompany's reportable segments (“operating gfoup

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdanpassive and electromechanical devices and enelepldbducts. EM markets ¢
sells its products and services to a diverse custdiase serving many emaarkets including automotive, communications, cotaphardwar
and peripheral, industrial and manufacturing, maldeguipment, and defense and aerospace. EM disis @n array of valuaelded service
that help customers evaluate, desiigiand procure electronic components throughoutitbeycle of their technology products and systeBy
working with EM, customers and suppliers can acgaddetheir time to market and realize cost efficiea in both the design and manufactu
process.

As a leading global IT solutions distributor, TStdises on the valusdded distribution of enterprise computing senard system
software, storage, services and complex solutioms fthe worlds foremost technology manufacturers. TS partnets 8 customers ai
suppliers to create and deliver effective dataereand IT lifecycle solutions that solve the busiehallenges of enaser customers loca
and around the world. TS serves a number of custeegments, from VARs, system integrators and ieddpnt software vendors to
worldwide OEM market for computing technology andn#C OEMSs requiring embedded systems and solutioclsiding engineerini
product prototyping, integration and other vahdgled services. TS also provides the latest haiddtives, microprocessor, motherboard
DRAM module technologies to manufacturers of gelnguapose computers and system builders.

At the beginning of fiscal 2014, the Company begacluding amortization expense associated with iaeduntangible assets from 1
operating income of the EM and TS operating group®rder to measure such operating results comsistith how many technolog
companies measure operating performance and ghatnstich amortization expense is r@sh in nature. As a result of this change,
period segment information has been recast to confo the new measure of profitability used dufiisgal 2014. The change in the measui
operating group profitability did not impact thetelenination of the Company’operating groups or the previously reported clichestec
financial results.
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At the beginning of fiscal 2014, a portion of ther@pany's reverse logistics operations, which wawvipusly included in the E
operating group, was combined within the TS opegatiroup. The Company also combined its regionalprding components operatic
within EM and TS into a single global organizatisithin TS. As a result of these changes, salesratipg income and assets previol
reported in the EM operating group in fiscal 20h%dbeen included within the TS operating groufisical 2014. The Company does not v
the amount of sales, operating income, or assetaaif transferred operations to be a material chémthe composition of its operating gro
for financial reporting purposes. Sales relateguoh transferred operations reported in the EM aipey group in fiscal 2013 wei$443.:
million . The transfer of such operations betwepgrating groups did not impact the determinatiothef Companys operating groups or t
previously reported consolidated financial results.
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Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketing $ 16,544.. 15,094 14,933.:
Technology Solutions 10,955.: 10,364.! 10,774 ..
$ 27,499’ 25,458. 25,707}
Operating income (loss):
Electronics Marketing $ 747.¢ 635.7 759.¢
Technology Solutions 317.¢ 299.1 338.¢
Corporate (134.9) (126.9 (112.9
931.: 807.¢ 985.€
Restructuring, integration and other expenses (Ndje (94.¢) (149.9 (73.€)
Amortization of acquired intangible assets and othe (46.9) (32.9 (27.9)
$ 789.¢ 626.( 884.2
Assets:
Electronics Marketing $ 6,840.: 6,316. 6,024.:
Technology Solutions 4,140.: 3,838.¢ 3,738.!
Corporate 275.1 320.( 405.1
$ 11,255.! 10,474, 10,167.¢
Capital expenditures:
Electronics Marketing $ 38.C 24.1 58.t
Technology Solutions 43.¢ 26.€ 41.:
Corporate 41.4 46.1 28.¢
$ 123.2 97.¢ 128.¢
Depreciation & amortization expense:
Electronics Marketing $ 48.¢ 51.¢ 38.¢
Technology Solutions 59.C 47.2 39.2
Corporate 29.4 21.¢ 23.2
$ 137.2 120.7 101.2
Sales, by geographic area:
Americas® $ 10,929.! 10,716.( 11,499..
EMEA @ 8,246.: 7,277.¢ 7,408.¢
Asia/Pacific® 8,324.: 7,464.. 6,799.
$ 27,499’ 25,458. 25,707}
Property, plant and equipment, net, by geograpigia:a
Americas®? $ 306.2 283.( 278.F
EMEA © 199.¢ 177.¢ 150.¢
Asia/Pacific 29.4 31.7 31.c
$ 535.( 492.¢ 461.2

(1) Includes sales in the United States of $9i6i® , $9.43 billion and $10.00 billion for fist2014 , 2013 and 201Zespectively

(2) Includes sales in Germany and the United Kamycbf $3.31 billion and $1.36 billion , respectiwefor fiscal 2014. Includes sales
Germany and the United Kingdom of $2.78 billion &t22 billion , respectively, for fiscal 2013ncludes sales in Germany and

United Kingdom of $2.60 billion and $1.40 billiomespectively, for fiscal 2012 .
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(3) Includes sales of $2.63 billion , $2.93 bifliand $1.19 billiorin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapaespectively, fc
fiscal 2014 . Includes sales of $2.28 billion ,48Rbillion and $1.16 billiorin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singag
respectively, for fiscal 2013 . Includes sales DPO® billion , $2.30 billion and $1.20 billion Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) &
Singapore, respectively, for fiscal 2012 .

(4) Includes property, plant and equipment, n€%298.1 million , $273.4 million and $266.7 milfian the United States for fiscal 2014
2013 and 2012, respectively.

(5) Includes property, plant and equipment, nét$26.5 million , $61.0 million , and $12.6 milliom Germany, Belgium and the Uni
Kingdom, respectively, for fiscal 2014 . Fiscal 30ibcludes property, plant and equipment, net, @.% million in Germany$45.]
million in Belgium and $13.1 million in the Unitdingdom. Fiscal 2012 includes property, plant agdipment, net, of $90.6 millioim
Germany, $26.4 million in Belgium and $17.3 millionthe United Kingdom.

Listed in the table below are the Company's majodpct categories and the related sales for eatifegfast three fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 28, June 29, June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(Millions)
Semiconductors $ 13,160.¢ $ 13,720.8 % 13,461.(
Computer products 10,571 9,346.( 9,984..
Connectors 794.7 687.¢ 667.5
Passives, electromechanical and other 2,972t 1,704.! 1,594.(
$ 27,499." $ 25,458.¢ $ 25,707.!

17. Restructuring, integration and other expenses
Fiscal 2014

During fiscal 2014, the Company took certain actionan effort to reduce future operating costéuiiog activities necessary to achi
planned synergies from recently acquired businedseaddition, the Company incurred integration atlder costs primarily associated v
acquired or divested businesses and for the calatimih of facilities. The following table presertse restructuring, integration and ot
expenses incurred during fiscal 2014 :

Year Ended

June 28, 2014

(Thousands)
Restructuring expenses $ 65,74¢
Integration costs 20,45t
Other costs including acquisition costs 8,761
Changes in estimates for prior year restructuriggjlities (34¢)
Restructuring, integration and other expenses befoe $ 94,62
Restructuring, integration and other expenses tdter $ 70,77:
Restructuring, integration and other expenses lpgmeson a diluted basis $ 0.5C
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The activity related to the restructuring liabégiestablished during fiscal 2014 is presenteldrfdllowing table:

Facility
Exit Costs and
Severance Asset
Impairments Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2014 restructuring expenses $ 53,26( $ 11,60¢ $ 881 $ 65,74¢
Cash payments (29,19) (3,029 9 (32,229
Non-cash amounts (260) (4,90€) (53¢) (5,709
Other, principally foreign currency translation (65) 28 10 32

Balance at June 28, 2014 $ 23,74: % 3,697 $ 344 $ 27,78¢

Severance expense recorded in fiscal 2014 relatdgbtreduction, or planned reduction, of over @ @@ployees, primarily in operatiol
sales and business support functions, in conneeatiincost reduction actions taken in both operatinoups, including reductions in rece!
acquired or integrated businesses. Facility exstcprimarily consists of liabilities for remainitease obligations and the impairment of long
lived assets for facilities and information tectowy systems the Company has ceased using. Othrratesing costs related primarily to ot
miscellaneous restructuring and exit costs. Of#6®.7 million in restructuring expenses recordedndufiscal 2014 , $41.3 millionelated ti
EM, $23.1 million related to TS and $1.3 millionated to corporate business support functions.fAkine 28, 2014 management expects
majority of the remaining severance, facility ecassts and other liabilities to be paid by the ehfisoal 2015.

Integration costs are primarily related to the gn&tion of acquired businesses, integration ofaegli business units and incremental ¢
incurred as part of the consolidation, relocatiowl @losure of warehouse and office facilities. ¢gmédion costs include consulting costs
information technology system and business oparatitegration assistance, facility moving costgalefees, travel, meeting, marketing
communication costs that are incrementally incuagsa result of such integration activities. Alsoluded in integration costs are increme
salary costs specific to integration, consolidateomd closure activities. Other costs consists pilynaf professional fees incurred -
acquisitions, additional costs incurred for bussessdivested or exited in current or prior pericgisy ongoing facilities operating cc
associated with the consolidation, relocation aledure of facilities once such facilities have beacated or substantially vacated, and ¢
miscellaneous costs that relate to restructuringggration and other expenses. Integration andr athsts in fiscal 2014vere comprised 1
many different costs, none of which were individyahaterial.

Fiscal 2013

During fiscal 2013, the Company incurred restruogirexpenses related to various restructuring astiatended to reduce costs
response to the then current market conditions. fohewing table presents the restructuring, intggm and other expenses incurred du
fiscal 2013:

Year Ended

June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Restructuring expenses $ 120,04t
Integration costs 35,74.
Other costs including acquisition costs (3,229
Changes in estimates for prior year restructurigigjlities (3,065
Restructuring, integration and other expenses bdor $ 149,50:
Restructuring, integration and other expenses tdter $ 116,38:
Restructuring, integration and other expenses peson a diluted basis $ 0.8t

72




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The fiscal 2014 activity related to the remainiegtructuring liabilities established during fis28l13 is presented in the following table:

Facility
Exit Costs and
Asset
Severance Impairments Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 29, 2013 $ 25,25 % 16,21: $ 37C $ 41,83t
Cash payments (20,137 (7,672 (326 (28,13%)
Changes in estimates, net (2,287 (1,607) 963 (2,929
Non-cash amounts — 92¢ (485) 442
Other, principally foreign currency translation 16€ 40¢ 89 663
Balance at June 28, 2014 $ 3,000 $ 8,27. $ 611 $ 11,88t

Of the $120.0 million in restructuring expensesorded during fiscal 2013, $68.9 million relatedgM, $48.0 millionrelated to TS ar
$3.1 million related to corporate business supfurttions. As of June 28, 2014nanagement expects the majority of the remaiséwgranc:
facility exit and other liabilities to be utilizday the end of fiscal 2015 .

Integration costs incurred related primarily to tinkegration of acquired businesses and incremestats incurred as part of -
consolidation and closure of certain office andetause facilities.

Other costs incurred during fiscal 2013 relatednprily to professional fees for advisory servicad &gal and accounting due dilige
procedures and other legal costs associated wighigitons. Included in other costs is a benefigdl.2 millionrelated to a change in estim
for a contingent consideration liability for whiglayment was no longer expected.

Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company incurred expenseeduce costs, including costs related to theiaitun and integration activities
associated with acquired businesses as follows:

Year Ended

June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Restructuring expenses $ 50,25
Integration costs 9,392
Other costs including acquisition costs 17,22¢
Changes in estimates for prior year restructuriggjlities (3,286
Restructuring, integration and other expenses befoe $ 73,58¢
Restructuring, integration and other expenses tdier $ 52,96
Restructuring, integration and other expenses eeson a diluted basis $ 0.3¢

Of the $50.3 million in restructuring expenses rded during fiscal 2012, $27.5 million related tol Bnd $22.8 million related to TS.

Integration costs incurred related primarily to tiéegration of acquired businesses and incremesdats incurred as part of -
consolidation and closure of certain office andetause facilities.

Other costs incurred during fiscal 2012 relatedngrily to professional fees for advisory and brokervices, legal and accounting
diligence, and other legal costs associated witjuiaitions. Other costs also included $6.7 millionlegal claims associated with acquired
divested businesses.
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As of June 29, 2013, there was $4.7 millafrrestructuring liabilities remaining related &structuring actions taken in fiscal years -
and prior, the majority of which relates to fagiliéxit costs. The remaining balance for such hisabrestructuring liabilities as of June
2014 was $1.2 million , which is expected to bedfai the end of fiscal 2016 .
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Years Ended June 28, 2014 , June 29, 2013 and Ji8te 2012

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Expense Other End of
Account Description Period (Income) Accounts Deductions Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2014
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 95,65¢ $ 17,94 $ — $ (17,21 (@ $ 96,38
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 230,82: (52,719 (b) 4,021 (c) — 182,12:
Fiscal 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts 106,31¢ 30,80: — (41,465 (a) 95,65¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 244,09: (41,577 (d) 28,30( (e) — 230,82:
Fiscal 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts 107,73¢ 35,63: — (37,059 (a) 106,31
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 310,77: (30,785 (35,899 (f) — 244,09:

(&) Uncollectible receivables written ¢

(b) Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $¢nillion impacted the effective tax ri
offset by $6.0 million , which impacted deferredda associated with the release of the valuatiomahce (see Note 9).

(c) Primarily related to rate changes on valuationvedlioces previously established in various foreigisglictions

(d) Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $million impacted the effective tax r:
offset by $4.8 million , which impacted deferredea associated with the release of the valuatiowahce (see Note 9).

(e) Primarily related to additional valuation allowarsder newly acquired companies and companies witistary of losse
(H Primarily relates to the translation impact of ofpasin foreign currency exchange rates and acquattion allowance
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Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Jun€@&0, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers' Certificate establishing the terms of 4h&75% Notes due 2022 (incorporated herein byeafe to the
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by reference to the Company’s Current Report omRK dated February 14, 2011, Exhibit 10.2).
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reference to the Registrant's Form 10-K for thedliyear ended June 29, 2013, Exhibit 10.3).
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Registrant's Form 10-Q for the period ended Dece@®e2013, Exhibit 10.2).
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Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septethkiz013, Exhibit 10.1).
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Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Decerm®e?008, Exhibit 10.2).
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Company’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fispadr ended June 29, 2013, Exhibit 10.5).



10.7 Form of Change of Control Agreement between the m Richard Hamada, Gerry Fay, Erin Lewin, Keviarldrty
and Steve Phillips (incorporated herein by refeegiocthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dé&elruary 14,
2011, Exhibit 10.3).

10.8 Form of Change of Control Agreement between the @om and each of Harley Feldberg, Phillip Gallagireat
MaryAnn Miller, (incorporated herein by referencetthe Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dateceber 19,
2008, Exhibit 10.3).
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January 1, 2009) (incorporated herein by referém¢ke Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datedust 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet Supplemental Executive Officers’ Retiremela(2013 Restatement) (incorporated herein byreefs to the
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year ended June 29, 2013, Exhibit 10.14).

Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Current Report on Fihdated
August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetiRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 20Milkit 10.4).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan:

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agneat

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agremt for non-employee director
(c) Form of incentive stock option agreetmen

(d) Form of performance stock unit termethe

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 262 Exhibit 10.3).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetiRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202Mhilkit 10.5).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan:

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agneat

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agremt for non-employee director

(c) Form of performance stock unit termetheevised effective August 13, 2009 by (f) below)
(d) Form of incentive stock option agreeinen

(e) Long Term Incentive Letter

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2@hibit 99.1).

(f) Form of performance stock unit term sheetdiporated herein by reference to the Company’sedtiReport on
Form 8-K dated August 19, 2009, Exhibit 99.1).

Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan (incorfeatderein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Canys
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration3$8-171291).

Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan:
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(b) Form of incentive stock option agreement
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sheet
(d) Form of restricted stock unit term sheet
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(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of DecemBePQ02, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2d{aye (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10E).

(f) Amendment No. 5, dated as of AugustZ2)3, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(@yefincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10C)

(g) Amendment No. 6, dated as of Augug(8)5, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(ayefiacorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated September 13, 2005, Exhibit)10.1
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Exhibit

(h) Amendment No. 7, dated as of August 29, 2@®Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(a) aboweporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.7).

(i) Amendment No. 8, dated as of AugustZZBL0, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(@yalincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 1, 2010, Exhibit 10.2)

(i) Second Amended and Restated Receisdhlechase Agreement dated as of August 26, 20b8g#hwvnet
Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, IncSawicer, the Financial Institutions party theratal JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as Agent (incorporated herein by refeeeto the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K di&eptember 1,
2010, Exhibit 10.1).

(k) Amendment No. 1, dated as of Decen®82010, to the Second Amended and Restated Rdéxtes/Purchase
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company’s Quarterly Report omFbd-Q for the
period ended October 1, 2011, Exhibit 10.2).

() Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 25, 2@dthe Second Amended and Restated Receivabtebdze
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company's Current Report on RsKrdated
August 26, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

(m) Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 7, 2012héoSecond Amended and Restated Receivables Purshsssment
in 10.27(j) above (incorporated herein by referetoche Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qterperiod ended
March 31, 2012, Exhibit 10.1).

(n) Amendment No. 4 dated as of August 23, 201thedSecond Amended and Restated Receivables Barcha
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company's Current Report on RsKrdated
August 24, 2012, Exhibit 10.1).

(o) Amendment No. 5 dated as of August 22, 201iBédSecond Amended and Restated Receivables Parchas
Agreement (incorporated herein by reference tdbmpany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Aug@seR13,
Exhibit 10.1).

Credit Agreement dated as of NovembeR@8]1 among Avnet, Inc., Bank of America, N.A. Agiministrative Agent,
and each lender thereto (incorporated herein lareate to the Company’s Current Report on Formdat€¢d November
22, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of subsidiaries of the Company as af€29, 2013.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification pursuant to Section 302of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 302oé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlké Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docutnen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculationrikbase Document.



101.LAB ** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbag&®mcument.
101.PRE ** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentationkbase Document.

101.DEF ** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Lkbase Document.

* Filed herewith.

*x Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 10.23(a
AVNET, INC.
TERM SHEET FOR 2013 STOCK COMPENSATION AND INCENTIV E PLAN
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, Avnet, Inc. lfe “Company”),hereby grants to the Particip
named below the incentive stock option (the “Oplido purchase any part or all of the number of shafés commo!
stock (the “Stock™that are covered by this Option, as specified behivihe exercise price per share specified k
and upon the terms and subject to the condition®sh in this Term Sheet, the Avnet, Inc. 2018c¢&t Compensatic
and Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), and the Standaedn®s and Conditions for Incentive Stock Options (tBtandar
Terms and Conditions”) attached to this Term Sheet.

Name of Participant:

Employee Number:

Grant Date:

Number of Shares of Stock covered by
Option:

Exercise Price Per Share: $

Expiration Date:

Vesting Schedule:

This Option is intended to qualify as an incentteck option under Section 422 of the Internal ReeeCode of 198
as amended. By accepting this Term Sheet, thecRamit acknowledges that he or she has receivedeant] and agre
that this Option shall be subject to, the termthif Term Sheet, the Plan, and the Standard Temch&€anditions.

AVNET, INC.
Participant's Printed Name
By:
Title: Participant Signature

Address: (please print)







AVNET, INC.
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS

These Standard Terms and Conditions for IncentteekSOptions (the “Standard Terms and Conditiogiply to an
Options granted under the Avnet, Inc. 2013 Stock@ensation and Incentive Plan (the “Platiiat are identified ¢
incentive stock options and evidenced by a TermeSbean action of the Administrator that referghiese Standa
Terms and Conditions.

1.

TERMS OF OPTION

Avnet, Inc. (*Avnet”) has granted to the Participant named in the attheem Sheet an incentive stock op
(the “Option”) to purchase up to the number of sBawmf Avnet's common stock (the “Stocls8t forth in th
Term Sheet, at the purchase price per share andtbpmther terms and subject to the condition$ostt in the
Term Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditiorksthen Plan. For purposes of these Standard Tern
Conditions and the Term Sheet, the “Company” refevnet and its Subsidiaries.

The Option is intended to be an incentive stockooptinder Section 422 of the Internal Revenue CGEdE86
as amended (the “Code”), except to the extent wikerprovided herein. To the extent required bytiSeci22
(d) of the Code, the Option shall not be treatedragncentive stock option to the extent that thgragate fa
market value of shares of Stock with respect t@mtge stock options that are exercisable for th& fime
during any calendar year exceeds $100,000.

EXERCISE OF OPTION

The Option shall not be exercisable as of the gilate set forth in the Term Sheet (the “Grant Dat&fter the
Grant Date, the Option shall be exercisable onlyht extent that it becomes vested in accordante tive
vesting schedule set forth in the Term Sheet, stitgetermination or acceleration as provided iesth Standa
Terms and Conditions and the Plan. If the Partidigaemployment with the Company terminates, the @
shall cease to be exercisable, except to the es#ribrth in Section 3, below.

The vesting period and/or exercisability of an Optimay be adjusted by the Administrator to refltdw
decreased level of employment during any periodhich the Participant is on an approved leave skabe c
is employed on a less than full time basis, pravitleat the Administrator may take into consideratamny
accounting consequences to the Company.




To exercise the Option (or any part thereof), theiBipant shall provide notice to Avnet, in a foapproved b
Avnet, specifying the number of whole shares StBakticipant wishes to purchase, and shall pay tterdise
Price for such shares.

The exercise price of the Option (the “Exercise®iis set forth in the Term Sheet. The Exercise Paiud/o
any required tax withholding may be paid in cashbgrcertified or cashiers' check, by “cashlesgércis:
methods such as direct share withholding, or by satlser method (including transfer of Stock pregigiowner
by the Participant, or brokerssisted Regulation T simultaneous exercise am), s the Administrator permr
in its sole discretion. Fractional shares may mogkercised.

Shares of Stock will be issued as soon as praciital exercise; provided, however, that Avnet Ishat be
obligated to deliver shares of Stock if (a) the tiegrant has not satisfied all applicable tax wilting
obligations, (b) the Stock is not properly registeor subject to an applicable exemption therefr@)the Stoc
is not listed on the stock exchanges on which Asrfetock is otherwise listed, or (d) Avnet deteresithat th
exercisability of the Option or the delivery of sbs hereunder would violate any federal or stateir#tées o
other applicable laws. The Option may be rescintiedcessary to ensure compliance with federale siaothe
applicable laws. The Participant shall not acqoirdhave any rights as a shareholder of Avnet @hidres ¢
Stock issuable upon exercise of the Option areadlgtissued and delivered to the Participant inoaganc
herewith.

EXPIRATION OF OPTION

Except as provided in this Section 3, the Opticallgxpire and cease to be exercisable as of tipgdon Dat:
set forth in the Term Sheet.

A. If the Participant ceases to be employed by the g2mmy prior to a Change in Control for any re¢
other than death, disability, or Retirement (asn#ef below), the Option shall immediately expired
cease to be exercisable.

B. If the Participant ceases to be employed by the 2oy by reason of Retirement (as defined belove
Option shall continue to vest as set forth in tleenT Sheet and these Standard Terms and Conditnat,
subject to the special rules that apply in the ewdrdeath (as set forth in Paragraph D, belowa|l
remain exercisable until the earlier of (i) thetHfifanniversary of the Participast'cessation
employment with the Company or (ii) the Expirati@ate (unless such Option shall soonel
surrendered for termination or expire). Howeverthe extent required by Section 422 of the Code
Option shall cease to be an incentive stock optioee months after the Participant ceases to |
employee of the Company and shall thereafter berequmlified stock option. For purposes here:
cessation of




employment will be treated as a “Retiremeii{and only if) (a) the cessation of employmentws afte
(I) the Participant has attained at least age Sbb@en credited with at least five years of serwith the
Company and (II) the combination of the Participsiaige plus years of service is no less than 65(t3
the Participant has signed a two-year non-competagreement in a form acceptable to the Company

C. If the Participans employment with or service to the Company tertemaor ceases by reasor
disability (as determined by the Administrator is $ole discretion), the Option shall remain e>szigle
only to the extent vested as of such cessatiomnpie@yment or service and shall cease to be exdie
upon the earlier of (i) three months after the ddteuch cessation of employment or (ii) the Exjiir
Date (unless such Option shall sooner be surredderetermination or expire). The provisions ofs
Section 4.C shall apply to a Participant who has provided services to the Company for twi
consecutive months due to long-term disability &eav

D. If the Participant dies either while in the emplalythe Company or within five years after Retiren
from the Company (as defined above), the Optiorl bleaexercisable only to the extent vested ae
date of death and shall cease to be exercisabla thm earliest of (i) the first anniversary of
Participant’s death, (ii) the Expiration Date, o) (he fifth anniversary of the Participastterminatiol
date, as set forth in Paragraph B, above. If thiidfzant dies while actively employed, or withinrege
months after the Participasttessation of employment with the Company, thec@ptill continue to b
treated as an incentive stock option until theiestrlof the dates described in the preceding seetdl
the Participant’s death occurs more than threen@)ths after the Participasttessation of employme
with the Company, the Option will cease to be acemive stock option and will be treated ¢
nongualified stock option.

E. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Staddaerms and Conditions, in the event of a Chan
Control, the Option shall become immediately exaable in full (unless it shall sooner have [
surrendered for termination or have expired).

RESTRICTIONS ON RESALES OF OPTION SHARES

The Company may impose such restrictions, condifiamd limitations as it determines appropriatéoathe
timing and manner of any resales by the Participawther subsequent transfers by the Participbahy share
of Stock issued as a result of the exercise ofXp#on, including (a) restrictions under an insittading policy
(b) restrictions designed




to delay and/or coordinate the timing and mannesales by the Participant and other optionholdés)
requiring that you acknowledge and accept theseddtd Terms and Conditions and the Term Sheet(d)
restrictions as to the use of a specified brokefiaugefor such resales or other transfers.

TAXES

The Participant acknowledges that the deliveryhafres of Stock following exercise of the Optionlgénerally
give rise to a withholding tax obligation, and thia¢ issuance of shares of Stock hereunder is toned or
timely satisfying such withholding obligation. THearticipant shall make arrangements satisfactoryht
Company for satisfying such withholding obligatiof$ie Administrator, in its sole discretion, majoal the
Participant to satisfy all or part of such tax ghtion through withholding of shares of Stock ottise issuabl
to the Participant; the Participant transferringAnet nonrestricted shares of Stock previously edviby thi
Participant; and/or allowing the Participant to agg in a brokeassisted Regulation T simultaneous exe
and sale. No provision of the Plan, the Term Shedhese Standard Terms and Conditions shall bsteeed t
transfer to the Company or any of its affiliatey aasponsibility to pay any income, employment,isxco
other taxes attributable to the grant or exercidgbe Option or the disposition of the underlyiraees.

NON-TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION

To the extent that the Option is intended to benaentive stock option, and to the extent requingdSectiol
422 of the Code, the Option: (i) shall be exerdsaluring the Participant's lifetime only by thertRapant, an
(i) may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assignexchanged, encumbered, or otherwise alienat
hypothecated, except by testamentary dispositiathéyParticipant or the laws of descent and distidin.

If the Option is not an incentive stock option,rtrexcept to the extent permitted by this paragréupd Optiol
shall be exercisable during the Participant'sififet only by the Participant. The Option may not dwéd
transferred, pledged, assigned, exchanged, encedhber otherwise alienated or hypothecated, ex(efity
testamentary disposition by the Participant orléives of descent and distribution, or (ii) to theest otherwis
permitted by the Plan, if (and only if) approvedthg Administrator in its sole discretion.

THE PLAN; DEFINED TERMS; ENTIRE AGREEMENT

In addition to these Standard Terms and Condititmes Option shall be subject to the terms of trenPivhicl
are incorporated into these Standard Terms and ittmm&l by this reference. Capitalized terms noteothise
defined herein shall have the meaning set forth




in the Plan, and the rules of construction sethfant the Plan shall also apply to these Standammn3ean:
Conditions.

The Term Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditodsthe Plan constitute the entire understaniatgyee!
the Participant and the Company regarding the @pthmy prior agreements, commitments or negotia
concerning the Option are superseded.

LIMITATION OF INTEREST IN SHARES SUBJECT TO OPTION

Neither the Participant (individually or as a membg&a group) nor any beneficiary or other perstanting
under or through the Participant shall have anftyigitle, interest, or privilege in or to any searof Stoc
allocated or reserved for the purpose of the Plasubject to the Term Sheet or these Standard Tamt
Conditions, except as to such shares of Stoclkyyif that have been issued to such person uponisgetthe
Option or any part of it. Nothing in the Plan, therm Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditioras)yoothe
instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shallecargon the Participant any right to continue m @ompany
employ or service or limit in any way the Compamght to terminate the Participant's employmenrdrat time
and for any reason. As this grant was made in bselate discretion of management and the Admiricst,
receipt of these Options does not confer upon #dréidipant any right to future awards or participatin any
equity compensation program.

Neither the Award of these Options nor any sharffeStock issuable pursuant thereto shall be incluih
compensation for purposes of determining the am@angtble to or on behalf of the Participant undey
pension, savings, retirement, life insurance, beoemployee or director benefits arrangement ®Gbmpany
unless otherwise determined by the plan sponsor.

GENERAL

If any provision of these Standard Terms and Camubt is declared to be illegal, invalid, or othesg
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictisunch provision shall be reformed, if possiblethe exter
necessary to render it legal, valid, and enforegai otherwise deleted, and the remainder of ti&aadar
Terms andConditions shall not be affected except to thergxtecessary to reform or delete such illegal, lidy
or unenforceable provision.

The headings preceding the text of the sectionsdfi@re inserted solely for convenience of refeeeand sha
not constitute a part of these Standard Terms amdlions, nor shall they affect its meaning, cangion, o
effect.




These Standard Terms and Conditions shall inutbddbenefit of and be binding upon the parties thead(
their respective permitted heirs, beneficiariescegsors and assigns.

The Participant acknowledges that a copy of the,Rle Plan prospectus, and Avnet's most recentahmepor
to its shareholders has been delivered to thedjzatit.

The Plan, the Term Sheet, and these Standard Tawmth€onditions shall be governed, construed, intéed
and administered solely in accordance with the lafvihe state of New York, without regard to priples o
conflicts of law.

All questions arising under the Plan, the Term $heeed these Standard Terms and Conditions shalebigles
by the Administrator in its total and absolute dition. It is expressly understood that the Adntrater is
authorized to administer, construe, and make adrdenations necessary or appropriate to the adination o
the Plan, the Term Sheet, and these Standard Tamth€Londitions; all such determinations shall bedioic
upon the Participant.




Exhibit 10.23(b)

AVNET, INC.
TERM SHEET FOR 2013 STOCK COMPENSATION AND INCENTIV E PLAN
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTIONS

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, Avnet, Inc. lfe “Company”)hereby grants to the Participant named b
the nonqualified stock option (the “Option”) to pbase any part or all of the number of sharessatdgtnmon stock (the “Stock”
that are covered by this Option, as specified be&ivthe exercise price per share specified betwvwgon the terms and subjec
the conditions set forth in this Term Sheet, thenéty Inc. 2013 Stock Compensation and Incentive Riae “Plan”),and thi
Standard Terms and Conditions for Nonqualified Kt@ptions (the “Standard Terms and Conditiorstiached to this Ter
Sheet.

Name of Participan

Employee Number:

Grant Date:

Number of Shares of Stock covered by
Option:

Exercise Price Per Share: $

Expiration Date:

Vesting Schedule:

This Option is not intended to qualify as an inoanistock option under Section 422 of the IntefRalvenue Code of 1986,
amended. By accepting this Term Sheet, the Paatitipcknowledges that he or she has received al] aad agrees that t
Option shall be subject to, the terms of this T&imeet, the Plan, and the Standard Terms and Camsliti

AVNET, INC.

Participant's Printed Name
By:
Title: Participant Signature

Address (please print):







AVNET, INC.
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTIONS

These Standard Terms and Conditions for Nonqudliisock Options (the “Standard Terms and Conditjoapply tc
any Options granted under the Avnet, Inc. 2013 I5@ompensation and Incentive Plan (the “Plahgt are identifie
as nonqualified stock options and evidenced by @nT8heet or an action of the Administrator thaerefto thes
Standard Terms and Conditions.

1.

TERMS OF OPTION

Avnet, Inc. (“Avnet”) has granted to the Participant named in the attadleem Sheet a nonqualified st
option (the “Option”) to purchase up to the numbkshares of Avnet's common stock (the “Stod€) forth ir
the Term Sheet, at the purchase price per sharamordthe other terms and subject to the conditsetdorth it
the Term Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditamasthe Plan. For purposes of these Standardslan
Conditions and the Term Sheet, the “Company” refle&vnet and its Subsidiaries.

NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION

The Option is not intended to be an incentive stopkion under Section 422 of the Internal RevenodeCo
1986, as amended (the “Code”).

EXERCISE OF OPTION

The Option shall not be exercisable as of the giate set forth in the Term Sheet (the “Grant Dat&fter the
Grant Date, the Option shall be exercisable onlyht extent that it becomes vested in accordante tve
vesting schedule set forth in the Term Sheet, stitpetermination or acceleration as provided msth Standa
Terms and Conditions and the Plan. If the Partidigaemployment with the Company terminates, the @
shall cease to be exercisable, except to the es#ribrth in Section 4, below.

The vesting period and/or exercisability of an Optimay be adjusted by the Administrator to refldw
decreased level of employment during any perioghich the Participant is on an approved leave skabe ¢
is employed on a less than full time basis, pravitleat the Administrator may take into consideratamny
accounting consequences to the Company.

To exercise the Option (or any part thereof), thgiBipant shall provide notice to Avnet, in a foapproved b
Avnet, specifying the number of whole shares StBakticipant wishes to purchase, and shall pay tterdise
Price for such shares.




The exercise price of the Option (the “Exercise®iis set forth in the Term Sheet. The Exercise Paitd/o
any required tax withholding may be paid in cashbgrcertified or cashiers' check, by “cashlesgércis:
methods such as direct share withholding, or by stlser method (including transfer of Stock pregiglowner
by the Participant, or brokexssisted Regulation T simultaneous exercise am(, s the Administrator permr
in its sole discretion. Fractional shares may moéxercised.

Shares of Stock will be issued as soon as practitel exercise; provided, however, that Avnet Ishat be
obligated to deliver shares of Stock if (a) thetiegrant has not satisfied all applicable tax wilting
obligations, (b) the Stock is not properly registeor subject to an applicable exemption therefi@ythe Stoc
is not listed on the stock exchanges on which Asrgtock is otherwise listed, or (d) Avnet deteresithat th
exercisability of the Option or the delivery of sb& hereunder would violate any federal or stateir#ges o
other applicable laws. The Option may be rescintiedcessary to ensure compliance with federale siaothe
applicable laws. The Participant shall not acqoirdhave any rights as a shareholder of Avnet @hidres ¢
Stock issuable upon exercise of the Option areadlgtissued and delivered to the Participant inoaganc:
herewith.

EXPIRATION OF OPTION

Except as provided in this Section 4, the Opticallstxpire and cease to be exercisable as of tipgdiion Dat:
set forth in the Term Sheet.

A. If the Participant employment or service with the Company terminptes to a Change in Control 1
any reason other than death, disability, or Retnginfas defined below), the Option shall immedy
expire and cease to be exercisable.

B. If the Participans employment or service with the Company terminéggeason of Retirement
defined below), the Option shall continue to vestat forth in the Term Sheet and these Standards
and Conditions and, subject to the special rulesdpply in the event of death (as set forth iraBapl
D, below), shall remain exercisable until the earbf (i) the fifth anniversary of the terminatiement o
(ii) the Expiration Date (unless such Option sisalbner be surrendered for termination or expire)
purposes hereof, a cessation of employment wiltrbated as a “Retiremenif (and only if) (a) th
cessation of employment occurs after (I) the Paditt has attained at least age 55 and been a
with at least five years of service with the Compand (1) the combination of the Participan#ige plu
years of service is no less than 65; and (b) thedimnt has signed a nammmpetition agreement ir
form acceptable to the Company.

C. If the Participans employment with or service to the Company tertemaor ceases by reasor
disability (as determined by the Administrator & $ole discretion), the Option shall remain e>saoie
only to the extent vested as of such cessatioopi@/ment or service and shall cease to be exdule
upon the earlier of (i) three months after the date






of the termination event or (ii) the Expiration Bgunless such Option shall sooner be surrenden
termination or expire). Unless the provisions oft®a 4.B apply, the provisions of this Section 4l@l
apply to a Participant who has not provided sesvicethe Company for twelve consecutive months
to long-term disability leave.

D. If the Participans employment or service with the Company termindtgsreason of death or i
Participant dies within five years after Retiremiom the Company (as defined above), the Opticil
be exercisable only to the extent vested as ofl#ite of death and shall cease to be exercisabie ting
earliest of (i) the first anniversary of the Papgant's death, (ii) the Expiration Date, or (iii) thetfi
anniversary of the Participant’s termination dateset forth in Paragraph B, above.

E. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Staddaerms and Conditions, in the event of a Chan
Control, the Option shall become immediately exaable in full (unless it shall sooner have [
surrendered for termination or have expired).

RESTRICTIONS ON RESALES OF OPTION SHARES

The Company may impose such restrictions, condifiamd limitations as it determines appropriatéoathe
timing and manner of any resales by the Participawther subsequent transfers by the Participbaihy share
of Stock issued as a result of the exercise ofp#on, including (a) restrictions under an insittading policy
(b) restrictions designed to delay and/or coordirthe timing and manner of sales by the Participant othe
optionholders, (c) requiring that you acknowledgd accept these Standard Terms and Conditionshantiern
Sheet, and (d) restrictions as to the use of afsgbbrokerage firm for such resales or other dfars.

TAXES

The Participant acknowledges that the deliveryhaires of Stock following exercise of the Optionlgénerally
give rise to a withholding tax obligation, and thia¢ issuance of shares of Stock hereunder is toned or
timely satisfying such withholding obligation. THearticipant shall make arrangements satisfactoryht
Company for satisfying such withholding obligatiod$ie Administrator, in its sole discretion, majoel the
Participant to satisfy all or part of such tax ghtion through withholding of shares of Stock otfise issuabl
to the Participant; the Participant transferringAnet nonrestricted shares of Stock previously edviby thi
Participant; and/or allowing the Participant to &g in a brokeassisted Regulation T simultaneous exe
and sale. No provision of the Plan, the Term Stwdtese Standard Terms and Conditions shall bstaged t
transfer to the Company or any of its affiliatesy amesponsibility of the Participant to pay any intE
employment, excise, or other taxes attributabléhtogrant or exercise of the Option or the dispmsiof the
underlying shares.

NON-TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION




10.

Except to the extent permitted by Section 4.D dnd Section 7, the Option shall be exercisablenduthe
Participant's lifetime only by the Participant. Thption may not be sold, transferred, pledged,gassi
exchanged, encumbered, or otherwise alienated pothgcated, except (i) by testamentary dispositiprihe
Participant or the laws of descent and distribytmn(ii) to the extent otherwise permitted by tan, if (an
only if) approved by the Administrator in its salescretion.

THE PLAN; DEFINED TERMS; ENTIRE AGREEMENT

In addition to these Standard Terms and Conditithmes Option shall be subject to the terms of trenPivhicl
are incorporated into these Standard Terms and ittmm&l by this reference. Capitalized terms noteothise
defined herein shall have the meaning set forthenPlan, and the rules of construction set fartthe Plan she
also apply to these Standard Terms and Conditions.

The Term Sheet, these Standard Terms and Condiodsthe Plan constitute the entire understanitgyee!
the Participant and the Company regarding the @pthmy prior agreements, commitments or negotia
concerning the Option are superseded.

LIMITATION OF INTEREST IN SHARES SUBJECT TO OPTION

Neither the Participant (individually or as a membg&a group) nor any beneficiary or other perstamnting
under or through the Participant shall have anftrigitle, interest, or privilege in or to any searof Stoc
allocated or reserved for the purpose of the Plasubject to the Term Sheet or these Standard Tamt
Conditions, except as to such shares of Stoclkyyif that have been issued to such person uponisgetthe
Option or any part of it. Nothing in the Plan, therm Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditioras)yoothe
instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shallezargon the Participant any right to continue im @ompany
employ or service or limit in any way the Compamgét to terminate the Participant's employmensemvice ¢
any time and for any reason. As this grant was madée absolute discretion of management ant
Administrator, receipt of these Options does natfeo upon the Participant any right to future avsam
participation in any equity compensation program.

Neither the Award of this Option nor any sharesSt#bck issuable pursuant thereto shall be incluah
compensation for purposes of determining the am@angtble to or on behalf of the Participant undey
pension, savings, retirement, life insurance, bepnemployee or director benefits arrangement ®Gbmpany
unless otherwise determined by the plan sponsor.

GENERAL

If any provision of these Standard Terms and Camubt is declared to be illegal, invalid, or othesg
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictismch provision shall be reformed, if possibleithe exter
necessary to render it legal, valid, and enforezail otherwise deleted, and the






remainder of these Standard Terms and Conditioal 1sbt be affected except to the extent necedsargforn
or delete such illegal, invalid, or unenforceahievision.

The headings preceding the text of the sectionsdfi@re inserted solely for convenience of refeeeand sha
not constitute a part of these Standard Terms amdlions, nor shall they affect its meaning, cangion, o
effect.

These Standard Terms and Conditions shall inutbddbenefit of and be binding upon the parties thead(
their respective permitted heirs, beneficiariescegsors and assigns.

The Participant acknowledges that a copy of the,Rle Plan prospectus, and Avnet's most recentahmepor
to its shareholders has been delivered to thedijzatit.

The Plan, the Term Sheet, and these Standard Tawmth€onditions shall be governed, construed, intéed
and administered solely in accordance with the lafvihe state of New York, without regard to priples o
conflicts of law.

All questions arising under the Plan, the Term $heeed these Standard Terms and Conditions shalebigles
by the Administrator in its total and absolute dition. It is expressly understood that the Adntrater is
authorized to administer, construe, and make adrdenations necessary or appropriate to the adination o
the Plan, the Term Sheet, and these Standard Tamth€Londitions; all such determinations shall bedipic
upon the Participant.




Exhibit 10.23(c]
AVNET, INC.

TERM SHEET FOR 2013 STOCK COMPENSATION AND INCENTIV E PLAN
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD

FISCAL 20__ - FISCAL 20 __ PERFORMANCE PERIOD
Avnet, Inc. hereby grants to the Participant nafpeldw an award of performance stock units (the fd?arance Stock Unitsbr
“PSUs") for the thregrear Performance Period defined in the Standarch3emd Conditions, upon the terms and conditiot

forth in this Term Sheet, the Avnet, Inc. 2013 t@ompensation and Incentive Plan (the “Plaaf)d the Standard Terms
Conditions for Performance Stock Units (the “Staddeerms and Conditions”) attached to this Termebhe

Name of Participan
Grant Date:
Target Number of Shares:
Vesting Schedule:
The vesting conditions for the PSUs are set fartthé Standard Terms and Conditions.

By accepting this award, the Participant acknowésdipat he or she has received and read, and dgegdisese PSUs shall be
subject to, the terms of the Plan, this Term Shedtthe attached Standard Terms and Conditions.

AVNET, INC.

By:

Kevin Moriarty
Title: Senior Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer




AVNET, INC.
2013 STOCK COMPENSATION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

FISCAL 20__ - FISCAL 20__ PERFORMANCE PERIOD

These Standard Terms and Conditions for Performaétoek Units (the “Standard Terms and Conditionapply to an
Performance Stock Units granted under the Avnet, 2013 Stock Compensation and Incentive Plan “@hen”) for the Fisce
20__ through Fiscal 20__ Performance Period (asettbelow) that are identified as performancelstotts and evidenced b
Term Sheet or an action of the Administrator tleé¢ns to these Standard Terms and Conditions.

1. TERMS OF PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

Avnet, Inc. (“Avnet”) has granted to the Participant named in the attadiegm Sheet performance stock units
“Performance Stock Units” or “PSUs"$ubject to the conditions set forth in the Terme®hthese Standard Terms
Conditions, and the Plan. For purposes of theseddtd Terms and Conditions and the Term SheetQbmpany”refers
to Avnet and its subsidiaries.

2. VESTING AND PERFORMANCE

The number of PSUs that become vested shall bendieed based upon performance over ye8r performance cyc
beginning as of , and ending on ‘freeformance Period”)Except as set forth elsewhere in tt
Standard Terms and Conditions, the vesting of ®B<is subject to (a) the Participant remainingticoously employe
by, or in the service of, the Company from the GMaate through the last day of they8ar Performance Period
described in Section 3, below), and (b) Avnet adghg the Annual Relative Economic Profit PerformantAnnua
Relative EP") and Relative Total Shareholder Re®enformance (“Relative TSR'§oals set forth below. For purpo
hereof:

* “Annual Relative EP” means, with respect to efistal year in the Performance Period, Avaattonomic profit p
dollar of average capital for such fiscal year aspared to the economic profit per dollar of averagpitalof the
companies in the S&P Supercomposite Technologyibigbrs Index--Subadustry Index, excluding Avnet (s
Exhibit A) (the “Distributors Index”).

*“Economic profit” for a business means operating income after taul@ieg an effective tax rate of 35%), less a ct
charge of 10% on the amount of capital investethenbusiness. For purposes hereof, “operating ietarclude
certain items as determined by the Administratochsas restructuring charges, asset writedownsainments, an
financial impacts of accounting, tax, and regukatdranges, etc.

* “Relative TSR” means the percentile rank (from @4ibr the lowest to 100%ile for the highest) of Avs Tota
Shareholder Return compared to the individual tetereholder return of each company in the S&P M@0l
Information Technology Index, including Avnet, oube 3-year Performance Period (the “TechnologegXid






» “Total Shareholder Return” means, for each companlge Technology Index, the percentage calculas#ag the
following formula:

Average stock price at end of periedverage stock price at start of period + dividends
Average stock price at start of period

A company’s average stock price at the start ofréhevant period shall equal its 8@&ding day average immediat
before and including the start day, and a compaayerage stock price at the end of the relevaigshall equal it
30-trading day average immediately before and dginlythe end day of the applicable period.

Performance GoalsThe number of PSUs that become vested undeatdsd (subject to satisfying the service condifj
shall equal the sum of (i) the Annual Relative Eiipn, plus (ii) the Relative TSR portion, eachdascribed below.

(DAnnual Relative EP Portion The Annual Relative EP portion equals ¢hied of the annual Earned EP Percen
(described below) for each fiscal year, multiplledthe Target Number of Shares set forth in thexir8hee
multiplied by 50%. The calculation includes thddaling elements:

* The annual Earned EP Percentage for each yeartghallpercentage ranging from 0% to 200%, accort
the following matrix:

Annual Relative EP -10% -5% 0% +5% +10%

Annual Earned EP Percentage 0% 50% 100% 150% 00%?2

If Avnet’'s Annual Relative EP for a year is between two e@ment levels set forth in the table above
annual Earned EP Percentage for the fiscal yedirtshdetermined by linear interpolation.

*The Participant’s total Earned EP Percentage wilbbethird of the annual Earned EP Percentages for s
year, as follows:

Total Earned EP Percentage = Fiscal 20__ Ed&ReBlercentage x 1/3 +
Fiscal 20 Earned EP Percenkaly3 +
Fiscal 20__ Earned EP Percenkaty3
*The Participant’'s Annual Relative EP portion equlésParticipans total Earned EP Percentage times the T
Number of Shares times 50%.

(i) Relative TSR Portion The Relative TSR Portion equals the Earned TSReRtage (described below) for the three
year Performance Period, multiplied by the Targeider of Shares set forth in the Term Sheet, migtigby
50%. The Earned TSR Percentage shall be a pereerdgaging from 0% to 200%, according to the follog
matrix:




Relative TSR <30%ile 30%ile 50%ile 75%ile+
(Percentile Rank)

Earned TSR Percentage 0% 50% 100% 200%

If Avnet’'s actual Relative TSR percentile rank is betweem dshievement levels set forth in the table abtw
Earned TSR Percentage shall be determined by lingapolation.

(iif) Administratots Determination The Administrator shall determine the Earned ER&ntage, Earned TSR Percent
and number of PSUs that become vested in its dsézetion; provided that if the Participant is @vere«
employee” under Section 162(m) of the Internal RexeCode of 1986, as amended (the “Cod&8,level o
achievement shall be determined in a manner thigfisa the requirements under Section 162(m) efGlad:
for performancddased compensation and shall be evidenced by mritégtification of the Compensati
Committee of Avnet's Board of Directors.

Except as expressly provided otherwise in Sectotisough 6 herein below, any PSUs that do not imestcordance wi
the foregoing shall be forfeited without considiemat

Payout. Following the vesting of all or a portion of tR&Us, one share of Avnet common stock (“Stoskigll be issuab
for each PSU that vests (the “PSU Shareshereafter, Avnet shall transfer such PSU SharethdoParticipant. Sus
transfer shall occur as soon as practicable dfeeend of the §ear Performance Period and satisfaction of allireq ta:
withholding obligations, securities law registratiand other requirements, and applicable stockamgsh listing, and
any event no later than December 31st of the caleyehr in which the 3-year Performance Period .ends

No fractional shares shall be issued with respegesting of PSUs.

The Participant shall not acquire or have any sgid a shareholder of Avnet by virtue of these d&tah Terms ar
Conditions (or the Award evidenced thereby) uitd PSU Shares issuable pursuant to this Awardcanally issued ar
delivered to the Participant in accordance withtérens of the Plan and these Standard Terms andit@ors.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OR SERVICE

Except as provided below with respect to deattghdiisy, Retirement, or Change in Control, if tharfcipant ceases to
employed by or in the service of the Company foy amason before the end of they@r Performance Period,
Participant shall immediately forfeit all of the BSwithout consideration.

DEATH OR DISABILITY OF PARTICIPANT

If the Participant’s employment with or servicethe Company terminates or ceases by reason ofattieiPants death ¢
disability (as determined by the Administrator ia $ole discretion), the Participant shall vestiprorata share of tt
PSUs equal to the number of PSUs that would hagerbe vested had the Participant remained contimy@msployel
by, or provided services to, the Company throughethd of the 3-year Performance Period (based oret&svperformanc
through the end of the y&ar Performance Period), multiplied by a fractittre numerator of which is the number of
calendar quarters in the






Performance Period that have been completed dseodidte of death or disability, and the denominafowhich is 12
Unless the provisions of Section 5, below, apfiis Section 4 shall apply to a Participant who tatsprovided services
the Company for twelve consecutive months by readdongterm disability leave. The number of PSU Sharesapl
(before application of the pn@tion rule set forth in this Section 4) and theitig of the transfer of such PSU Shares
be determined in accordance with Section 2, abawmbdut regard to the service requirement set femdrein). All non-
vested PSUs shall be forfeited.

RETIREMENT

If the Participans employment or service with the Company terminbteseason of Retirement (as defined herein)
Participant shall vest in the PSUs equal to thebramof PSUs that would have become vested hadatieiPant remaine
continuously employed by the Company through the eihthe 3-year Performance Period (based on Asnefative
performance through the end of thge&ar Performance Period). For purposes hereofssatien of employment will |
treated as a “Retiremenf’(and only if) (a) the cessation of employmenturs after (1) the Participant has attained att
age 55 and been credited with at least five yebsewice with the Company and (Il) the combinatafrthe Participang
age plus years of service is no less than 65; Bhdhé Participant has signed a rmmpetition agreement in a fo
acceptable to the Company. The number of PSU Shargable and the timing of the transfer of sucbl BBares shall |
determined in accordance with Section 2, abovehfwit regard to the service requirement set foréretin). All non-
vested PSUs shall be forfeited.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

In the event of a Change in Control, the Participgdnall immediately become fully vested in the Baiyumber of Shar
set forth in the Term Sheet, and the Participaatl &ie entitled to receive one share of Stock farhesuch vested PS
Such PSU Shares shall be transferred to the Remticupon the Change in Control; provided, howetret if a chanc
described in Treas. Reg. 8§ 1.408A%5) has not occurred, the transfer shall ocduthe time prescribed by Sectior
above (.e., after the end of the 3-year Performance Period).

TAXES

The Participant acknowledges that the delivery ®JFShares will generally give rise to a withholdiag obligation, an
that the issuance of shares of Stock hereundepnslitioned on timely satisfying such withholdingligation. The
Participant shall make arrangements satisfactoryth®o Company for satisfying such withholding obligas. Fo
Participants residing in the United States, Can&krmany and the United Kingdom, Avnet will issuget' shares,”
meaning that shares will be withheld to cover thim@ated withholding tax liability. Participantssiding in other countri
are subject to the laws of the appropriate taxsgliction.

These Standard Terms and Conditions shall be metiegh consistent with the intent to comply withjperexempt from, tt
requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Reee@ode of 1986, as amended, such that there asdverse te
consequences, interest, or penalties as a resaltyohmount paid or payable as a result of the dwwhthe PSUs. Ar
ambiguity or inconsistency in the provisions ofsbé&tandard Terms and Conditions shall be resaeesistent with suc
intent.




10.

11.

12.

No provision of the Plan, the Term Sheet, or thesedard Terms and Conditions shall be construddatsfer to th
Company or any of its affiliates any responsibitifithe Participant to pay any income, employmexrtjse, or other tax
attributable to a PSU.

THE PLAN; DEFINED TERMS; ENTIRE AGREEMENT

In addition to these Standard Terms and ConditithresPerformance Stock Units shall be subject ¢ot¢ihms of the Pla
which are incorporated into these Standard Ternts @onditions by this reference. Capitalized terno$ otherwis
defined herein shall have the meaning set fortth@éPlan, and the rules of construction set fanthhe Plan shall al:
apply to these Standard Terms and Conditions.

The Term Sheet, these Standard Terms and Conditéots the Plan constitute the entire understantitgveen th
Participant and the Company regarding the PSUs. paigr agreements, commitments or negotiations earieg thi
PSUs are superseded.

RESTRICTIONS ON RESALES

The Company may impose such restrictions, condifiand limitations as it determines appropriatéoahe timing an
manner of any resales by the Participant or othbseqquent transfers by the Participant of any shafeStock issue
pursuant to the PSUs, including (a) restrictiondasnan insider trading policy, (b) restrictions idesd to delay and/
coordinate the timing and manner of sales by theidjzant and other holders of awards granted uriderPlan, (c
requiring that you acknowledge and accept theseddtd Terms and Conditions and the Term Sheetdjmegtrictions ¢
to the use of a specified brokerage firm for siegdales or other transfers.

COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY

This Award shall be subject to the terms and cdomtt of the Compang’ compensation recoupment or clawback pc
as in effect and amended from time to time, incigdlisgorgement or repayment to the extent reqlayeslich policy.

NO ASSIGNMENT

Performance Stock Units granted under the Plan moaye sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, exgthrencumber:
or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until afterPSUs have vested and the corresponding shiaBteak have bec
issued, except to the limited extent permittedhsyRlan and approved by the Administrator in ite sliscretion.

GENERAL

If any provision of these Standard Terms and Camulitis declared to be illegal, invalid, or othessvunenforceable by
court of competent jurisdiction, such provision Ikt reformed, if possible, to the extent necgssarrender it legs
valid, and enforceable, or otherwise deleted, dred remainder of these Standard Terms and Condisba$ not b
affected except to the extent necessary to refordelete such illegal, invalid, or unenforceablevision.




The headings preceding the text of the sectionsdfieare inserted solely for convenience of refeseramd shall n
constitute a part of these Standard Terms and @onslj nor shall they affect its meaning, consiamtor effect.

These Standard Terms and Conditions shall inurtheobenefit of and be binding upon the parties theesd thei
respective permitted heirs, beneficiaries, suceesand assigns.

The Participant acknowledges that a copy of the,Rlee Plan prospectus, and Avsethost recent annual report tc
shareholders has been delivered to the Participant.

Nothing in the Plan, the Term Sheet, these Stan@larchs and Conditions, or any other instrument etest pursuant
the Plan shall confer upon the Participant anytrigltontinue in the Compars/employ or service or limit in any way
Company’s right to terminate the Participan€mployment or service at any time and for angaeaAs this grant w.
made in the absolute discretion of management badAtministrator, receipt of this Award does notfews upon th
Participant any right to future awards or partigipain any equity compensation program.

Neither this Award nor any shares of Stock issudi#eeunder shall be included in compensation fapgees c
determining the amount payable to or on behalhefRarticipant under any pension, savings, retinéniiée insurance
severance or other employee or director benefingement of the Company, unless otherwise detedriy the pla
sponsor.

The Plan, the Term Sheet, and these Standard TemahsConditions shall be governed, construed, imnted, an
administered solely in accordance with the lawthefstate of New York, without regard to principtéxonflicts of law.

All questions arising under the Plan, the Term §haed these Standard Terms and Conditions shadlebi&ed by tr
Administrator in its total and absolute discretidh.is expressly understood that the Administratorauthorized t
administer, construe, and make all determinaticetessary or appropriate to the administration ef Rfan, the Ter
Sheet, and these Standard Terms and Conditiorgjclil determinations shall be binding upon theidhaant.

EXHIBIT A

The S&P Supercomposite Technology Distributors xn8eb-Industry (excluding Avnet) currently consists

* Agilysys, Inc

* Anixter International Inc
» Arrow Electronics, Inc

* Ingram Micro Inc

* Insight Enterprises, In
e ScanSource, In




* SYNNEX Corporatio
» Tech Data Corporatic

Note that the companies that make up this index beayevised prior to vesting of the PSUs dependipgn, amon
other items, mergers, acquisitions and failureubliply provide financial information.




Exhibit 10.23(d)

AVNET, INC.
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
FOR STOCK UNITS

These Standard Terms and Conditions for IncentteekSUnits (the “Standard Terms and Conditiongfply to an
restricted stock unit granted under the Avnet, R@13 Stock Compensation and Incentive Plan (tHan®p that ar
identified as incentive or restricted stock units.

1. TERMS OF STOCK UNITS

Avnet, Inc. (“Avnet”) has granted to the Participant named in the atthatard letter restricted stock units |
“Incentive Stock Units”) covering the number of sf®mof its common stock (the “Stoclksgt forth in the awa
letter, subject to the conditions set forth in th&andard Terms and Conditions, and the Planp&igoses ¢
these Standard Terms and Conditions and the aetied, lthe “Company” refers to Avnet and its suiasids.

2. VESTING AND PERFORMANCE

Subject to the provisions these Standard Term<amdlitions, 25% of the Incentive Stock Units wilst on th
first business day of January in each of 20 tind20 _ Upon the vesting, one share of Stock shall be ds
for each Incentive Stock Unit that vests. Thereafesnet shall transfer such Stock to the Partiotp&ucl
transfer shall occur during the Participantax year in which vesting occurs, as soon astipadide after th
satisfaction of all required tax withholding obligms, securities law registration and other rezmuients, ar
applicable stock exchange listing.

The Participant shall not acquire or have any s@# a shareholder of Avnet by virtue of these@&ahTerm
and Conditions (or the Award evidenced thereby)l tim¢ shares of Stock issuable pursuant to thiaiwar
actually issued and delivered to the Participanadéoordance with the terms of the Plan and theaad3t:
Terms and Conditions.

3. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OR SERVICE

Except as provided below with respect to death etir@nent (as such term is defined below), if thetiBipan
ceases to be employed by, or ceases providingcssrio, the Company for any reason before the tive
Stock Units have vested pursuant to Paragraphe2P#rticipant shall immediately forfeit all of thecentive
Stock Units without consideration therefor. Thisct8m 3 shall apply to a Participant who has naivaec
services to the Company for twelve consecutive hdte to long-term disability leave.




DEATH

If the Participant’s employment with the Compangntmates by reason of the Participandfeath, the Incenti
Stock Units shall become immediately and fully eesand payable, and one share of Stock shall beds®
each Incentive Stock Unit on a date determinechbyGompany, which date shall be no later than 98 déte
the Participant’s death.

RETIREMENT

If the Participant employment or service with the Company terminbieseason of Retirement, the Incen
Stock Unit shall continue to vest in accordancehwite schedule prescribed by Paragraph 2 (subg
acceleration in the event of death (pursuant tadtaph 4) or a Change in Control (pursuant to Papdg6))
One share of Stock shall be delivered with respeetach vested Incentive Stock Unit at the timesgnibed b
Paragraph 2, Paragraph 4 or Paragraph 6, as agpli¢@r purposes hereof, a cessation of employmvéinbe
treated as a “Retirementif (and only if) (a) the cessation of employmenturs after () the Participant t
attained at least age 55 and been credited wilkast five years of service with the Company any tfe
combination of the Participastage plus years of service is no less than 65(l@nithe Participant has signe
non-competition agreement in a form acceptablaécdompany.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

In the event of a Change in Control (as such teraefined in the Plan), the Incentive Stock Unlitslisbecom
immediately and fully vested and payable, and draesof Stock shall be issued for each IncentieelSUnil
no later than 10 days after the Change in Control.

TAXES

The Participant acknowledges that Incentive StonkdJand shares of Stock provided under this Agesgrar
subject to income and employment tax withholdinggaltions and that, in some cases, withholdinggaion:
will arise before shares are deliverable. The Elgent shall make arrangements satisfactory tcCthmpany fo
satisfying such withholding obligations. For Papgants residing in the United States, Canada, Geyraad th
United Kingdom, Avnet will issue “net sharesyieaning that shares will be withheld to cover estet
withholding tax liability. Participants residing imther countries are subject to the laws of the@pyate ta
jurisdiction. No provision of the Plan, the awamdtér, or these Standard Terms and Conditions die
construed to transfer to the Company or any offfdiates any responsibility of the Participant pay an
income, employment, excise, or other taxes atitletto an Incentive Stock Unit.

THE PLAN; DEFINED TERMS; ENTIRE AGREEMENT

In addition to these Standard Terms and Conditithes|ncentive Stock Units shall be subject totdrens of th
Plan, which are incorporated into these Standarch§end Conditions by this reference. Capitalizgdhs nc
otherwise defined herein shall have the meaninfpstt in the






10.

11.

Plan, and the rules of construction set forth enRttan shall also apply to these Standard Term&£anditions.

The award letter, these Standard Terms and Condjtend the Plan constitute the entire understgrioitwee
the Participant and the Company regarding the kneerStock Units. Any prior agreements, commitmeor
negotiations concerning the Incentive Stock Uniéssuperseded.

RESTRICTIONS ON RESALES

The Company may impose such restrictions, condifiamd limitations as it determines appropriatéoathe
timing and manner of any resales by the Participawther subsequent transfers by the Participbahy share
of Stock issued pursuant to the Incentive Stockg)mcluding (a) restrictions under an insideding policy
(b) restrictions designed to delay and/or coordirthe timing and manner of sales by the Participadt othe
holders of awards granted under the Plan, requthagyou acknowledge and accept these StandardsTan:
Conditions and (c) restrictions as to the use sfexcified brokerage firm for such resales or otrarsfers.

SECTION 409A

These Standard Terms and Conditions shall be g consistent with the intent to comply with, lE
exempt from, the requirements of Section 409A efltiternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€y;
such that there are no adverse tax consequenta®sit) or penalties as a result of any amount graphyable ¢
a result of the award of the Incentive Stock Unkay ambiguity or inconsistency in the provisioristioest
Standard Terms and Conditions shall be resolvedis@mt with such intent.

If, as of the Participant’s “separation from seeviwithin the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) difet Code
as determined by the Company, the Participant ‘ispacified employee”ds determined by the Company
accordance with its guidelines established purstmrireas. Reg. 8§ 1.4098¢)), any amount payable to
Participant upon such separation from service shall subject to the six (6) month delay requirec
Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code; provided haere that such six (6) month delay shall not beuiregl witt
respect to any payment for which the payment eieenbt such separation from service or with respecn
payment that is not subject to Section 409A byoead the “short-term deferrafule described in Treas. R
§ 1.409A-1(b)(4) or otherwise.

NO ASSIGNMENT

Incentive Stock Units granted under the Plan may b® sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, excldk
encumbered or otherwise alienated or hypothecatad the Incentive Stock Units have vested and
corresponding shares of Stock have been issuedpeta@the limited extent permitted by the Plan apgrove:
by the Administrator in its sole discretion.




12.

GENERAL

If any provision of these Standard Terms and Camubt is declared to be illegal, invalid, or othesg
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictismch provision shall be reformed, if possibleihe exter
necessary to render it legal, valid, and enforezain otherwise deleted, and the remainder of tistaadar
Terms and Conditions shall not be affected excefité extent necessary to reform or delete suegall invalid
or unenforceable provision.

The headings preceding the text of the sectionsdfi@re inserted solely for convenience of refeeeand sha
not constitute a part of these Standard Terms amdli@ons, nor shall they affect its meaning, camndion, o
effect.

These Standard Terms and Conditions shall inutbddenefit of and be binding upon the parties theag(
their respective permitted heirs, beneficiariescegsors, and assigns.

The Participant acknowledges that a copy of the,Rle Plan prospectus, and Avsatiost recent annual reg
to its shareholders has been delivered or madéablato the Participant.

Nothing in the Plan, the award letter, these Stahd@rms and Conditions, or any other instrumercaie«
pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon the Paditi@ny right to continue in the Compasgmploy or servic
or limit in any way the Company’s right to termiaahe Participant’ employment or service at any time anc
any reason. As this grant was made in the absdistgetion of management and the Administratoreigcof
this Award does not confer upon the Participant aght to future awards or participation in any gy
compensation program.

Neither this Award nor any shares of Stock issuableunder shall be included in compensation fopgaes ¢
determining the amount payable to or on behalthef Participant under any pension, savings, retingnige
insurance, severance, or other employee or dirdmoefits arrangement of the Company, unless otke
determined by the plan sponsor.

The Plan, the award letter, and these StandardsTand Conditions shall be governed, construedrpreaeed
and administered solely in accordance with the lafvéhe state of New York, without regard to prjples o
conflicts of law.

All questions arising under the Plan, the awartttetind these Standard Terms and Conditions sbalkecide
by the Administrator in its total and absolute detion. It is expressly understood that the Adntrater is
authorized to administer, construe, and make adrdenations necessary or appropriate to the adination o
the Plan, the award letter, and these Standard sTarmd Conditions; all such determinations shalbipeling
upon the Participant.






Earnings:
Income from continuing
operations before tax
Add fixed charges

Total Earnings

Fixed charges:

Interest on indebtedness including
amortization of debt expense

Interest component of rent expense
Total fixed charges

Avnet, Inc.

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Exhibit 12.1

June 28, 201: June 29, 201! June 30, 201: July 2,2011 July 3, 2010
(in thousands)

701,12 549,26! 790,78: 870,96t 585,08

138,43( 139,01! 121,73 121,35: 100,16:

839,55 688,28( 912,51¢ 992,31¢ 685,24!

104,82: 107,65: 90,85¢ 92,45: 78,66¢

33,601 31,36: 30,87¢ 28,90: 21,49¢

138,43( 139,01 121,73 121,35: 100,16:

6.1 5.C 7.5 8.2 6.8




Avnet, Inc.

Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Company Name

"Gleichmann & Co" Electronics GmbH

Abacus Group Limited

Alpha 3 Manufacturing Ltd

Ascendant Software Technology (India) Private Ladit
Ascendant Technology d.o.o. Beograd
Ascendant Technology Do Brasil Servicos Em Tecnal@g Informacéo Ltda.
Ascendant Technology Holdings UK Limited
Ascendant Technology Limited

Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limited

Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Avnet (Holdings) Ltd

Avnet (N2)

Avnet (Shanghai) Limited

Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd.

Avnet Abacus Limited

Avnet AG

Avnet Asia Pte Ltd

Avnet ASIC Israel Ltd

Avnet Australia No. 2 Pty Ltd

Avnet B.V.

Avnet Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH

Avnet Chile S.A.

Avnet Components Brasil Participa¢des Ltda.
Avnet Components Israel Limited

Avnet Computer Service (Hong Kong) Limited
Avnet Computer Service (Macau) Limited
Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Avnet de Puerto Rico, Inc.

Avnet Delaware Holdings, Inc.

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil Ltda.

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty Ltd
Avnet Electronics Technology (China) Limited
Avnet Electronics Turkey ithalat ihracat Sanayilvearet Limited Sirketi
Avnet EM

Avnet EM Holdings Japan Kabushiki Kaisha
Avnet EM Japan (Asia) Limited

Avnet EM Sp. z.0.0.
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Jurisdiction
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
India

Serbia

Brazil

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Australia
United Kingdom
New Zealand
China

China

Hong Kong
Switzerland
Singapore
Israel

Australia
Netherlands
Germany

Chile

Brazil

Israel

Hong Kong
Macao

Mexico

Puerto Rico
Delaware
Delaware

Brazil

Australia

China

Turkey

Russian Federation
Japan
Singapore
Poland




Avnet Embedded Industria e Comercio Ltda
Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente GmbH
Avnet EMG France

Avnet EMG GmbH

Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.

Avnet EMG Ltd

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG
Avnet Europe Comm. VA

Avnet Finance B.V.

Avnet Financial Services Asia Limited
Avnet France S.A.S.

Avnet Government Solutions, LLC
Avnet Holding Anonim Sirketi

Avnet Holding B.V.

Avnet Holding Europe BVBA

Avnet Holding Germany GmbH

Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limited
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limited
Avnet Holdings Europe Limited

Avnet Holdings UK Limited

Avnet Holdings, LLC

Avnet Iberia S.A.

Avnet India Private Limited

Avnet InnovAsia Pte Ltd

Avnet Integrated, Inc.

Avnet International (Canada) Ltd.
Avnet International, LLC

Avnet Internix Kabushiki Kaisha

Avnet Italy Srl

Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limited

Avnet Korea, Inc.

Avnet Limited

Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Ltd.

Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A.

Avnet Logistics do Brasil Ltda.

Avnet Logistics GmbH

Avnet Logistics Limited

Avnet Logistics PMC Stutensee GmbH
Avnet Logistics Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Logistics Stutensee GmbH
Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Avnet Nortec A/S

Avnet Nortec AB

Avnet Nortec AS

Avnet Nortec Oy

Brazil
Switzerland
Austria
France
Germany
Italy

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Netherlands
Hong Kong
France
Indiana
Turkey
Netherlands
Belgium
Germany
South Africa
Australia
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Delaware
Spain

India
Singapore
New York
Canada
Delaware
Japan

Italy

South Africa

Korea, Republic of

Ireland
China
Belgium
Brazil
Germany
United Kingdom
Germany
Singapore
Germany
Malaysia
Denmark
Sweden
Norway
Finland




Avnet Pacific Pty Limited

Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc.

Avnet Receivables Corporation

Avnet S.r.l.

Avnet s.r.o

Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bhd

Avnet Sp. z 0.0.

Avnet Sunrise Limited

Avnet Technology (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Electronics Marketing (Taiwan) (dd.
Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions (ASEAN) Pte. Ltd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Australia) Limited
Avnet Technology Solutions (China) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (India) Private Limited
Avnet Technology Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (Vietham) Company Lirdite
Avnet Technology Solutions A/S

Avnet Technology Solutions Argentina S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions B.V.

Avnet Technology Solutions Brasil S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Chile, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Colombia S.A.S.
Avnet Technology Solutions Ecuador, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions GmbH

Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft fh.b.
Avnet Technology Solutions Kft

Avnet Technology Solutions Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions S.R.L.

Avnet Technology Solutions s.r.o.

Avnet Technology Solutions Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anoi8irketi

Avnet Technology Solutions SAS

Avnet Technology Solutions Venezuela, C.A.
Avnet Trader S.A.

Avnet TS Ireland Limited

Avnet TS lItaly S.r.l.

Avnet TS Services Limited

Avnet TS Spain, S.L.

Avnet Unidux (HK) Limited

Avnet Unidux (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Australia
Malaysia
Mexico
Philippines
Delaware
Italy
Czech Republic
Singapore
Malaysia
Poland
Hong Kong
Thailand
Taiwan
Hong Kong
Singapore
Australia
China
India
Malaysia
Singapore
Thailand
China
Vietnam
Denmark
Argentina
Netherlands
Brazil
Chile
Colombia
Ecuador
Germany
Austria
Hungary
United Kingdom
Romania
Slovakia
Turkey
France

Venezuela, Bolivarian Republic of

Chile

Ireland

Italy

United Kingdom
Spain

Hong Kong
Malaysia




Avnet Unidux (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Unidux (Thailand) Company Limited
Avnet Verwaltungs GmbH

Beijing Vanda Yunda IT Services Co., Ltd
Bell Microproducts Brazil Holdings, LLC
Bell Microproducts Mexico Shareholder, LLC
BFI-IBEXSA International LLC

CAMP Marketing-Service GmbH

Canvas Systems B.V.

Canvas Systems UK Limited

Client Solutions Limited

CM Satellite Systems, Inc.

DISPLAIGN Elektronik & Design GmbH
Dritte TENVA Property GmbH Nettetal
DSM Computer GmbH

DSP Solutions Limited

Eastele Technology China Limited

EBYV Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH
EBV Elektronik ApS

EBV Elektronik d.o.o.

EBV Elektronik France SAS

EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KG

EBV Elektronik International GmbH

EBV Elektronik Kft

EBV Elektronik Limited

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.I.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o.

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik sp. z 0.0.

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L.

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.o.

EBV Elektronik Ticaret Limited Sirketi
EBV Elektronik TOV

EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O.O.
EBV Elektronik, Unipessoal Lda,

EBV Management GmbH

EBV-Elektronik GmbH

Electrolink (PTY) Ltd

Electron House (Overseas) Limited
Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Erste TENVA Property GmbH Gruber StralRe
Flint Distribution Limited

Horizon Technology Group Limited

Singapore
Thailand
Germany
China
Minnesota
Florida
Delaware
Germany
Netherlands
United Kingdom
Ireland
New York
Germany
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Germany
Denmark
Serbia
France
Germany
Germany
Hungary
Hong Kong

Russian Federation

Estonia

Italy

Romania
Slovakia
France

Poland

Spain

Czech Republic
Turkey

Ukraine
Slovenia
Portugal
Germany
Austria

South Africa
United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany
United Kingdom
Ireland




Import Holdings LLC

Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Interactive Technology Limited

Internix Hong Kong Limited

Kent One Corporation

M S C - Vertriebs - SK s. r. 0.

Magirus Aktiengesellschaft

Magirus France

Magirus Systems Integration

Magirus UK Ltd

Memec (Asia Pacific) Limited

Memec Group Holdings Limited

Memec Group Limited

Memec Holdings Limited

Memec Pty Limited

Mexico Holdings LLC

Microcomputers Systems Components Nederland B.V.
MSC (Malta) Limited

MSC (Scotland) Limited

MSC Budapest Kft

MSC Embedded, Inc.

MSC France

MSC Investoren GmbH

MSC ltalia S.R.L.

MSC Microcomputers Systems Components lberia, S.L.
MSC Microcomputers Systems Components Vertriebs ibmb
MSC Technologies Systems GmbH
MSC-Gleichmann Schweiz AG

MSC-Mibatron S.R.L.

PDSI B.V.

Pride Well Limited

Procurement Hub Pte Ltd

PT Avnet Datamation Solutions

Rausch Netzwerktechnik GmbH

ROUND2 INC.

Round2 Technologies, Incorporated

RTI Holdings Limited

RTI Technology China Limited

SEC International Holding Company, L.L.C.
Shanghai FR International Trading Co., Ltd.
Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dames
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Source Electronics (HK) Limited

Source Electronics Asia Limited

Tekdata Interconnections Limited

Telmil Electronics, Inc.

California
Mexico

Virgin Islands, British
Hong Kong
Delaware
Slovakia
Germany
France

France

United Kingdom
Hong Kong
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
California
Netherlands
Malta

United Kingdom
Hungary
Delaware
France
Germany

Italy

Spain

Germany
Germany
Switzerland
Romania
Netherlands
Virgin Islands, British
Singapore
Indonesia
Germany
Delaware
Texas

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
New Hampshire
China

France

Mexico

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
United Kingdom
Delaware




Tenva Belgium Comm. VA

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.A.

Tenva Group Holdings Europe Limited

Tenva Group Holdings Limited

Tenva TS Holdings Limited

Thomas Kaubisch GmbH

Unidux Inc.

Vanda Computer & Equipment Company Limited
Vanda Computer System Integration (Shanghai) Companited
Vanda IT Solutions & Systems Management Limited
WBT Systems Limited

WBT Systems, Inc.

YEL Electronics (China) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) Ltd

YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limited

YEL Electronics Pte Ltd

YEL Electronics Sdn Bhd

ZWEITE TENVA Property GmbH Im Technologiepark

Belgium
Belgium

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
Japan

Hong Kong
China

Virgin Islands, British
Ireland
Delaware

Hong Kong
China

China

Hong Kong
Singapore
Malaysia
Germany



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrtggstration statements 333-17271, 333-45267,45¥385, 333-55806, 333-112057, 333
112062, 333-112063, 333-140903, 333-171291, 33387and 333-192289 on Form S-8 and 333-184871 om S8 of Avnet, Inc. of oL
report dated August 8, 2014, with respect to thesobidated balance sheets of Avnet, Inc. and sigsgd as of June 28, 2014 and June
2013, and related consolidated statements of dpesatcomprehensive income, shareholders' equity cash flows for each of the years in
threeyear period ended June 28, 2014, the related fiabstatement schedule, and the effectivenesstefrial control over financial reporti
as of June 28, 2014, which report appears in the 28, 2014, annual report on Form 10-K of Avnet, |

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 8, 2014



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Richard Hamada, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FormKL6f Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahmégorting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared;

b. designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contatntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyéhis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in thestegmt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize @&pbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 8, 2014
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Kevin Moriarty, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FormKL6f Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahmégorting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared;

b. designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contatntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyéhis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in thestegmt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize @&pbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 8, 2014
/sl KEVIN MORIARTY
Kevin Moriarty
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban€&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104¢ the year ended June 28, 2014 (the “Repolt’Richard Hamada, Chief Execut
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby dértthat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SaesrExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date:August 8, 2014
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban€&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 28, 2014 (the “RepdrtRevin Moriarty, Chief Financial Office
of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SaesrExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date:August 8, 2014
/sl KEVIN MORIARTY
Kevin Moriarty
Chief Financial Officer




